
CITY COUNCIL AGENDA 

Council Chambers, 865 SE Barrington Drive 

January 19, 2016 6:00 PM 

CALL TO ORDER 

Invocation - Led by Councilmember Campbell 

Pledge of Allegiance - Led by Mayor Severns 

Excuse Absent Councilmembers 

1. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

2. PRESENTATIONS

a. Proclamations 

b. Honors & Recognitions 

c. Community Presentations 

i. Safety Improvements Announcement from Washington State Department of 
Transportation regarding Sharpes Corner Vicinity

ii. Chamber of Commerce Annual Presentation

3. CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD

Citizens may comment on subjects of interest not listed on the agenda or items listed on the Consent Agenda. 
To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. Please limit 
comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

4. CONSENT AGENDA

Items on the Consent Agenda are considered to be routine by the Council and will be enacted with one motion 
unless separate discussion is requested. Approval of the Consent Agenda authorizes the Mayor to implement
each item in accordance with staff recommendations.

Consent Items 

a. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks

b. Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held January 5, 2016, and the Special Council Meeting 
on January 12, 2016

c. Ordinance 1755: Amending OHMC 2.390 regarding contract authority

d. Resolution 16-03: Accepting of "Founders" Memorial at Windjammer Park at City Beach Street

1

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8206
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8206
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8356
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=7968
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8315
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8315
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8316
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8365


e. Resolution 16-04: Amending the Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & 
Utility, Oak Harbor Fire Department and Public Works.

f. Ault Field Booster Pump Replacement - Contract Close Out

g. Purchase Authorization-Copier for Pioneer Way Building

h. Purchase Authorization-Veteran's Park Kiosk

5. STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS

a. City Administrator 

i. Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff

b. Mayor 

c. Councilmembers 

6. PUBLIC HEARINGS & MEETINGS

To speak during a scheduled public hearing or meeting, please sign-in on the sheet provided in the Council 
Chambers. To ensure comments are recorded properly, state your name clearly into the microphone. Please 
limit comments to three (3) minutes to ensure all citizens have sufficient time to speak.

a. Resolution 16-05: Island Place Division 2 Final Plat

7. ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS

a. None

8. CONTRACTS & AGREEMENTS

a. Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #6

9. OTHER ITEMS FOR CONSIDERATION

a. None

10. REPORTS & DISCUSSION ITEMS

a. Transportation Element - Goals & Policies

b. Interview the Top Two Candidates for the Council Vacancy, Position No. 4

11. EXECUTIVE SESSION

a. Wells Fargo Property Acquisition discussion followed by possible Council action in open session

b. Discuss Top Two Qualified Candidates for the Council Vacancy Position 

12. COUNCIL VACANCY APPOINTMENT

a.               Reconvene into Open Session - Take Action on Property Acquisition and Appoint Councilmember

b.         Oath of Office Ceremony for Appointed Councilmember - Led by City Clerk 

ADJOURN 

It is the policy of the City to assure disabled persons the opportunity to participate in or benefit from City Services. Where 
possible the City will provide reasonable accommodation in compliance with WLAD, ADA, and any other applicable laws. 
Requests for accommodation should be made two (2) days in advance of the scheduled meeting by contacting the City Clerk 

at (360) 279-4539. 2

http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8297
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8297
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8330
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8090
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8091
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8400
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8180
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8313
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8257
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8344
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8320
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8357
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8359
http://206.217.198.138/getdoc.php?cID=10000124&bID=149&mID=1014&iID=8360


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Safety Improvements 
Announcement from Washington 
State Department of 
Transportation regarding Sharpes 
Corner Vicinity

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Presentation from Marquise Allen of WADOT regarding upcoming roundabout construction at Sharpe's 
Corner.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.c.i
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Safety Improvements 
Announcement from Washington 
State Department of 
Transportation regarding Sharpes 
Corner Vicinity

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Presentation from Marquise Allen of WADOT regarding upcoming roundabout construction at Sharpe's 
Corner.Corner.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

Corner.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

3



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Chamber of Commerce Annual 
Presentation

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Executive Director Christine Cribb will present the Annual Chamber of Commerce Presentation as per 
the contract between the City and the Chamber of Commerce.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 2.c.ii
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Chamber of Commerce Annual 
Presentation

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Executive Director Christine Cribb will present the Annual Chamber of Commerce Presentation as per 
the contract between the City and the Chamber of Commerce.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

4



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.a
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Approval of Accounts Payable 
Vouchers and Payroll Checks

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
I move to approve:

Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks, see Voucher Numbers and Check Numbers listed in 
the Background/ Summary Information section below.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 3.72 establishes procedures for claims (vouchers) payment. The 
documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 164958 through 165156 in the amount of $1,901,945.44.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 36803-36932.

- EFT check numbers 773-775.

- Payroll check numbers 98592-98605.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

documentation that regularly supports the signature coversheets is attached. Claim coversheets will be 
provided prior to the City Council meeting for appropriate Council signatures.

The following Voucher and Check Numbers are submitted for approval:

Accounts Payable Voucher Numbers:

-Voucher Numbers 164958 through 165156 in the amount of $1,901,945.44.

Payroll Check Numbers:

- Direct Deposit check numbers 36803-36932.

- EFT check numbers 773-775.

- Payroll check numbers 98592-98605.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

5



PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Voucher Listing (1)
2. Voucher Listing (2)

6

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452788756_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452788775_at.pdf


01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164959 1/8/2016 0000860  STANDARD INSURANCE COMPANY 123115 LONG TERM DISABILITY  4,587.76
Total :  4,587.76

 164960 1/8/2016 0000066  AWC EMPLOYEES BENEFITS TRUST 123115 PREMIUMS  682.41
Total :  682.41

 164961 1/13/2016 0007449  A-1 PERFORMANCE, INC 23860 DEC 2015/CLEANING SERVICES  491.92
Total :  491.92

 164962 1/13/2016 0008080  ADORAMA 18057847 LENS/DELUXE KIT/FILTER KIT  1,847.90
Total :  1,847.90

 164963 1/13/2016 0000984  AGRICULTURE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF122915 PESTICIDE LICENSE  33.00
Total :  33.00

 164964 1/13/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 72244426 BATTERIES  722.31
Total :  722.31

 164965 1/13/2016 0000028  ALL ISLAND LOCK & KEY 52669 LOCK INSTALL  374.36
Total :  374.36

 164966 1/13/2016 0000042  ANACORTES, CITY OF 900-9080-00 DEC 2015/WATER PURCHASED  129,500.00
 1,198.22DEC 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-01
 9,525.15DEC 2015/WATER PURCHASED901-9080-02

Total :  140,223.37

 164967 1/13/2016 0003655  ANDERSON, STAN 122815 EXP REIMB  243.84
Total :  243.84

 164968 1/13/2016 0005001  ARAMARK 1988295749 UNIFORM SERVICES  17.08
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988295750
 15.15UNIFORM SERVICES1988295751
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988295752
 18.67UNIFORM SERVICES1988295753
 55.32UNIFORM SERVICES1988295754
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988295755
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988300196

1Page:
7



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164968 1/13/2016 (Continued)0005001  ARAMARK
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988300199
 28.37UNIFORM SERVICES1988300200
 45.99UNIFORM SERVICES1988306727
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988306728

 158.04UNIFORM SERVICES1988306729
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988306730
 18.67UNIFORM SERVICES1988306731
 55.32UNIFORM SERVICES1988306732
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988306733
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988311244
 28.37UNIFORM SERVICES1988311245
 18.16UNIFORM SERVICES1988317718
 52.15UNIFORM SERVICES1988317719
 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988317720
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988317721
 17.48UNIFORM SERVICES1988317722
 48.30UNIFORM SERVICES1988317723
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988317724
 16.59UNIFORM SERVICES1988322138
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988322141
 28.37UNIFORM SERVICES1988322142
 24.69UNIFORM SERVICES1988328693
 14.63UNIFORM SERVICES1988328694
 14.34UNIFORM SERVICES1988328695
 17.31UNIFORM SERVICES1988328696
 19.67UNIFORM SERVICES1988328697
 44.80UNIFORM SERVICES1988328698
 10.87UNIFORM SERVICES1988328699
 19.94UNIFORM SERVICES1988333133
 70.92UNIFORM SERVICES1988333134

Total :  1,063.75

 164969 1/13/2016 0000053  ARROW PEST CONTROL, INC 164593 PEST CONTROL  108.70
Total :  108.70

 164970 1/13/2016 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS 0843599-IN FUEL  6,773.79

2Page:
8



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  6,773.79 164970 1/13/2016 0004019 0004019  ASSOCIATED PETROLEUM PRODUCTS

 164971 1/13/2016 0000159  AT&T MOBILITY 287249477751X1224201 AIRCARDS  407.13
Total :  407.13

 164972 1/13/2016 0000077  BARGE, JA EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  1,820.50
 47.50EXP REIMBEXP REIMB
 39.50EXP REIMBEXP REIMB
 36.25EXP REIMBEXP REIMB
 51.72EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  1,995.47

 164973 1/13/2016 0004733  BARRON HEATING & AIR COND, INC 172551 HEATING SERVICES  419.04
Total :  419.04

 164974 1/13/2016 0000083  BAZA, ALVIN 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164975 1/13/2016 0008077  BETTER SOLUTION, INC 123115 BUSINESS LICENSE FEE REFUND  12.50
Total :  12.50

 164976 1/13/2016 0007807  BLIND ENTERPRISES 2537 NAME TAGS  14.00
Total :  14.00

 164977 1/13/2016 0008081  BLUE LINE TRAINING, LLC 2814 REGISTRATION/PADRTA  199.00
Total :  199.00

 164978 1/13/2016 0002551  BOS, BRYON 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164979 1/13/2016 0003097  BOYER, TALLIE 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164980 1/13/2016 0007926  BROWN, MICHAEL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  81.08
Total :  81.08

 164981 1/13/2016 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL 609069 SUPPLIES  321.51

3Page:
9



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  321.51 164981 1/13/2016 0000627 0000627  CAPITAL ONE COMMERCIAL

 164982 1/13/2016 0006215  CAROLLO 0145900 NOV 2015/PROF SVC WASTEWATER TREATMENT P 239,900.83
Total :  239,900.83

 164983 1/13/2016 0005208  CARTER, SERLOYD 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164984 1/13/2016 0000150  CASCADE NATURAL GAS 0396318067 NATURAL GAS/210  10.60
 151.69NATURAL GAS/20712470743597
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20157309970234
 10.60NATURAL GAS/20392612025210

Total :  183.49

 164985 1/13/2016 0007943  CAUFFMAN, GIDEON 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 164986 1/13/2016 0000197  CONCRETE NORWEST 1443946 SAND  127.18
Total :  127.18

 164987 1/13/2016 0000220  CUMMINS NORTHWEST, INC 010-14470 QUICKSERVE ONLINE FLEET  375.02
Total :  375.02

 164988 1/13/2016 0000222  CUSTOM ENGRAVING 15-1228 TAGS  23.64
Total :  23.64

 164989 1/13/2016 0002008  DATA BUSINESS SYSTEMS, INC 105350 W2 FORMS  66.49
Total :  66.49

 164990 1/13/2016 0000247  DIAMOND RENTALS 1-500608-48 PORTABLES  60.00
 60.00PORTABLES1-500619-48
 60.00PORTABLES1-509920-32
 60.00PORTABLES1-533144

Total :  240.00

 164991 1/13/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 123115 DEC 2015/LAUNDRY SERVICES  318.74
Total :  318.74

4Page:
10



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164992 1/13/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 15-07048 TESTING  18.00
 18.00TESTING15-27476

Total :  36.00

 164993 1/13/2016 0008052  ESAFETY SUPPLIES, INC 180471 JACKETS  377.92
Total :  377.92

 164994 1/13/2016 0008082  EVIDENT, INC 101203A SECURITY BAGS/EVIDENCE PAPER/BOXES  986.65
 1,112.69ADAPTER/BOXES/DIGITAL SCALE101427A

Total :  2,099.34

 164995 1/13/2016 0002900  FASTENAL WAOAK21671 FASTENERS  8.14
 60.71FASTENERSWAOAK21792
 26.25CONNECTORSWAOAK21870
 14.67CABLE TIESWAOAK21898

Total :  109.77

 164996 1/13/2016 0000308  FEDERAL EXPRESS 5-267-98163 SHIPPING  529.44
Total :  529.44

 164997 1/13/2016 0007929  FEHR PEERS 104501 PROF SVC/OAK HARBOR TRANSPORATION ELEMEN 23,985.86
Total :  23,985.86

 164998 1/13/2016 0007405  FISCHER, MARIA 1 TRAVEL REFUND  15.00
Total :  15.00

 164999 1/13/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 240-2350 CURRENT PHONE CHARGES  1,342.36
 246.34CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-1568
 64.45CURRENT PHONE CHARGES675-6858
 75.57CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-0500
 64.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1640
 64.45CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1651
 64.62CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-1789

 403.97CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-2628
 64.60CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-3902
 92.42CURRENT PHONE CHARGES679-8477

Total :  2,483.40

5Page:
11



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165000 1/13/2016 0000329  GALLS 004506101 BOOTS  489.08
Total :  489.08

 165001 1/13/2016 0001706  GARDNER, PAT EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  303.05
 4,306.00EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  4,609.05

 165002 1/13/2016 0000340  GIFFORD, KATHY 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165003 1/13/2016 0003650  GLOBALSTAR USA 1000000007007697 SATELLITE SERVICE  826.19
Total :  826.19

 165004 1/13/2016 0008083  GRAPHIC PRODUCTS, INC 2446103-IN LABEL PRINTER/LABELS  2,943.18
Total :  2,943.18

 165005 1/13/2016 0007236  HAMMOND, JACOB 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165006 1/13/2016 0000323  HD FOWLER COMPANY I4111286 FREIGHT  120.89
Total :  120.89

 165007 1/13/2016 0000380  HEALTH, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 122915 OPERATOR CERTIFICATIONS  294.00
Total :  294.00

 165008 1/13/2016 0001251  HEWLETT-PACKARD COMPANY 81033450 SERVER/KITS  8,702.36
Total :  8,702.36

 165009 1/13/2016 0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES 1012601 HF  8.65
 312.88LIGHTS1863804
 300.22JACK POSTS/GDFS/STRIP/RODS20039
 85.62IRONFORCE/TAPE/TEES/TOOL BAGS2029338
 3.20STRAPS2571195
 9.74W-TRAD DOWN2594360

 52.28POLY/RNRDPLN3029229
 25.74WELD WIRE3584590

 320.48SPIKE/LED LIGHTS4044755
 51.22PIPE45128

6Page:
12



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

7

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165009 1/13/2016 (Continued)0003095  HOME DEPOT CREDIT SERVICES
 61.45BROOM/KNEEPADS4584017
 41.69CONST/WASHERS5026278
 52.08INWALL/PLUG/CONN5027598
 52.61RABB/HEM MISC/RNRD PLT5029009
 16.23DOOR PULLS5029015
 18.00STRIPS5594735
 51.10PREM/SCREWS562719
 5.29RBTSEAMSL571667

 193.36LIGHTS571691
 216.32NAILER KIT5973571
 169.16AIRBOX/SANDER6045351

 8.59SPRAY PAINT6091589
 26.53TRAY/KNOB6134591

 405.80PTS6594133
 29.28DUCT TAPE7027394
 27.98ANCHOR SH7028710
 24.24PENCILS/LINKS7571382
 27.15BALL FLOAT7571402
 19.571INX 10 FT R8028563
 23.89LED DM ICICL8082360
 95.48LIGHTS8562385

 115.17BUMPER/CSC202W8571789
 26.02BATTERIES9028411
 24.98150L C69045725
-19.52ICICLE LIGHTS9082268

 358.25ICICLES/LIGHTS9082269
Total :  3,240.73

 165010 1/13/2016 0005250  HONEYMOON BAY COFFEE ROASTERS 431238 COFFEE SUPPLIES  93.88
Total :  93.88

 165011 1/13/2016 0000392  HUBBARD, SCOTT 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165012 1/13/2016 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES 15040573 DISK BURNER  208.91

7Page:
13



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

8

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  208.91 165012 1/13/2016 0000253 0000253  ID TECHNOLOGY SERVICES

 165013 1/13/2016 0000401  ISLAND COUNTY AUDITOR B0038306 2015 GENERAL ELECTION  4,164.02
Total :  4,164.02

 165014 1/13/2016 0000410  ISLAND COUNTY SOLID WASTE 123115 DEC 2015/TIPPING FEES  78,536.68
Total :  78,536.68

 165015 1/13/2016 0000411  ISLAND COUNTY TREASURER 123115 CRIME VICTIM COMPENSATION  176.90
Total :  176.90

 165016 1/13/2016 0007604  JANSEN, JOSH 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165017 1/13/2016 0007162  JENNINGS, WILL EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  102.00
Total :  102.00

 165018 1/13/2016 0008076  JOHNSON, CHAD EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  170.24
Total :  170.24

 165019 1/13/2016 0007412  KATY ISAKSEN ASSOCIATES OAKFUND15 10-15 PROF SVC/2017 ECOLOGY SRF LOAN APPLICATI 3,311.00
Total :  3,311.00

 165020 1/13/2016 0001560  KENT D BRUCE COMPANY 1046 MAGENTIC MIC CONVERSION KIT  144.29
Total :  144.29

 165021 1/13/2016 0007930  LACY & PAR 69916 OAK HARBOR CITY LIMITS NEWSLETTER  3,975.93
Total :  3,975.93

 165022 1/13/2016 0000493  LAERDAL MEDICAL CORPORATION 2015-2000092682 BATTERY  238.58
Total :  238.58

 165023 1/13/2016 0000494  LAKESIDE INDUSTRIES 5037776MB ASPHALT  878.29
 86.52ASPHALT5037777MB

 236.70ASPHALT5037799MB
Total :  1,201.51

 165024 1/13/2016 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE 121415 INTERPRETER SERVICES  227.50

8Page:
14



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

9

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  227.50 165024 1/13/2016 0000889 0000889  LANGUAGE EXCHANGE

 165025 1/13/2016 0005277  LEE, STEPHANIE 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165026 1/13/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400223433 TIRES  383.52
Total :  383.52

 165027 1/13/2016 0004502  LEXISNEXIS RISK DATA MANAGE 1404645-20151231 DEC 2015/MINIMUM COMMITMENT  54.35
Total :  54.35

 165028 1/13/2016 0000221  LN CURTIS & SONS 2132089-00 HOLSTER  127.92
 201.10STRIKER TORRENT2132504-00
 233.32JACKET2132580-01

Total :  562.34

 165029 1/13/2016 0001637  LYNN PEAVEY COMPANY 263329GE FIELD KIT/BAGS/JARS/CARTRIDGES/RESERVOIR 1,754.58
 185.66SWAB KIT/PROSCALE/BUBBLE BAGS263330GE

Total :  1,940.24

 165030 1/13/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 109043 YARD WASTE  105.60
 77.25YARD WASTE109076

 129.05YARD WASTE109097
 126.60YARD WASTE109124
 57.30YARD WASTE109182

Total :  495.80

 165031 1/13/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 598190 GROCERIES  216.24
 2.32GROCERIES700751

Total :  218.56

 165032 1/13/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC P42842 DEC 2015/POSTAGE FOR LATE NOTICES  446.16
 3,012.26DEC 2015/POSTAGE FOR STATEMENTSP42843

Total :  3,458.42

 165033 1/13/2016 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC 42842 DEC 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR LATE NOTIC  254.79
 892.97DEC 2015/MAILING SERVICES FOR STATEMENTS42843

9Page:
15



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

10

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  1,147.76 165033 1/13/2016 0006072 0006072  MASTER'S TOUCH, LLC

 165034 1/13/2016 0000040  MATRIX 608424964 LONG DISTANCE  353.29
Total :  353.29

 165035 1/13/2016 0006028  MCI COMM SERVICE 679-3902 LONG DISTANCE  34.81
Total :  34.81

 165036 1/13/2016 0000561  MERRIMAN, DOUGLAS TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  109.50
 249.55TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB
 472.65TRAVEL REIMBTRAVEL REIMB

Total :  831.70

 165037 1/13/2016 0007722  MERRIMAN, RYAN 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165038 1/13/2016 0006992  MOON, ANDREW 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165039 1/13/2016 0004423  MUNICIPAL EMERGENCY SERVICES INV_606324 TACTICAL VESTS/PLATES  24,166.18
Total :  24,166.18

 165040 1/13/2016 0007586  NAGEL, GARRETT 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165041 1/13/2016 0003176  NATIONAL SAFETY, INC 0424853-IN IN MAX XT II 4 GAS W/CHARGER/DOCK II CHA  4,146.36
Total :  4,146.36

 165042 1/13/2016 0000608  NC MACHINERY COMPANY MVCS0254983 SEALS/SENSOR/VALVE  407.41
Total :  407.41

 165043 1/13/2016 0000623  NITCHER, WENDY 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165044 1/13/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 265324 CARPET CLEANER  8.69
 28.24CLAMPS265339
 23.37LIGHTS265377
 26.91DECKS/CLAMP/BUCKET265401

10Page:
16



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

11

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165044 1/13/2016 (Continued)0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE
 2.17FASTENERS265435

 206.15TAPE265440
 2.89PLATE/VELCRO265490

 50.52GATE/LIGHTS265496
 60.18TEXTURE SPRAY/ROLLER/DROP CLOTH265519

Total :  409.12

 165045 1/13/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-260409 ELECTRICAL PROD  35.35
 27.52STAND001-260526
 56.01FEM SAFET001-260776

 112.17HEATER001-260867
 30.61OIL LINE001-260898

Total :  261.66

 165046 1/13/2016 0000681  OAK HARBOR SCHOOL DISTRICT 0000150030 DEC 2015/COMPUTER NETWORK SUPPORT  9,660.00
Total :  9,660.00

 165047 1/13/2016 0007548  OFFICE AUTOMATION SYSTEMS 107072 CONTRACT SERVICES  381.21
Total :  381.21

 165048 1/13/2016 0003007  OFFICE DEPOT 808809190001 PAPER  61.31
Total :  61.31

 165049 1/13/2016 0001377  ORCA INFORMATION 414764 JOHNSON  75.00
 75.00BLACK415120
 40.00BLACK415453
 75.00LEE415694

Total :  265.00

 165050 1/13/2016 0000688  OVERHEAD DOOR CO JS69027 DOOR SERVICES  631.11
Total :  631.11

 165051 1/13/2016 0002985  PACIFIC TIRE CO. INC 0094933 TIRES  104.16
 111.76TIRES0094934
 180.11TIRES0095021

Total :  396.03

11Page:
17



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

12

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165052 1/13/2016 0001615  PART WORKS, INC 417546 VALVE REPAIR KIT/WRENCH CARTRIDGE  93.94
Total :  93.94

 165053 1/13/2016 0005783  PARTSMASTER 20972671 CUTOFF WHEEL/GRINDER  347.52
Total :  347.52

 165054 1/13/2016 0000702  PAYNE, RANDY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  60.00
Total :  60.00

 165055 1/13/2016 0001218  PBY MEMORIAL ASSOCIATION 122915 POSTAGE FEES  298.16
Total :  298.16

 165056 1/13/2016 0004418  PIONEER TREE SERVICE & 14098 TREE SERVICES  869.60
Total :  869.60

 165057 1/13/2016 0000299  PLACE, SANDRA 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  40.00
Total :  40.00

 165058 1/13/2016 0004622  POWERS-RANG, LISA 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165059 1/13/2016 0000746  PUGET SAFETY EQUIPMENT 0030789-IN BOOTS  96.45
 169.80BLOODBORNE PATHOGEN KIT0030812-IN
 220.61PRESERVATIVE0030916-IN
 642.85SPILL KIT/FIRST AID KITS0030974-IN

Total :  1,129.71

 165060 1/13/2016 0000743  PUGET SOUND ENERGY 200000881421 ELECTRICITY/DISPLT  2,074.40
 13.49ELECTRICITY/WELL #7200003131170
 99.30ELECTRICITY/1019 SW SWANTOWN AVE200004839284
 13.49ELECTRICITY/WELL #6200010549943

 13,500.60ELECTRICITY/STREET LIGHTS300000007421
Total :  15,701.28

 165061 1/13/2016 0006762  RAINIER ENVIRONMENTAL 2065 TESTING  3,000.00
Total :  3,000.00

 165062 1/13/2016 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 123115 LEASEHOLD TAX  28,386.10

12Page:
18



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

13

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  28,386.10 165062 1/13/2016 0000965 0000965  REVENUE, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF

 165063 1/13/2016 0002508  RINEY PRODUCTION SERVICES 10-1617 TAPING SERVICES  3,441.33
Total :  3,441.33

 165064 1/13/2016 0003024  ROBBINS, EPHRAIM 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165065 1/13/2016 0000796  SCHROER, PAUL 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165066 1/13/2016 0005967  SEATTLE AUTOMOTIVE DIST S6-819263 RETAINER/HUB/BRAKE LINING  356.97
 201.93STARTER/WIRES6-821297

Total :  558.90

 165067 1/13/2016 0000852  SENIOR CENTER PETTY CASH 122915 PETTY CASH  243.77
Total :  243.77

 165068 1/13/2016 0000822  SHRED-IT USA, INC 9408581687 SHREDDING  68.04
Total :  68.04

 165069 1/13/2016 0000831  SIX ROBBLEES', INC 14-316452 ALARM BACKUP  148.27
 27.45TIRES14-316558

 2,130.52MINIBAR1-852470
Total :  2,306.24

 165070 1/13/2016 0000814  SKAGIT FARMERS SUPPLY 441773 PROPANE  22.12
Total :  22.12

 165071 1/13/2016 0000843  SOLID WASTE SYSTEMS, INC 0082365-IN CYLINDER AIR  121.52
 172.64CARTRIDGE0082380-IN

Total :  294.16

 165072 1/13/2016 0000846  SOUND PUBLISHING WCW671931 COUNCIL VACANCY  229.26
Total :  229.26

 165073 1/13/2016 0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE 3281394594 FOLDERS/POST ITS  46.47
 54.82TONER3281394595

13Page:
19



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

14

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165073 1/13/2016 (Continued)0003883  STAPLES BUSINESS ADVANTAGE
 17.24AAG WEEKLY3285630240
 8.65PLANNER3285630241

 198.41ENVELOPES/PENS/POST ITS3285630242
 41.40PENS/SPOOL3286426709

 119.55CHAIRMATS3286426710
 154.89HYBLK3286426711

 4.53BATTERIES3287544952
 35.48MOP3287544953
 48.65MARKERS3287544954
 26.05MARKERS/CLIPBOARDS3287544955

 158.13RECORD BOOKS3287544956
 25.02BOX/PENS3287544957
 78.57PADS/POST ITS/RIBBON/CALENDARS3287544958
 39.23DOOR PEGS3287544959
 77.62TONER3287544960
 60.68CALENDARS3287544961

 250.00PRINTER3287544962
 214.13PAPER3287938604
 135.86PAPER3287938605
 95.65SPINDLE/FILE POCKETS3287938606
 30.40COVER/SCISSORS3287938607

Total :  1,921.43

 165074 1/13/2016 0000863  STERKEL, TIMOTHY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  217.80
Total :  217.80

 165075 1/13/2016 0005786  STOWES SHOES & CLOTHING 0009757 BOOTS/BOS  147.52
Total :  147.52

 165076 1/13/2016 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL 1086584 PEST EXTERMINATION  30.44
 59.79PEST EXTERMINATION1086586
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1086589
 38.05PEST EXTERMINATION1086590
 43.48PEST EXTERMINATION1086592
 32.61PEST EXTERMINATION1086595
 30.44PEST EXTERMINATION1086606

14Page:
20



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

15

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  278.29 165076 1/13/2016 0000874 0000874  SURETY PEST CONTROL

 165077 1/13/2016 0001938  TECHNICAL SYSTEMS, INC 15531 CONTROL PUMP REPROGRAMMING  1,280.00
Total :  1,280.00

 165078 1/13/2016 0000910  TRAFFIC SAFETY SUPPLY CO 107592 PAVEMENT MARKER  227.66
Total :  227.66

 165079 1/13/2016 0000986  TRANSPORTATION, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF02348CNA REGISTRAITON/PLACE  75.00
Total :  75.00

 165080 1/13/2016 0001053  TREASURER, WASHINGTON STATE 123115 COURT/BC FEES  10,261.34
Total :  10,261.34

 165081 1/13/2016 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-149352 SOFTWARE  5,365.01
Total :  5,365.01

 165082 1/13/2016 0000923  UNITED PARCEL SERVICE 0000A0182W505 SHIPPING  33.18
 45.26SHIPPING0000A0182W515

Total :  78.44

 165083 1/13/2016 0000927  US BANK 4166421 OAKWAT04  241.39
Total :  241.39

 165084 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001332901 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  2,172.45
Total :  2,172.45

 165085 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590100104948 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  668.22
Total :  668.22

 165086 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002431076 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  550.34
Total :  550.34

 165087 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000119689 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  307.95
Total :  307.95

 165088 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485590002304679 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  234.38
Total :  234.38

15Page:
21



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

16

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165089 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591000646855 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  147.00
Total :  147.00

 165090 1/13/2016 0004903  US BANK 4485591001286149 CREDIT CARD PURCHASES  35.54
Total :  35.54

 165091 1/13/2016 0006019  VISTAMATION, INC 8968523A SHELVING  821.25
Total :  821.25

 165092 1/13/2016 0006985  WEST COAST METAL BUILDINGS INC 34600 BUILDING  3,081.65
 4,250.17BUILDING34601
 4,250.17BUILDING34602

Total :  11,581.99

 165093 1/13/2016 0000995  WEST, GARY EXP REIMB EXP REIMB  29.32
 37.29EXP REIMBEXP REIMB
 35.88EXP REIMBEXP REIMB

Total :  102.49

 165094 1/13/2016 0003067  WHIDBEY ANIMALS' IMPROVEMENT 1289 DEC 2015/ANIMAL SHELTER  8,333.37
Total :  8,333.37

 165095 1/13/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 270298 HEATER  54.21
Total :  54.21

 165096 1/13/2016 0001017  WHIDBEY PRINTERS 48011 BUSINESS CARDS/ANDERSON  59.79
 236.42WINDOW ENVELOPES48158
 162.58WINTER MOORAGE LEASE AGREEMENT48221

Total :  458.79

 165097 1/13/2016 0004961  WOODWARD, GREGORY 123115 WELLNESS INCENTIVE  20.00
Total :  20.00

 165098 1/13/2016 0001037  WORK OUTFITTERS 50656 BOOTS/MATTHEWS  184.41
Total :  184.41

 165099 1/13/2016 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION 701916803 OCT 2015/COPIER RENTAL  4,809.46

16Page:
22



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

17

 1:57:57PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  4,809.46 165099 1/13/2016 0001061 0001061  XEROX CORPORATION

 165100 1/13/2016 0007269  XYLEM DEWATERING SOLUTIONS, IN 400570435 90 DEGREE QD BEND  78.84
Total :  78.84

Bank total :  703,602.76 142 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 703,602.76Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 142

17Page:
23



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

1

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 164958 1/8/2016 0001639  WASHINGTON CITIES INSURANCE 40102 2016 LIABILITY ASSESSMENT  409,129.00
Total :  409,129.00

 165101 1/13/2016 0000950  LICENSING, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 123115 CONCEALED WEAPONS PERMITS  1,716.00
Total :  1,716.00

 165102 1/14/2016 0006845  48 NORTH 34630 JAN 2016/ADVERTISING  555.00
Total :  555.00

 165103 1/14/2016 0000004  A+ AUTO GLASS & RADIATOR 45970 WINDSHIELD INSTALLATION  296.32
Total :  296.32

 165104 1/14/2016 0007646  AGENDEASE, INC 20150114 JAN 2016/MONTHLY LICENSE  199.00
Total :  199.00

 165105 1/14/2016 0000424  ALL BATTERY SALES AND SERVICE 51166855 BATTERIES  396.76
 240.77BATTERIES51166856
 45.73BATTERIES51166857

Total :  683.26

 165106 1/14/2016 0007320  ALLIED 100 562903 PHILIPS HEARTSTART  1,231.00
Total :  1,231.00

 165107 1/14/2016 0007464  ALLIED FIRE & SECURITY RCB1188610 1ST QTR 2016 MONITORING AGREEMENT  90.00
Total :  90.00

 165108 1/14/2016 0000037  AMERICAN WATER WORKS 2572 2016 MEMBERSHIP DUES  500.00
Total :  500.00

 165109 1/14/2016 0000055  ASSOCIATION OF WASHINGTON 39250 2016 REGISTRATIONS  600.00
 15,256.002016 MEMBERSHIP FEE39876

Total :  15,856.00

 165110 1/14/2016 0000962  BUILDING OFFICIALS, WASHINGTON ASSOCIATION OF2016WABO 2016 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/BUXTON  195.00
 95.002016 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/ANDERSONWABO2016

Total :  290.00

1Page:
24



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

2

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165111 1/14/2016 0002644  C JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION, INC 1 PROF SVC/NE 4TH AVENUE WATER MAIN REPLAC 153,547.72
Total :  153,547.72

 165112 1/14/2016 0005773  COMCAST 8498300270032002 JAN 2016/CABLE  119.76
 19.32JAN 2016/XFINITY8498300270032028

 239.12JAN 2016/INTERNET8498300271046803
Total :  378.20

 165113 1/14/2016 0000257  DUTCH MAID CLEANERS 1098 DEC 2015/LAUNDRY SERVICES  13.86
Total :  13.86

 165114 1/14/2016 0000967  ECOLOGY, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF 2016-WA0020567 2016 WASTEWATER PERMIT  10,328.04
Total :  10,328.04

 165115 1/14/2016 0000273  EDGE ANALYTICAL, INC 15-27323 TESTING  1,068.00
Total :  1,068.00

 165116 1/14/2016 0000394  EMPLOYERS UNITY, LLC 20691 1ST QTR 2016/UNEMPLOYMENT SERVICES  330.00
Total :  330.00

 165117 1/14/2016 0000251  ENTERPRISE SERVICES, WASHINGTON STATE DEPT OF16142840 2016 ADMINISTRATIVE FEE  400.00
Total :  400.00

 165118 1/14/2016 0007929  FEHR PEERS 105021 DEC 2015 PROF SVC/TRANSPORTATION ELEMENT 9,962.13
Total :  9,962.13

 165119 1/14/2016 0006661  FIELD TRAINING OFFICERS, NATIONAL ASSOCIATION OF1744 2016 MEMBERSHIP/SEIM  40.00
Total :  40.00

 165120 1/14/2016 0000954  FIRE CHIEFS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF5991 2016 REGISTRATION/MERRILL  175.00
Total :  175.00

 165121 1/14/2016 0008084  FIRE SEMINAR - SEATTLE 1056 2016 REGISTRATION/MERRILL  800.00
Total :  800.00

 165122 1/14/2016 0000355  FRONTIER 279-1060 2016 PHONE CHARGES  66.22
 64.452016 PHONE SERVICES675-1669
 42.282016 PHONE CHARGES675-5190

2Page:
25



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

3

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165122 1/14/2016 (Continued)0000355  FRONTIER
 64.452016 PHONE CHARGES679-2530

Total :  237.40

 165123 1/14/2016 0002747  GUARDIAN SECURITY 628098 2016 ALARM MONITORING  57.00
Total :  57.00

 165124 1/14/2016 0007709  HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY CWFC08 DEC 2015 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY 354,631.76
 11,771.03DEC 2015 PROF SVC/CLEAN WATER FACILITY PP13

Total :  366,402.79

 165125 1/14/2016 0000396  I-COM 16-Q1-UF-10 1ST QTR 2016/USER FEES  7,469.51
 94,688.931ST QTR 2016/USER FEES16-Q1-UF-2

Total :  102,158.44

 165126 1/14/2016 0005445  ISLAND DEFENSE, PLLC 013 DEC 2015/PUBLIC DEFENSE  10,000.00
Total :  10,000.00

 165127 1/14/2016 0000415  ISLAND DISPOSAL 010416 DEC 2015 RECYCLING  5,833.35
 12,524.14DEC 2015/COLLECTION CHARGES010516

 103.43DEC 2015 ANIMAL SHELTER4212679
Total :  18,460.92

 165128 1/14/2016 0008085  JANSEN, JACOB TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  185.00
Total :  185.00

 165129 1/14/2016 0000979  LES SCHWAB 41400224395 AUTOSOCK PAIR  369.41
Total :  369.41

 165130 1/14/2016 0000530  MAILLIARD'S LANDING NURSERY 109712 TREE TIES  48.92
Total :  48.92

 165131 1/14/2016 0000660  MARKET PLACE FOOD & DRUG 701570 GROCERIES  220.32
Total :  220.32

 165132 1/14/2016 0000587  MOTOR TRUCKS, INC MV126359 LIGHTS  146.78
Total :  146.78

3Page:
26



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

4

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

 165133 1/14/2016 0001041  MUNICIPAL ATTORNEYS, WASHINGTON STATE ASSOC OF1662201-88529587 2016 MEMBERSHIP/LEWIS  15.00
Total :  15.00

 165134 1/14/2016 0000427  MUNICIPAL CLERKS, INTERNATIONAL INST OF29162 MEMBERSHIP RENEWAL/THOMPSON  220.00
Total :  220.00

 165135 1/14/2016 0000612  NELSON PETROLEUM 0572480-IN FUEL  1,496.70
Total :  1,496.70

 165136 1/14/2016 0000600  NORTHWEST CLEAN AIR AGENCY 9618 2016 PER CAPITA FEE  7,679.00
Total :  7,679.00

 165137 1/14/2016 0006855  NORTHWEST YACHTING MAGAZINE 49847 ADVERTISING  574.00
Total :  574.00

 165138 1/14/2016 0000654  NYDAM, HENRY TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  185.00
Total :  185.00

 165139 1/14/2016 0000672  OAK HARBOR ACE 265535 ICESCRAPER  7.37
 2.49COVER265568

 32.59BATTERIES265598
 13.01THREADLOCKER265727
 43.09TUBE/PUMP/ROD265777
 45.16TUBE/RODS265795

Total :  143.71

 165140 1/14/2016 0000668  OAK HARBOR AUTO CENTER 001-261201 QUICK RELEASE  44.52
 15.17AUTOMOTIVE XL VB001-261343
 23.36ELECTRICAL PROD001-261775

Total :  83.05

 165141 1/14/2016 0000673  OAK HARBOR MOTORS 010516 2016 BUSINESS LICENSE REFUND  58.00
Total :  58.00

 165142 1/14/2016 0000693  PACIFIC COAST CONGRESS HARBOR- 2011645 2016 MEMBERSHIP DUES  225.00
Total :  225.00

 165143 1/14/2016 0000748  QUADRANT SYSTEMS, INC 151218 2016 ANNUAL SOFTWARE SUPPORT  2,400.00

4Page:
27



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

5

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  2,400.00 165143 1/14/2016 0000748 0000748  QUADRANT SYSTEMS, INC

 165144 1/14/2016 0000791  SCHEER, KEVIN TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  185.00
Total :  185.00

 165145 1/14/2016 0000809  SENIOR SERVICES OF ISLAND OH012-2015 DEC 2015/SENIOR SERVICES  1,500.00
Total :  1,500.00

 165146 1/14/2016 0000877  SKAGIT VALLEY HERALD 8263189 2016 SUBSCRIPTION RENEWAL  176.80
Total :  176.80

 165147 1/14/2016 0007568  THYSSENKRUPP ELEVATOR CORP 3002326650 1ST QTR 2016/ELEVATOR SERVICE  314.86
Total :  314.86

 165148 1/14/2016 0000287  TYLER TECHNOLOGIES, INC 045-147647 2016 MAINTENANCE SUPPORT  64,895.42
 2,780.452016 CAFR SUPPORT045-148455

Total :  67,675.87

 165149 1/14/2016 0007940  VON GREY, PETER TRAVEL ADVANCE TRAVEL ADVANCE  185.00
Total :  185.00

 165150 1/14/2016 0000953  WASH MUNICIPAL CLERKS ASSOC 01401 REGISTRATION/THOMPSON  425.00
 500.00REGISTRATION/TESCH01402

Total :  925.00

 165151 1/14/2016 0001043  WASHINGTON STATE BAR ASSOC 37884 2016 LICENSING/ESPARZA  415.00
 408.602016 LICENSING/LEWIS39685

Total :  823.60

 165152 1/14/2016 0006853  WEED, GRAAFSTRA & BENSON, INC, LAW OFFICES OF45 DEC 2015/GENERAL  4,841.25
Total :  4,841.25

 165153 1/14/2016 0001000  WHIDBEY AUTO PARTS, INC. 270788 SWIVEL/HOSE  48.82
 18.94FLOOR DRY271126

Total :  67.76

 165154 1/14/2016 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM 3939119 2016 INTERNET SERVICES  42.07
 65.88JAN 2016/ALARM MONITORING3942022

5Page:
28



01/13/2016

Voucher List

City of Oak Harbor

6

 4:15:14PM

Page:vchlist

Bank code : bank

Voucher Date Vendor Invoice PO # Description/Account Amount

(Continued) Total :  107.95 165154 1/14/2016 0001010 0001010  WHIDBEY TELECOM

 165155 1/14/2016 0001611  WICKLANDER ZULAWSKI & 1712258-88245117 2016 REGISTRATIONS  1,215.00
Total :  1,215.00

 165156 1/14/2016 0003045  ZOLL DATA SYSTEMS 9021222 2016 SOFTWARE MAINTENANCE  1,369.62
Total :  1,369.62

Bank total :  1,198,342.68 57 Vouchers for bank code : bank

 1,198,342.68Total vouchers :Vouchers in this report 57

6Page:
29



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held January 5, 2016, 
and the Special Council Meeting 
on January 12, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.b
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Minutes of the Regular Council 
Meeting held January 5, 2016, 
and the Special Council Meeting 
on January 12, 2016

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Review and Approve Minutes as presented.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. January 5, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. January 12, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. January 5, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
2. January 12, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes

30

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452621753_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452708754_at.pdf


 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Regular Meeting Minutes 

January 5, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
 
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Engineer Joe Stowell 
Councilmember Jim Campbell Project Engineer Brett Arvidson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Chief of Fire Ray Merrill 
 Chief of Police Ed Green 
 Economic Development Coordinator Barbara Spohn 
 Executive Assistant to Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
 Deputy City Clerk Nicole Tesch 
 

 
CALL TO ORDER 

 
Mayor Bob Severns provided the invocation, and then led the led the pledge of allegiance. 
 
 

APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Joel Servatius moved to approve the Agenda as presented, motion 

seconded by Councilmember Beth Munns, and the motion was unanimously approved. 
 

PRESENTATIONS 
 
Honors and Recognition 
 
Police Chief Ed Green presented the Life Saving Award to Police Officer Nordstrand.  Officer 
Nordstrand received a standing ovation.   
 
Mayor Severns requested a recess 6:07 p.m.  
 
Mayor Severns reconvened the meeting back into session at 6:10 p.m.  
 
 
 

CITIZEN COMMENT PERIOD 

31



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
Mayor Bob Severns opened the Citizen Comment Period at 6:10 p.m. 
 
Citizens Speaking 
 
 Christine Cribb, Oak Harbor Chamber of Commerce  
  
After all comments were provided, the Citizen Comment period was closed at 6:12 p.m. 
 

CONSENT AGENDA 
 

a. Minutes of the Regular City Council Meeting held on December 15, 2015, and Work-
shop Meeting on December 16, 2015 

b. Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Check Numbers 
c. Resolution 16-01: OHPD Master Fee Schedule 
d. Whatcom County Mini-Chain Agreement 
e. Perkins Coie Engagement Letter for 2016 Legal Counsel for the Clean Water Facility  
f.   Contract Amendment with Guardian Security Alarm Systems   

 
 
Motion:   Councilmember Almberg moved to approve Consent Agenda Items as presented,  

    motion seconded by Councilmember Servatius, motion passed by unanimous vote.  
 
 

STAFF, MAYOR & COUNCIL COMMENTS 
 

City Administrator 
 
Selection of Mayor Pro Tempore 
 
Dr. Merriman presented and discussion among City Council members ensued.  
 
Motion:   Councilmember Munns moved to appoint Councilmember Paggao to as Mayor Pro  

    Tem for a two-year period.  Motion seconded by Councilmember Almberg and the  
    motion passed unanimously.   

 
Approve 2016 City Council Workshop Schedule 
 
Dr. Merriman presented, and discussion among City Council members ensued.  
 
Motion:  Councilmember Munns moved to accept the 2016 Council Workshop Schedule as  

   recommended by Staff. (Fourth Wednesday of each month from 3:00 - 5:00 p.m., and  
   meeting on the Third Wednesday from 3:00 - 5:00 p.m. during the months of January,  
   June, November, and December) The Motion was seconded by Councilmember  
   Hizon, unanimously approved. 
  

Clean Water Facility Project Update by City Staff 
 
City Engineer Joe Stowell provided the Council with an update on the Clean Water Facility  
Project.   

32



 
Regular Meeting Minutes – January 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 
2016 Whidbey Island Marathon Update by Race Director  
 
Jason Wayne of the Elks Lodge presented updates to Council regarding the 2016 Whidbey Is-
land Marathon.  
 
 
Mayor 
 
Mayor Bob Severns discussed how he is beginning to renew relationships with local partners 
and read an article in regards to the Mt. Baker rescue from the NAS Whidbey rescue team.   
 
Councilmembers 
 
Mayor Pro Tem Paggao wished all citizens a Happy New Year. 
 
Councilmember Campbell is unable to attend to attend the Council Member trip in March, reser-
vations have been cancelled and his spot is available for someone else to attend.  He also 
commented on the lack of the homes in the area with the anticipated amount in population due 
to the    
 
Councilmember Munns didn’t have any comments.   
 
Councilmember Almberg commented that Island Transit just completed the 2014 Audit with no 
findings at the pre-exit conference.  Next month, Island Transit will be opening the Executive 
Director Position.  
 
Councilmember Servatius mentioned that the Windjammer Park Committee is still looking for 
committee members and the due date for those interested has been extended to January 8, 
2016.  Councilmember Servatius also participated in an active shooter training and shared his 
experience.   
 
Councilmember Hizon reminded citizens that the drop box for prescription drugs is located in 
the lobby of the police department. 
 

ORDINANCES & RESOLUTIONS 
 
Resolution 16-02:  2016 Legislative Priorities  
Dr. Merriman, City Administrator, provided the staff report and presented the Legislative Priori-
ties in 2016.  
 
Marketing Package will be created to be presented to Legislators with more description on the 
City’s top legislative priorities.      
 
Mayor Severns opened the item for public comment at 6:51 p.m., no public comments were giv-
en.  The period closed at 6:51 p.m. 
 
Councilmembers discussed Legislative Priorities. Councilmember Almberg suggested verbiage 
in regards to the marina as follows: 
 

33



Regular Meeting Minutes – January 5, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 

Support a legislative effort to extend the DNR and COH Lease for the Marina for another 
10 years and zero lease fee.  In addition, support a legislative action to treat city owned 
marinas the same as Port District by DNR. 

Resolution 16-02:  2016 Legislative Priorities will be further discussed at the January 12, 2016 
workshop and a revised version with recommendations will be available for review.       

REPORTS & ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION 

Appoint Councilmember to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to serve as Chair 

Dr. Merriman presented and discussion among City Council members ensued. 

Appoint Councilmember to the Lodging Tax Advisory Committee to serve as Chair 

Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to appoint Councilmember Munns to serve as Chair 
  of the Lodging Tax Advisory committee for a three (3) year term.  Motion seconded by 
  Councilmember Servatius, unanimously approved.  

Appoint Councilmember to serve on the Board of Island Transit for a 1-year term 

Appoint Councilmember to serve on the Board of Island Transit for a 1-year term 

Motion:  Councilmember Paggao moved to appoint Councilmember Almberg to serve on the 
  Board of Island Transit for a one (1) year term.  Motion seconded by Councilmember 
  Campbell, unanimously approved.  

ADJOURN 

Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Campbell, 
   unanimously approved. 

Meeting adjourned at 7:10 p.m. 

Nicole A. Tesch, Deputy City Clerk 

34



 
Special Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

 Oak Harbor City Council  
Special Meeting Minutes 

January 12, 2016 
 

CALL TO ORDER 
 
Mayor Bob Severns called the meeting to order at 3:00 p.m. 

 
ROLL CALL 

   
 
City Council Present: Staff Present: 
Mayor Bob Severns  City Administrator/Finance Director Dr. Merriman 
Mayor Pro Tem Danny Paggao City Attorney Nikki Esparza 
Councilmember Tara Hizon  Public Works Director Cathy Rosen 
Councilmember Beth Munns Development Services Director Steve Powers 
Councilmember Rick Almberg City Administrator Executive Assistant Nicole Tesch 
Councilmember Jim Campbell City Clerk Anna Thompson 
Councilmember Joel Servatius Executive Assistant to the Mayor Kellye Mazzoli 
  
 

1.  Resolution 16-02: 2016 Legislative Priorities 
 

City Administrator Dr. Merriman provided the staff report. 
 
Comments from City Council. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Servatius moved to adopt Resolution 16-02, seconded by  

   Councilmember Munns, unanimously approved. 
 

2.  Review Council Vacancy Applications & Create a List of Qualified Applicants to 
be Interviewed at the January 19, 2016 City Council Meeting 

 
City Administrator Dr. Merriman introduced this item for discussion and possible action. 
 
Councilmembers discussed the qualified applicants:  Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, Aaron 
Taggert, William (Skip) Pohtilla and John Morrison.  
 

All Applicants meet the eligibility requirements under Revised Code of Washington (RCW) 
35A.12.030 to serve as a City Councilmember. The requirements are that 1) the candidate is a 
registered voter of the City at the time of filing the candidacy application, and 2) has been a res-
ident within the Oak Harbor City Limits for one (1) year preceding taking office.  

The Council cast a straw vote of their top three candidates as follows: 
 

- Erica Wasinger:  5 votes  
o Councilmembers Servatius, Paggao, Hizon, Almberg, Munns 

 
 

35



 
Special Meeting Minutes – January 12, 2016 
Page 4 of 4 
 

- Jes Walker-Wyse:  5 votes  
o Councilmembers Paggao, Campbell, Hizon, Almberg, Munns 

 
- Aaron Taggert:  2 votes 

o Councilmembers Servatius and Hizon 
 

- William (Skip) Pohtilla:  5 votes 
o Councilmembers Servatius, Paggao, Campbell, Almberg, Munns 

 
- John Morrison:  1 vote 

o Councilmember Campbell 
 
Top three Candidates as result of vote:  Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, and William (Skip) 
Pohtilla. 
 
Motion:  Councilmember Almberg moved to go forward with the 3 top candidates [Erica  

   Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, William (Skip) Pohtilla] for final interview at our next  
   Council Meeting [January 19, 2016]. Motion second by Councilmember Servatius,     
   unanimously approved.  

 
3.  Adjournment 

 
Motion:  Councilmember Campbell moved to adjourn, seconded by Councilmember Hizon,  

   unanimously approved.   
 
 
Meeting adjourned at 3:23 p.m. 
            

Anna M. Thompson, City Clerk 

36



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Ordinance 1755: Amending 
OHMC 2.390 regarding 
contract authority

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1755 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.390 entitled "Contract 
Authority".

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into contracts for up to 
$30,000.  In 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited the contract authority of the Mayor 
and Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.c
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Ordinance 1755: Amending 
OHMC 2.390 regarding 
contract authority

FROM: Dr. Doug Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Ordinance No. 1755 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.390 entitled "Contract 
Authority".

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into contracts for up to 
$30,000.  In 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited the contract authority of the Mayor 
and Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal and Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal
emergency has been lifted by City Council.  Raising the contract authority back to the $30,000 cap 
would increase efficiencies and provide for timely procurement of goods and services.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1755

and Department Heads to $10,000.  Some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal 
emergency has been lifted by City Council.  Raising the contract authority back to the $30,000 cap 
would increase efficiencies and provide for timely procurement of goods and services.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Ordinance No. 1755

37

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452622698_at.pdf


 
Ordinance No. 1755 amending OHMC 2.390 - 1 
 

ORDINANCE NO. 1755 

 

AN ORDINANCE OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING OAK HARBOR 
MUNICIPAL CODE CHAPTER 2.390 REGARDING CONTRACT AUTHORITY 
 
WHEREAS, prior to 2012, the Mayor and Department Heads had the authority to enter into 
contracts for up to $30,000; and   
 
WHEREAS, in 2012, Council declared a fiscal emergency and limited the contract authority of 
the Mayor and Department Heads to $10,000; and  
 
WHEREAS, some economic recovery has occurred and the declaration of fiscal emergency has 
been lifted by City Council; and  

WHEREAS, raising the contract authority back to the $30,000 cap would increase efficiencies 
and provide for timely procurement of goods and services; 

NOW, THEREFORE, 

THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR do ordain as follows: 

Section One.  Oak Harbor Municipal Code Chapter 2.390 entitled "Contract Authority" last 
amended by Ordinance No. 1629 (2012) is hereby amended to read as follows: 

Chapter 2.390 
CONTRACT AUTHORITY 

Sections: 
2.390.010    Council approval. 
2.390.020    Mayor’s authority to contract. 
2.390.030    City administrator’s authority to contract. 
2.390.040    Departmental authority to contract. 
2.390.050    Contracts exceeding one year or the limit of the biennial budget. 
2.390.060    Records and reporting of contracts. 
2.390.070    Aggregation of purchase authority. 
 

2.390.010 Council approval.  Unless otherwise authorized or directed by law, ordinance or 
council resolution (for example, responding to an emergency), all contracts over $10,00030,000 
require council approval. 
 
2.390.020 Mayor’s authority to contract.  The mayor shall, subject to budgetary restrictions, 
and the conditions and exceptions stated in Chapter 2.310 OHMC through this chapter, 
regulation, procedures adopted by the mayor and state law, make purchases of materials, 
supplies, equipment and services and contract for public works and enter into contracts or 

38



 
Ordinance No. 1755 amending OHMC 2.390 - 2 
 

purchase orders for the same in amounts up to $10,00030,000 without prior council approval so 
long as the same is within the fund budget; provided, that this restriction does not apply to 
emergencies or market conditions as defined by state law so long as the conditions and 
procedures therein imposed are followed for exercise of these powers. 
 
2.390.030 City administrator’s authority to contract.  The city administrator shall, subject to 
the mayor’s direction and control, budgetary restrictions, and the conditions and exceptions 
stated in Chapter 2.310 OHMC through this chapter, regulation, procedures promulgated by the 
mayor and state law, make purchases of materials, supplies, equipment and services and enter 
into contracts or purchase orders for the same in amounts up to $10,00030,000 without prior 
council approval so long as the same is within the fund budget.  
 
2.390.040 Departmental authority to contract. Each department director shall, subject to the 
mayor’s direction and control, budgetary restrictions, and the conditions and exceptions stated in 
Chapter 2.310 OHMC through this chapter, regulation, procedures adopted by the mayor and 
state law, make purchases of materials, supplies and equipment and enter into contracts or 
purchase orders for the same in amounts up to $10,00030,000 without prior council approval. 
 
2.390.050 Contracts exceeding one year or the limit of the biennial budget.  Authorizations 
under this chapter shall not authorize contracts to be made by the mayor, city administrator or 
department director which exceed one year in length or exceed the end of the term of the biennial 
budget in which contract is made, whichever is longer, unless the same is terminable by 30 days’ 
notice or less without penalty and payments are prorated monthly or based on effort expended or 
goods supplied.  
 
2.390.060 Records and reporting of contracts.  The department director, city administrator or 
mayor making a contract made without specific prior council approval pursuant to the 
authorizations in this chapter or under other law, ordinance or resolution shall immediately 
document the same and advise the finance director. In addition, a report of the contracting shall 
be made to the city council. The report can be by agenda item or separate report in a form 
determined appropriate to provide information to the council. This provision does not apply to 
purchase of supplies, materials and equipment since these are normally reported through the 
accounts payable system. 
 
2.390.070 Aggregation of purchase authority.  No contract shall be authorized by more than 
one person such that individual spending authorities are aggregated to exceed the $10,00030,000 
amount requiring city council approval. 
 
Section Two.  Severability.  If any provision of this Ordinance or its application to any person or 
circumstance is held invalid, the remainder or the Ordinance or the application of the provision 
to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 
 
// 
 
// 
 

39



 
Ordinance No. 1755 amending OHMC 2.390 - 3 
 

Section Three.  Effective Date.  This Ordinance shall be in full force and effect five (5) days 
after publication. 
 
PASSED by the City Council this _______ day of ___________________, 2016. 
 
       THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
   Veto   (    ) 
   Approve (     ) 
       By       
        Robert Severns, Mayor 
 
       Dated:        
 
Attest: 
 
 
       
Anna Thompson, City Clerk 
 
Approved as to Form: 
 
 
       
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
Published:        
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\Contract Authority OHMC 2.390 -- Ordinance 1755.docx 

40



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-03: Accepting of 
"Founders" Memorial at 
Windjammer Park at City Beach 
Street

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

FROM: Cac Kamak, Senior Planner

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with Artist Rick Nash and Donor 
Sue Karahalios to accept the Founders’ Memorial sculpture to be located in Windjammer Park adjacent
to City Beach Street.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.d
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-03: Accepting of 
"Founders" Memorial at 
Windjammer Park at City Beach 
Street

FROM: Doug Merriman, City Administrator

FROM: Cac Kamak, Senior Planner

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the resolution authorizing the Mayor to enter into a contract with Artist Rick Nash and Donor 
Sue Karahalios to accept the Founders’ Memorial sculpture to be located in Windjammer Park adjacent 
to City Beach Street.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATIONBACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This is a re-introduction of the Founders memorial proposed to be located at the end of City Beach 
Street in Windjammer Park.  The proposal was initially made in 2010.  An extension of the contract was 
approved in December 2012 for two years.  The project was on hold for a brief period of time due to the 
archaeological and cultural resources discovered on Pioneer Way and its perceived sensitive nature with
the Founders proposal.  The donor and the artist are now pushing forward to complete this project.

The Arts Commission reviewed this proposal at its August 10, 2015 meeting and have endorsed the 
proposal (minutes attached).  The Arts Commission asked the proponents to explore increasing the scale 
of the sculpture.  The donors indicated that an increase in scale will be dependent on the amount of funds 
that will be raised.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The Council has authority under 35A.11.020 to regulate its internal affairs, to provide for the 
improvement and beautification of public ways, and to render local, social and cultural services.

FISCAL IMPACT

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This is a re-introduction of the Founders memorial proposed to be located at the end of City Beach 
Street in Windjammer Park.  The proposal was initially made in 2010.  An extension of the contract was 
approved in December 2012 for two years.  The project was on hold for a brief period of time due to the 
archaeological and cultural resources discovered on Pioneer Way and its perceived sensitive nature with 
the Founders proposal.  The donor and the artist are now pushing forward to complete this project.

The Arts Commission reviewed this proposal at its August 10, 2015 meeting and have endorsed the 
proposal (minutes attached).  The Arts Commission asked the proponents to explore increasing the scale 
of the sculpture.  The donors indicated that an increase in scale will be dependent on the amount of funds 
that will be raised.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
The Council has authority under 35A.11.020 to regulate its internal affairs, to provide for the 
improvement and beautification of public ways, and to render local, social and cultural services.

FISCAL IMPACT

41



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: None requested at this time.  It is a donation.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

The City Council was updated on this proposal at its October 28th workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-03
2. Contract with proponents
3. 2012 Resolution on extension
4. August 10, 2015 Arts Commission minutes regarding proposal

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: None requested at this time.  It is a donation.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

The City Council was updated on this proposal at its October 28th workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution 16-03
2. Contract with proponents
3. 2012 Resolution on extension
4. August 10, 2015 Arts Commission minutes regarding proposal

42

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452809234_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452806811_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=14528068111_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452806812_at.pdf


CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-03 

 
A RESOLUTION BY THE CITY COUNCIL OF OAK HARBOR AUTHORIZ- 
ING THE ACCEPTANCE OF PUBLIC ART KNOWN AS THE “FOUNDERS”, 
CREATED BY ARTIST RICHARD NASH 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds that public artistic expression of all kinds enhance the historical, 
cultural, economic, educational and social life of the community and benefits the health and 
welfare of the City’s residence; and 

 
WHEREAS, the City finds it appropriate, necessary, and desirable to promote and support public 
experiences of the visual arts and artistic disciplines for the good of the citizens of Oak Harbor; 
and 

 
WHEREAS, the Arts Commission was created on October 18, 2005, as an advisory body to the 
Mayor and the City Council to foster arts and cultural programs, foster the development of a lo- 
cal arts community, encourage an environment for the success of working artists and further the 
vision of Oak Harbor as a vibrant and progressive community; and 

 
WHEREAS, the Arts Commission reviewed the art piece known as “Founders” by artist Richard 
Nash proposed for Windjammer Park at the terminus of City Beach Street and has recommended 
approval; and 

 
WHEREAS, the artist Richard Nash wishes to donate his time and effort for the “Founders” and 
Sue Karahalios wishes to raise funds for the sculpture and other expenses related to the art; and 

 
NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor, 
Washington, the Mayor is authorized to negotiate, through a professional services agreement and 
upon the completion of acquisition of funding, the commissioning and acquisition of the 
“Founders”, created by artist Richard Nash and donated by Sue Karahalios, to be located in 
Windjammer Park. 

 
PASSED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor and approved by its Mayor this 19th day 
of January 2016. 

 
 

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 

 

BOB SEVERNS, MAYOR 
 
 
Attest: Approved as to Form: 

 
 

  

Anna Thompson, City Clerk Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
 
 
RESOLUTION 16-03 – Page 1 of 1 ATTACHMENT 1 43



ATTACHMENT 244



ATTACHMENT 245



ATTACHMENT 246



ATTACHMENT 247



ATTACHMENT 248



ATTACHMENT 249



ATTACHMENT 250



ATTACHMENT 251



ATTACHMENT 252



ATTACHMENT 253



ATTACHMENT 254



ATTACHMENT 255



ATTACHMENT 256



ATTACHMENT 257



ATTACHMENT 258



ATTACHMENT 259



ATTACHMENT 260



ATTACHMENT 261



ATTACHMENT 362



ATTACHMENT 363



ATTACHMENT 364



ATTACHMENT 365



ATTACHMENT 366



Commission Meeting 
Monday, August 11, 2015 
Oak Harbor City Hall, upstairs conference room 
In Attendance: 
Chair: Skip Pohtilla; Commissioners: Rick Lawler, Nora O’Connell-Balda, Kit Christopherson, John Pendleton;  
Staff: Cac Kamak 
 

• Meeting Notes – The meeting notes from the July 13, 2015 meeting were approved. 
 

• Public Comment – No comments 
 

• Founders Sculpture – Sue Karahalios and Rick Nash addressed the commission on the Founders 
sculpture that the City Council approved a few years ago and followed up shortly a two year 
extension.  The project had been on hold and is being reconsidered.  Sue Karahalios mentioned that 
the delay was due to the sensitivity around the cultural resources discovered in Pioneer Way 
reconstruction.  Sue mentioned that prices have gone up since the original proposal.  Rick Nash 
talked about the non-representational style of the sculpture and the quality of corten steel as a 
material.  They mentioned that they will take advantage of the power extension as part of the outfall 
project.  Superior System will be casting the piece and delivering it to the site.  Commissioner Kit 
enquired if the scale of the structure.  Rick mentioned that the costs would go up with the size. There 
were discussions on the footing and the base of the sculpture and concerns on wheelchair 
accessibility and avoiding sudden fall offs due to the terrain.  Commissioner Skip mentioned that he 
would like to explore scaling up the sculpture or raising the foundation.  Commissioner John asked 
about the connection, if any, between the recently approved Barringtons and the Founder’s 
sculpture.  Sue mentioned the history of the founders and about the plaque that honors them is 
currently at Windjammer Park and this proposals connection to it, while the Barringtons were 
important in the development of Old Town.  Sue is asking the Arts Commission to endorse the project 
to move it forward.  Commissioner Nora made a motion to endorse the proposal and Commissioner 
Kit seconded it.  

• Farmer’s Market Site – Cac reported that making a mock-up of the sculpture will be approximately 
$750.  The Arts Commission thought that it’s a good idea to get a mock up made so that the 
Commission can collect and provide feedback to the artist. Cac also mentioned that a sight analysis is 
being done at that intersection to assure that the sculpture will not be blocking any sight lines. 

• Driftwood Day – Cac mentioned that the postcards have arrived and the special events permit was 
approved.  Hank needs to be contacted for the tent, tables, chairs, PA system, A frames etc.  Skip 
mentioned that the banners are being updated with the dates.  Skip will contact Carl Fruend to install 
banner along SR 20.  The Commission decided to meet at the boat ramp at 9am. 

• New Business – The Commission discussed beautifying trash cans in the city.  Nora mentioned that 
some cities have soup cans and that something similar would be good near Whidbey Coffee on 
Pioneer Way.  Commissioner Kit mentioned that UK had a similar project where the trash can made a 
sound everytime which encouraged people to use it.   
 

• Meeting adjourned. 
 

ATTACHMENT 467



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-04: Amending the 
Master Fee Schedules for 
Development Services, Finance 
& Utility, Oak Harbor Fire 
Department and Public Works.

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 16-04 amending the Master Fee Schedule for Development Services,  Finance &
Utility, Oak Harbor Fire Department and Public Works.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & Utility and the Oak Harbor Fire

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.e
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-04: Amending the 
Master Fee Schedules for 
Development Services, Finance 
& Utility, Oak Harbor Fire 
Department and Public Works.

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Adopt Resolution No. 16-04 amending the Master Fee Schedule for Development Services,  Finance & 
Utility, Oak Harbor Fire Department and Public Works.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & Utility and the Oak Harbor FireThe Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & Utility and the Oak Harbor Fire 
Department were last updated by Resolution No. 15-11 passed on April 7, 2015.  The Master Fee 
Schedule for Public Works was last updated by Resolution No. 15-17 passed on June 2, 2015.

Various City departments update their fee schedules annually to account for changes in the CPIU.  
Attached is an updated Master Fee Schedule incorporating any necessary changes in the various 
schedules.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-04
2. Schedule A - Development Services Master Fee Schedule
3. Schedule B - Finance & Utility Master Fee Schedule
4. Schedule C - Oak Harbor Fire Department Master Fee Schedule

The Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & Utility and the Oak Harbor Fire 
Department were last updated by Resolution No. 15-11 passed on April 7, 2015.  The Master Fee 
Schedule for Public Works was last updated by Resolution No. 15-17 passed on June 2, 2015.

Various City departments update their fee schedules annually to account for changes in the CPIU.  
Attached is an updated Master Fee Schedule incorporating any necessary changes in the various 
schedules.  

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Resolution No. 16-04
2. Schedule A - Development Services Master Fee Schedule
3. Schedule B - Finance & Utility Master Fee Schedule
4. Schedule C - Oak Harbor Fire Department Master Fee Schedule

68

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452798364_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452553460_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452796959_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452553497_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452618733_at.pdf


5. Schedule F - Public Works Master Fee Schedule5. Schedule F - Public Works Master Fee Schedule

69

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452618733_at.pdf


Resolution No. 16-04: Development Services, Finance and 
Utility, OHFD and Public Works Master Fee Schedule Resolution 

 
RESOLUTION NO. 16-04 

 
A RESOLUTION OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR AMENDING 
SCHEDULE A (DEVELOPMENT SERVICES – LAND DEVELOPMENT AND 
BUILDING), SCHEDULE B  (FINANCE & UTILITY), SCHEDULE C (FIRE 
DEPARTMENT) AND SCHEDULE F (PUBLIC WORKS) OF THE MASTER 
FEE SCHEDULE 
 
NOW, THEREFORE BE IT RESOLVED by the City Council of the City of Oak Harbor 
as follows: 
 
1. Adoption of the Oak Harbor Police Department Master Fee Schedule.  The City 

hereby adopts by reference and incorporates herein the attached Master Fee 
Schedules for Development Services - Land Development and Building (Schedule 
A), Finance & Utility (Schedule B), Oak Harbor Fire Department (Schedule C), 
and Public Works (Schedule F) setting the fees, rates, deposits, and other charges.  
The attached Master Fee Schedule for Development Services (Land Development 
and Building) replaces Schedule A of the Master Fee Schedule that was adopted 
by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015.  The attached Master Fee Schedule for 
Finance & Utility replaces Schedule B of the Master Fee Schedule that was 
adopted by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015.  The attached Master Fee 
Schedule for the Oak Harbor Fire Department replaces Schedule C of the Master 
Fee Schedule that was adopted by Resolution No. 15-11 on April 7, 2015.  The 
attached Master Fee Schedule for Public Works replaces Schedule F of the Master 
Fee Schedule that was adopted by Resolution No. 15-17 on June 2, 2015. 

 
2. Severability.  If any provision of this Resolution or its application to any person 

or circumstances is held invalid, the remainder of the Resolution or the 
application of the provision to other persons or circumstances is not affected. 

 
3. Effective Date.  This Resolution shall be in full force and effect immediately. 

 
PASSED by the City Council and approved by its Mayor this ______ day of January, 
2016.         

CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
__________________________ 

      ROBERT SEVERNS, MAYOR 
 
Attest:       Approved as to form: 
 
___________________________  _______________________________ 
Anna Thompson, City Clerk   Nikki Esparza, City Attorney 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule Resolution No 16-04   1-19-16.docx 

70



1 
 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
DEVELOPMENT SERVICES 

 
LAND DEVELOPMENT 

Chapter 3.63 IMPACT FEES FEE 
3.63.020 Payment and amount of park impact fees by 

subdivider. 
• Park impact fee: 
  - Single-family residence lot 
  
 - Multiple-family, mobile home or modular 
home lot as computed in the appendix 

 
 
 
$1,673.00 (Reduced to 
$836.50 until 2/17/16) 
$1,344.00 (Reduced to 
$672.00 until 2/17/16) 

3.63.030 Payment and amount of park impact fees. 
• Park impact fee: 
  - Single-family residence lot 
  
 - Multiple-family, mobile home or modular 
home lot as computed in the appendix 

 
 
$1,673.00 (Reduced to 
$836.50 until 2/17/16) 
$1,344.00 (Reduced to 
$672.00 until 2/17/16) 

3.63.065(3) Payment and amount of transportation impact 
fees for development activities. 
• Transportation impact fee per peak hour 
generated for: 
  - Nonresidential activities 
  - Residential unit developed 

 
 
 
 
$589.00  
$907.00 (Reduced to 
$453.50 until 2/17/16) 

3.63.090(3) Appeals. 
• Impact fee 

 
$400.00 

Chapter 3.64 FEE SCHEDULE FEE 
3.64.040(1)(a) SEPA. 

• Written confirmation of exemption 
 
$77.00 

3.64.040(1)(b)(i) SEPA. 
• Base fee for submittal of environmental 
checklist 

 
$314.00 

3.64.040(1)(b)(ii) SEPA. 
• Fee if DNS issued that requires public notice 

 
$234.00 

3.64.040(1)(c)(i) SEPA. 
• Submittal of preliminary draft EIS 

 
$3,230.003,233.00 

3.64.040(d) SEPA.   
• Detailed environmental study review 

 
$250.00 

71



2 
 

3.64.505 
 

Fees applicable to all land use development 
processes. 
• Additional notice because of changes or 
additions to the project initiated by the 
applicant or where improper notice has been 
posted by the applicant 
• Additional publication required because of 
changes or additions initiated by the applicant 
• Alternate security approval in lieu of a bond 
• Application for annexation 
 
• Appeals of administrative decisions by non-
elected city officials 
• Development agreement 
 
 
• Interpretation of land use code 
 
• Other unspecified development permit fees 
under OHMC Titles 2, 8, 11, 12, 13, 14, 16, 
17, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 22. 
• Joint use agreement for parking 
• Penalty permit fee 
 
• Time extensions for land use development 
permits under Titles 16, 18, 19, 20, 21 and 22: 
  - Administrative action 
  - Site plan approval (not in OHMC) 
  - Final plat approval 
 
  -  Other actions requiring council or hearing 
examiner approval 

 
 
$77.00 
 
 
 
$77.00 
 
$155.00 
$2,339.002,341.00 and 
$155.00 per acre 
$323.00 
 
$392.00 plus $77.00 
per hour of staff time 
over 6 hours 
$392.00 plus $60.00 
per hour 
$308.00 
 
 
$308.00 
Two times the normal 
fee for a permit fee. 
 
 
$155.00 
$155.00 
$392.00 plus cost of 
publishing notices 
$392.00 plus cost of 
publishing notices 

3.64.510(1) Streets – Concurrency test fee. 
• Application fee for concurrency test or 
traffic impact analysis 

 
$308.00 

3.64.510(4) Street vacation. 
• Street vacation fee 

 
$664.00665.00 

3.64.515 Street opening permit fees. 
• First 100 linear feet 
• Each additional foot, over 100 linear feet 
• Openings each Curb cut 
• Openings each fire hydrant 

 
$77.00 
$0.18/LFT 
$39.00 
$39.00 

3.64.520 Utility code permit development fees. 
• LID agreement approval 
• Utility reimbursement agreements 
 
 
 

 
$233.00 
$150.00  

72



3 
 

3.64.525 Water utility connection fees. 
• Extend or repair of water line from property 
line to building 
• Extend or repair of water line from water 
main to property line. 
•Making a change to an existing line 
•Making an opening in a public water main 
(tap/connection) 

 
$77.00 per inspection 
 
$77.00 per inspection 
 
$77.00 
$39.00 per opening 
 

3.64.530 Sewer permit fees. 
•Extending a side sewer from sewer main to 
property line (OHMC 14.03.130). 
•Extending a side sewer from the property line 
to building (building sewer) (OHMC 
14.03.130). 
•Inspection fee/Cleaning 
•Inspection fee/Cameraing 
•Inspection fee/Dumping of sewage 
(contaminated waste) 
•Storm Controlled Device (not in OHMC) 
•Installing a grease trap or interceptor (OHMC 
14.03.130) 
•Making a change to an existing line (OHMC 
14.03.130) 
•Making an opening in a public sewer 
(OHMC 14.03.130) 
•Multiresidential, add for each dwelling unit 
over one up to 20 units (OHMC 14.03.130) 

 
$77.00 
 
$77.00 
 
 
$0.63 per foot 
$0.63 per foot 
$105.00 per ton 
 
$35.00 per ton 
$0.00 
 
$77.00 
 
$77.00 
 
$24.00 
 

3.64.535(3) Building code and miscellaneous development 
permit fees.  
Grading Permits 
50 cubic yds or less 
Plan review 
Permit fee 
51 to 100 cubic yds 
Plan review 
Permit fee 
101 to 1,000 cubic yds 
Plan review 
Permit fee 
First 100 cubic yds 
Each additional 100 cubic yds 
1,001 to 10,000 cubic yds 
Plan review 
Permit fee 
First 1,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 1,000 cubic yds 
 
 

 
 
 
 
No fee 
$23.50 
 
$23.50 
$37.00 
 
$37.00 
 
$37.00 
$17.50 
 
$49.25 
 
$194.50 
$14.50 
 
 

73



4 
 

10,001 to 100,000 cubic yds 
Plan review 
First 10,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 10,000 cubic yds 
Permit fee 
First 10,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 10,000 cubic yds 
100,001 to 200,000 cubic yds 
Plan Review 
First 100,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 10,000 cubic yds 
Permit fee (100,001 cubic yds or more) 
First 100,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 10,000 cubic yds 
200,001 cubic yds or more 
Plan review 
First 200,000 cubic yds 
Each additional 10,000 cubic yds 
Permit fee (see above) 

 
 
$49.25 
$24.50 
 
$325.00 
$66.00 
 
 
$269.75 
$13.25 
 
$919.00 
$36.50 
 
 
$402.25 
$7.25 

3.64.545 Zoning permit fees. 
•Accessory dwelling permit 
•Comprehensive plan change: 
  -Pre-Application fee 
  -Application fee 
•Conditional Uses: 

(a) Residentially zoned property and 
single-family use in other zones 

(b) All other zones unless use is single-
family 

•Home Occupation review 
•Land clearing permit: 
   - Application 
   - Land clearing plan time extension 
   - Permit exemption 
   - Land clearing permit – Minor 
•Landscape alternative compliance 
•Landscape plan review 
•Planned Business Park (PBP) Approval 
  -Pre-Application  
  -Preliminary Approval 
 
  -Final Approval 
 
•Planned Industrial Park (PIP) Approval 
  -Pre-Application  
  -Application fee 
 
 

 
$308.00 
 
$392.00 
$1,560.001,562.00 
 
$392.00 
 
$779.00780.00 
 
$0.00 
 
$308.00 
$155.00 
$0.00 
$0.00 
$308.00 
$308.00 
 
$392.00 
$1,560.001,562.00 + 
$77.00/acre 
$764.00 + $39.00/acre 
 
 
$392.00 
$1,560.001,562.00 + 
$77.00/acre 
 

74



5 
 

•Planned Residential Development (PRD) 
Approval 
  -Pre-Application 
  -Application Approval 
 
 
•Pre-Application fee 
 
•Rezones – Map amendments: 

(a) Up to one-half acre in size or to correct 
split zoning on individual parcels; 
provided, the costs of publication shall 
be reimbursed if not used; and further 
provided, that the cost of publishing 
the rezone ordinance need not be paid 
until the council passes the ordinance 

(b) Up to 10 acres in size 
 

(c) Over 10 acres in size 
 
•Temporary use permit 
•Text amendment to the zoning code 
•Variance from zoning code requirements: 

(a) Type II process – Residentially zoned 
property and single-family use in other 
zones 

(b) Type III process – All other zones 
unless use is single-family 

(c) Administrative 
•Zoning request for letter regarding zoning 
requirements for a particular site 

 
 
$392.00 
$1,560.00 + 
$77.00/acre 
 
$392.00 
 
 
$780.00781.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
$2,339.002,341.00 
plus $155.00 per acre 
$2,287.002,289.00 
plus $155.00 per acre 
$22.00 
$1,559.001,561.00 
 
$392.00 
 
 
$779.00780.00 
 
$114.00 
$27.00 

3.64.550 
 

Shoreline master program permit fees. 
•Shoreline substantial master program 
amendment 
•Shoreline substantial development permit, 
conditional use or variance: 

(a) Administrative review 
(b) Project value of up to $100,000 as 

determined by the building official 
(c) Project value of over $100,000 as 

determined by the building official 
(*See code section for further 
explanation.) 
 
 

(d)  Permit revision  
(e)  Permit exempt review letter 
 

 
$3,450.003,453.00 
 
 
 
$392.00 
$1,560.001,562.00 
 
$1,560.001,562.00 
plus $760.00761.00 
for every $100,000 
over $100,000 or 
portion thereof 
increased in value. 
$392.00 
$77.00 

75



6 
 

3.64.555 Site plan fees. 
• Review Process 1 preapplication fee 
• Review Process 1 application fee (if went 
through preapplication process) 
• Review Process 1 application fee (if did not 
go through preapplication process) 
• Review Process 2 and 4 preapplication fee 
(fee subtracted from 1% taken at time of site 
plan application)  
• Site Plan Application Submittal for Review 
Process 2 and 
 
 
 
 
 
 
•For increases in valuations greater than 
$500,000  
 
 

 
$392.00 
$0.00 
 
$392.00 
 
$392.00 
 
 
1% of the value of 
proposed development 
increase as determined 
by the building 
department up to and 
including a total 
increase valuation of 
$500,000 
$75.00 per person per 
hour in excess of 60 
hours along with a 
minimum fee of 
$5,000 

3.64.560(1) Environmental permit fees. 
SEPA Project Review. 
•Written confirmation of exemption. 
•Threshold determination of an environmental 
checklist:   
• Submittal of environmental checklist 
• Public Notice (if DNS) 
  -(*See code for additional costs.) 
•Environmental impact statement: 
  -Submittal of preliminary draft EIS 
  -(*See code for additional costs.) 
•Detailed environmental study review 
 
 

 
 
$77.00 
 
 
$314.00 
$234.00 
 
 
$3,230.003,233.00 
 
$250.00 (in addition to 
environmental 
checklist fee)  

3.64.560(3) Environmental permit fees.   
• Wetland Permits. 
  -  Application 
  -  Administrative variance 
  -  Variance requiring a public hearing 
  -  Wetland exemption 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
 
$308.00 
$114.00 
$392.00 
No fee 

76



7 
 

3.64.565 Subdivision code permit fees. 
•Binding site plan: 
 -Pre-Application fee 
 -Variance (admin) 
 -Boundary line adjustment 

(a) Binding site plan application 
 

(b) Final binding site plan 
•Short subdivision: 
  -Pre-Application fee 

(a) Short subdivision application for 
preliminary approval 

(b) Final short subdivision approval 
(c) Alterations 

•Subdivisions: 
  -Pre-Application fee 
  -Variance (admin) 

(a) Subdivision application for 
preliminary approval 

(b) Final subdivision approval 
(c) Alteration 

•Vacation or amendment of plat 
 
•Variances under any process in this section 

 
 
$392.00 
$114.00 
$392.00 
$2,339.002,341.00 
plus $55.00 per lot  
Included in above fee 
 
$392.00 
$779.00780.00 plus 
$60.00 per lot 
Included in above fee 
$392.00 
 
$392.00 
$114.00 
$3,081.003,084.00 
plus $55.00 per lot 
Included in above fee 
$779.00780.00 
$687.00688.00 plus 
cost of publishing 
$392.00 

 
Chapter 13.24 SERVICE BEYOND CITY LIMITS FEE 
13.24.060 Fire hydrant. 

• Connecting a fire hydrant to a city line 
outside city limits 

 
$1,500.00 

Chapter 13.32 RATES AND CHARGES FEE 
13.32.010 Water Service Connection Deposits. (City staff 

installed services only) (50% surcharge added 
to the deposit for services outside of the City 
limits) 
¾” Service (subdivisions under development) 
¾” Service 
1” Service 
1 ½” Service 
2” Service 
 
Water Meter – Cost of Meter – City Installed 
¾” meter (radio read) 
1” meter 
1 ½” meter 
2” meter 

 
 
 
 
$700.00900.00 
$800.001,000.00 
$1,000.001,200.00 
$3,000.003,400.00 
$3,200.003,600.00 
 
 
$305.89348.10 
$407.33465.10 
$748.41857.80 
$974.201,118.40 
 
 
 

77



8 
 

Chapter 14.20 WEST SIDE OF OAK HARBOR – SEWER 
TRUNK LINE CHARGE 

FEE 

14.20.030(1) Equivalent residential units – Schedule of 
fixtures.  
• One residential unit/single-family residence 
• Multiple-residential units 
 
• Nonresidential properties, including all 
commercial and industrial properties – based 
on the number of points for the improvements 
on or to be constructed on the property 

 
 
$425 
$425 times number of 
residential units 
$30.00 shall be added 
for each point in 
excess of 20 
 

Chapter 18.20 PERMIT PROCESS FEE 
18.20.515(2) Closed record appeal on certain Type I review 

processes. 
• Fee for appeal 

 
 
$50.00 

Chapter 18.60 UTILITY SYSTEM DEVELOPMENT 
CHARGE 

FEE 

18.60.030(1) Utility system development charges after July 
15, 2004. 
• Water system development charge 
  3/4 inch meter 
  1 inch meter 
  1-1/2 inch meter 
  2 inch meter 
  3 inch meter 
  4 inch meter 
  6 inch meter 
  8 inch meter 
 
• Sewer system development charge 
  3/4 inch meter 
  1 inch meter 
  1-1/2 inch meter 
  2 inch meter 
  3 inch meter 
  4 inch meter 
  6 inch meter 
  8 inch meter 

 
 
 
$3,081.00 
$7,703.00 
$15,405.00 
$24,648.00 
$49,296.00 
$77,025.00 
$154,050.00 
$246,480.00 
 
 
$1,680.00 
$4,200.00 
$8,399.00 
$13,439.00 
$26,879.00 
$41,998.00 
$76,500.00 
$122,400.00 

Chapter 19.20 ZONING DISTRICTS FEE 
19.20.580(1) Appeals to council. 

• Filing fee to appeal decision by the planning 
commission on an application of approval of a 
preliminary or final master plan 

 
$100.00 

19.20.705(1) Appeals to council. 
• Filing fee to appeal decision by the planning 
commission of an application of approval of a 
site plan 
 

 
$100.00 

78



9 
 

Chapter 19.52 ADULT ENTERTAINMENT FACILITIES 
OVERLAY ZONE 

FEE 

19.52.060(6) Non-conforming uses. 
• Application for extension of time 

 
$712.00713.00 

 
 
 

BUILDING DIVISION    
Chapter 3.64 FEE SCHEDULE FEE 
3.64.505 
 

Fees applicable to all land use development processes. 
• Penalty permit fee.  When a permit is applied for after 
a temporary or permanent stop work order has been 
issued for the project in question or work has 
commenced prior to payment of the full permit fees 
required. 
 
(Other unspecified development permit fees under 
OHMC Title 17) 

 
Two times the normal fee 
for a permit fee. 
 
 
 
 
 

3.64.535(1) Building code and miscellaneous development permit 
fees. 
•Floodplain development permit 
•Variance 

 
 
$155.00 
$114.00 

3.64.545 Zoning permit fees. 
•Temporary use permit 

 
$22.00 

Chapter 11.14 SIDEWALK USE PERMIT FEE 
11.14.055 Fee for sidewalk use permit. 

• Initial issuance of any sidewalk use permit 
 
$15.00 

Chapter 16.60 INSTALLATION CODE FEE 
16.60.030 Installation permits. 

• Mobile home installation permit 
  - Single wide 
  - Double or triple wide 

 
 
$120.00 
$150.00 

Chapter 17.05 INTERNATIONAL BUILDING CODE FEE 
. 1705.030(2) Permit fees. 

• Building permit fees 
• Other inspections and fees 
• Miscellaneous building permit fees 

 
See below – Table 17-1 
See below – Table 17-2 
See below – Table 17-3  

79



10 
 

 
TABLE 17-1 

BUILDING PERMIT FEES  

Total Valuation Fees 

$1.00 to $500.00 $23.50 

$501.00 to $2,000 $23.50 for the first $500.00 plus $3.05 for each additional 
$100.00 or fraction thereof, to and including $2,000 

$2,001 to $25,000 $69.25 for the first $2,000 plus $14.00 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $25,000 

$25,001 to $50,000 $391.25 for the first $25,000 plus $10.10 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $50,000 

$50,001 to $100,000 $643.75 for the first $50,000 plus $7.00 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $100,000 

$100,001 to $500,000 $993.75 for the first $100,000 plus $5.60 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof 

$500,001 to $1,000,000 $3,233.75 for the first $500,000 plus $4.75 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof, to and including $1,000,000 

$1,000,001 and up $5,608.75 for the first $1,000,000 plus $3.65 for each additional 
$1,000 or fraction thereof 

TABLE 17-2  
OTHER INSPECTIONS AND FEES  

1. Inspections outside of normal business hours (minimum charge – two hours) $47.0060.00 per hour 

2. Inspections for which no fee is specifically indicated (minimum charge – one-
half hour) 

$47.0060.00 per hour 

3. Additional plan review required by changes, additions or revisions to approved 
plans (minimum charge – one-half hour) 

$47.0060.00 per hour 

4. For use of outside consultants for plan checking and inspections, or both Actual costs 
 
 

TABLE 17-3 
MISCELLANEOUS BUILDING PERMIT FEES  

ACTION FEE 

Antenna Tower $25.00 

Building Code Interpretation $329.00 

Change Lot After Plan Review or Issuance of 
Permit 

$100.00 

Change Plans During or After Plan Review New Plan Review Fee 

Change or Revise Plans After Issuance of 
Permit 

Current Hourly Rate per IBC or New Plan Review Fee 

Covered Patio Varies by Valuation 

Covered Porch Varies by Valuation 

Decks Varies by Valuation 

Demolitions $50.00 Plus $4.50 State Surcharge 

Espresso Carts (Portable and Stand Alone) $250.00 

Factory Built Structures Varies by Valuation 

Fences Over 6 Feet in Height Current Hourly Rate per IBC for Plan Review Plus $25.00 Permit Fee 

80



11 
 

Flagpoles $25.00 

Fireplaces  
Freestanding (Wood/Gas/Pellet/ 
Propane) 

$35.00 

Insert (Wood/Gas) $25.00 

Fireplace (Masonry) $100.00 

Mobile Homes, Single Wide $120.00 

Mobile Homes, Double and Triple Wide $150.00 

Modular Homes or Buildings $500.00 

Modular Offices (Job Shacks) $350.00 

Moved Buildings $50.00 Prior to Moving Together with a Building Permit Fee Based on 
the IBC Valuation for New Building and Cost of Moved Building 

Occupancy Permit $26.00 

Penalty Permit Fee Double Permit Fee 

Re-Roofs – Residential (Permit Required for Overlays of Two Layers or More) $25.00 

– Commercial Varies by Valuation 

Retaining Walls (Permit Not Required Under 
Four Feet) 

$100.00 or IBC Valuation, Whichever Is Greater 

Satellite Dish (48" Diameter or Greater) $25.00 

Signs – 25 Sq. Ft. or Less (New Construction) Permit Fee, Plan Review Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus $25.00 

– 26 Sq. Ft. or More (New Construction) Permit Fee, Plan Review Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus $50.00 

– 25 Sq. Ft. or Less (Existing) Permit Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus $25.00 

– 26 Sq. Ft. or More (Existing) Permit Fee, and $4.50 Surcharge Plus $50.00 

Solariums Varies by Valuation 

Work Commencing Before Issuance of Permit (Whichever Is Greater) Double Permit Fee or $100.00 
 

 

17.05.035(1) Building permit – Additional charge. 
• Additional charge to be added to cost of a 
building permit 
• Additional surcharge per residential unit on 
buildings with more than one unit for purposes of 
paying fees required by RCW 19.27.085 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

 
$4.50 plus 
 
$2.00 

81



12 
 

Chapter 17.10 INTERNATIONAL MECHANICAL CODE FEE 
17.10.070(3) Amendments – Additions. 

• Mechanical permit fees 
See below – Table 17-6 

 
TABLE 17-6 MECHANICAL PERMIT FEES  
 

ACTION FEE 

Permit Issuance and Heaters 

For the issuance of each mechanical permit $23.50 

For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not expired, been 
canceled or finaled 

$7.25 

Unit Fee Schedule (In addition to required permits as listed above.) 

Furnaces 

For the installation or relocation of each forced air or gravity type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such appliance, up to and including 100,000 Btu/h 
(29.3 kW) 

$15.00 

For the installation or relocation of each forced air or gravity type furnace or burner, 
including ducts and vents attached to such appliance over 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 kW) 

$18.00 

For the installation or relocation of each floor furnace, including vent $15.00 

For the installation or relocation of each suspended heater, recessed wall heater or floor 
mounted unit heater 

$15.00 

Appliance Vents 

For the installation, relocation or replacement of each appliance vent installed and not 
included in an appliance permit 

$7.00 

Repairs or Additions 

For the repair of, alteration of, or addition to each heating appliance, refrigeration unit, 
cooling unit, absorption unit, or each heating, cooling, absorption or evaporative cooling 
system, including installation of controls regulated by the Mechanical Code 

$14.00 

Boilers, Compressors and Absorption Systems 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor to and including 3 
horsepower (10.6 kW), or each absorption system to and including 100,000 Btu/h (29.3 
kW) 

$15.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 3 horsepower (10.6 
kW) to and including 15 horsepower (52.7 kW), or each absorption system over 100,000 
Btu/h (29.3 kW) to and including 500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) 

$27.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 15 horsepower (52.7 
kW) to and including 30 horsepower (105.5 kW), or each absorption system over 
500,000 Btu/h (146.6 kW) to and including 1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) 

$37.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 30 horsepower 
(105.5 kW) to and including 50 horsepower (176 kW), or each absorption system over 
1,000,000 Btu/h (293.1 kW) to and including 1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW) 
 

$55.00 

For the installation or relocation of each boiler or compressor over 50 horsepower (176 
kW), or each absorption system over 1,750,000 Btu/h (512.9 kW) 

$93.00 

Air Handling 

For each air handling unit to and including 10,000 cubic feet per minute (cfm) (4719 Us), 
including ducts attached thereto 
 

$11.00 

82



13 
 

Note: This fee does not apply to an air handling unit which is a portion of a factory 
assembled appliance, cooling unit, evaporative cooler or absorption unit for which a 
permit is required elsewhere in the Mechanical Code. 

  

For each air handling unit over 10,000 cfm (4719 Us) $18.00 

Evaporative Coolers 

For each evaporative cooler other than portable type $11.00 

Ventilation and Exhaust 

For each ventilation fan connected to a single duct $7.00 

For each ventilation system which is not a portion of any heating or air conditioning 
system authorized by a permit 

$11.00 

For the installation of each hood which is served by mechanical exhaust, including the 
ducts for such hood 

$11.00 

Incinerators 

For the installation or relocation of each domestic type incinerator $18.00 

For the installation or relocation of each commercial or industrial type incinerator $15.00 

Gas Piping Systems 

For each gas piping system of one to five outlets $5.00 

For each additional outlet over five, each $1.00 

Miscellaneous 

For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the Mechanical Code but not 
classed in other appliance categories, or for which the fee is listed in the table 

$11.00 

Other inspections and fees, refer to Table 17-2. 
 

Chapter 17.12 UNIFORM PLUMBING CODE FEE 
17.12.070(1) Amendments – Additions. 

• Plumbing permit fees 
See below – Table 17-5 

 

TABLE 17-5  

PLUMBING PERMIT FEES  

ACTION FEE 

PERMIT ISSUANCE 

For the issuance of each plumbing permit $20.00 

For issuing each supplemental permit for which the original permit has not expired, been 
canceled or finaled 

$10.00 
 

UNIT FEE SCHEDULE (In addition to required permits as listed above) 

For each plumbing fixture on one trap or set of fixtures on one trap (including water, drainage 
piping and backflow protection thereof) 

$7.00 

For each building sewer and each trailer park sewer $15.00 

Rainwater systems per drain (inside building) $7.00 

For each cesspool (where permitted) $7.00 

For each private sewage disposal system $40.00 

For each water heater including vent $12.00 

For each industrial waste pretreatment interceptor, including its trap and vent, excepting 
kitchen type grease interceptors functioning as fixture traps 

$7.00 

83



14 
 

For each installation, alteration, or repair of water piping or water treating equipment, or both, 
each 

$7.00 

For repair or alteration of drainage or vent piping, each fixture $7.00 

For each lawn sprinkler system on any one meter, including backflow protection devices 
thereof 

$7.00 

For atmospheric type vacuum breakers or backflow protection devices not included in lawn 
sprinkler systems: 

  

1 to 5 devices $45.00 

Over 5 devices, each $1.00 

For each backflow protection device other than atmospheric type vacuum breakers:   

2 inches (50.8 mm) diameter and smaller $7.00 

Over 2 inches (50.8 mm) diameter $15.00 

For each graywater system $40.00 

For initial installation and testing for a reclaimed water system $30.00 

For each annual cross-connection testing of a reclaimed water system (excluding initial test) $30.00 

For each medical gas piping system serving 1 to 5 inlets or outlets for a specific gas. $50.00 

For each additional medical gas inlet or outlet $5.00 

Swimming Pools For each swimming pool or spa: 

Public pool    Varies by Valuation Plus Permit Fee - 

Public spa    Varies by Valuation Plus Permit Fee - 

Private pool    Varies by Valuation Plus Permit Fee - 

Private spa $30.00 

Miscellaneous 

For each appliance or piece of equipment regulated by the Plumbing Code but not classed in 
other appliance categories, or for which no other fee is listed in this code 

$7.00 

Other inspections and fees, refer to Fee Table 17-2.   

Chapter 19.35 TEMPORARY USE PERMITS FEE 
19.35.060(2)(b)(xi) Homeless encampment regulations. 

• Application filing fee 
 
$22.00 

Chapter 19.36 SIGN CODE FEE 
19.36.130(7) Permits and fees. 

• Sign permit under 25 sq. ft. 
• Sign permit 26 sq. ft. and over 

 
$25.00 
$50.00 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule - Development Services.docx 
 

84



1 
 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
FINANCE/UTILITY DEPARTMENT 

Chapter 3.64 FEE SCHEDULE FEE 
3.64.525 Water utility fees. 

• Account setup fee 
• Hydrant use permits: 
  - Hydrant meter deposit 
  - Hydrant meter base fee 
 
•Hydrant water consumption 
  *0 to 300 cubic feet 
  *400 to 600 cubic feet 
 
  *700 and above cubic feet 
 
•Hydrant meter rent per day 
•Water connection fee 
•Hydrant meter permit 

 
$25.00 
 
$1,000.00 
$25.5026.25 minimum 
charge per month 
 
$2.602.85 per 100 cubic 
feet 
$3.754.30 per hundred 
cubic feet 
$6.356.75 per hundred 
cubic feet 
$5.00/day 
$15.00/month 
$10.00/month 

Chapter 3.70 BUSINESS AND OCCUPATION LICENSE TAX FEE 
3.70.030(3) Occupation license required. 

•  Annual application fee 
 
$50.00 

Chapter 3.95 UTILITY BILLING AND COLLECTION 
PROCEDURES 

FEE 

3.95.040  Application – Account initiation fee. 
•  Account initiation fee 

 
$25.00 

3.95.080 Delinquency. 
•  Delinquency payment 

 
$15.00 

3.95.080(5) Delinquency. 
•  Charge for cutting off the water and/or meter 
removal 

 
$10.00 

3.95.100  Water cut-offs – Lien enforcement. 
•  Turning off water  

 
$10.00 

3.95.120  
 

Turning water on – Charges. 
•Turning water on for service 
•Turning water on for service after 5 p.m. on any work 
day or on weekends 

 
$15.00 
$75.00 

3.95.170  NSF check – Fee for collection. 
•  Nonsufficient fund check 
 

 
$40.00 or amount of NSF 
check, whichever is less 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

85



2 
 

Chapter 5.03 BUSINESS LICENSES FEE 
5.03.160  Class 1. 

• License fee for taverns, fraternal organizations 
serving food or liquor, restaurant businesses serving 
liquor, grocery stores/supermarkets containing over 
3,000 square feet of sales area and manufacturing and 
other businesses employing 50 or more full- and/or 
part-time employees. 

 
$100.00 

5.03.170 Class 2. 
• License fee for financial institutions including savings 
and loan businesses, credit unions, and banks; and 
professional businesses including law businesses, 
accounting businesses, dentists, doctors, optometrists, 
veterinarians, engineers, surveyors, architects, real 
estate brokers, insurance brokers, building and 
landscape designers, chiropractors, automobile 
dealerships and auto part dealers. 

 
$50.00 

5.03.180 Class 3. 
• Annual License fee for businesses located outside the 
corporate limits of the city engaged in sales or sales of 
services within the corporate limits of the city, or 
making retail sales or sales and deliveries within the 
corporate limits of the city; contractors and 
subcontractors providing building services, or materials 
or equipment within the corporate limits of the city; all 
other businesses not classified as either Class 1 or  
Class 2. 

 
$25.00 

Chapter 5.04 POOL AND BILLIARDS FEE 
5.04.040 License – Fee. 

• Annual license fee 
 
$50.00 

Chapter 5.08 CARD TABLES FEE 
5.08.020 License fee. 

• First table 
• Each additional table 

 
$50.00 per year 
$5.00 per year 

Chapter 5.12 AMUSEMENT DEVICES FEE 
5.12.020 License required – Fee – Penalty for violation. 

• Annual license fee per device 
 
$25.00  

Chapter 5.16 PUBLIC DANCES AND DANCEHALLS FEE 
5.16.040 Granting of license - Fee. 

• License not to exceed one year in duration 
• One day license 

 
$20.00 
May be waived 

Chapter 5.20 ADULT ENTERTAINMENT FEE 
5.20.050 License fees. 

• Adult entertainment establishment license 
• Adult entertainer's license 
• Adult entertainment manager's license 

 
$720.00 per year 
$145.00 per year 
$145.00 per year 
 
 

86



3 
 

Chapter 5.22 NIGHTCLUBS FEE 
5.22.050 Annual license fee. 

• Annual nightclub license 
• Annual WATCH criminal background check 

 
$200.00 plus  
$10.0012.00  

Chapter 5.24 PAWNBROKERS FEE 
5.24.020 License required – Regulations. 

• License fee 
 
$30.00 per year 

Chapter 5.30 FOR HIRE VEHICLES FEE 
5.30.020 License required. 

• License fee for the first two taxicabs owned and 
operated by any person, firm or corporation. 
• For each additional taxicab to the same owner 

 
$50.00 per year 
 
$25.00 per year 

5.30.040 Driver’s license required - Parking stall charge.  
• Taxi parking charge  

 
$5.00 per month per 
parking stall 

Chapter 5.32 FIREWORKS SALE FEE 
5.32.030(6) Application form and requirements. 

• Application fee 
 
$50.00  

Chapter 5.44 AMUSEMENT ARCADES FEE 
5.44.030 License – Required – Application procedure – Hearing. 

• Nonrefundable application fee 
 
$25.00 

5.44.050 License – Fee – Issuance conditions – Application 
update. 
• Annual license fee 

 
 
$100.00 

Chapter 5.52 HAWKERS, PEDDLERS AND SOLICITORS FEE 
5.52.050(1) License – Fee. 

• Fee for a peddler, canvasser or solicitor license – first 
day 
• Fee for each additional day 

 
$20.0022.00  
 
$10.00 

5.52.050(2) License – Fee. 
• Fee for all persons per calendar year 
• Use of streets, parks, walks and other public places 
for the sale and/or display of wares or goods and may 
set dates and hours of operation. 

 
$5.00 
May waive fees required 
in this section 

Chapter 7.12 DOG AND CAT LICENSES FEE 
7.12.030(1) Fees - Schedule. 

• For each unneutered male dog 
• For each unneutered male cat 
• For each unspayed female dog 
• For each unspayed female cat 
• For each neutered male dog 
• For each neutered male cat 
• For each spayed female dog 
• For each spayed female cat 

 
$35.00 
$35.00 
$35.00 
$35.00 
$10.00 
$10.00 
$10.00 
$10.00 
 
 
 

87



4 
 

7.12.035 Fees – Procedure for senior citizens.   
For persons who are 65 years of age or over and who 
certify to the clerk of the city under oath that he or she 
is over this age and is the owner of the cat or dog to be 
licensed. 

 
50% of the fee stated in 
OHMC 7.12.030 

7.12.040 When purchased – Late fee – Term. 
• Late charge fee 

 
$5.00 

7.12.080 Duplicate tag – Fee – License not transferable. 
• Replacement fee for duplicate license tag 

 
$3.00 

Chapter 15.04 MUNICIPAL SOLID WASTE COLLECTION FEE 
15.04.150(1) Solid waste collection rates. 

• Residential roll cart service – Monthly charges 
  - Roll cart size: 20 gallon 
  - Roll cart size: 35 gallon 
  - Roll cart size: 65 gallon 
  - Roll cart size: 95 gallon 

 
 
$14.53 
$19.90 
$33.36 
$44.37 

15.04.165(7)(a) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• March – November services (weekly) 

 
$9.72 per month 

15.04.165(7)(b) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• December – February services (monthly) 

 
$3.25 per month 

15.04.165(7)(c) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• Delivery charge for first container 
• Delivery charge thereafter 

 
No charge 
$25.70 per delivery 

15.04.165(7)(d) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• Brown yard waste bags 

 
 $3.50 per bag 

15.04.165(7)(e) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• Nonscheduled special pick-up trip fee 

 
$25.70 

15.04.165(7)(f) Yard waste rates and collection practices. 
• Timing and fee for change in service/Delivery fee 

 
$25.70 

15.04.170(5) Temporary service. 
• Set-up fee for temporary service account 

 
$28.62 

15.04.170(8) Temporary service. 
• Pick-up fee on temporary service account 
 
 
• Special trip fee 

 
30% of the monthly 
charge for similar-sized 
container plus 
$25.70 per pick-up 

15.04.180(2) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 
• Special pick-up request/trip fee 

 
$25.70 

15.04.180(3) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 
• Time for collection and fee/Return trip charge 
• Time for collection and fee/Each additional 
nonscheduled pick-up 

 
$25.70  
$25.70  

15.04.180(4) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 
• Recycling containers contaminated with 
garbage/Return trip charge to empty container 

 
$62.32 

15.04.180(5) Residential collection provisions and special charges. 
• Extra garbage bag fee 

 
$4.85 

88



5 
 

15.04.190(2) Nonresidential collection provisions and special 
charges. 
• Charges for inconvenient location/Return trip charge 
• Charges for inconvenient location/Each additional 
nonscheduled pick-up  

 
 
$25.70 
$25.70 

15.04.220(1) General applicable rates. 
• Uncontained cleanup 

 
$114.50 per hour 

15.04.220(2) General applicable rates. 
• Temporarily stopping service while property vacant 

 
$16.25 

15.04.220(3) General applicable rates. 
• Timing and fee for change in service 

 
$25.70 

15.04.230(13)(a) Recycling – Rates and collection practices. 
• Commercial 
  - One recycling roll cart (65 or 95 gallon sizes) 
  - Additional roll carts 

 
 
No cost 
$8.00 per container 

15.04.230(13)(b) Recycling – Rates and collection practices. 
• Residential 
  - One 65 gallon roll cart 

 
 
No cost 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule - Finance - Utility Depts.docx 
 

89



1 
 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
FIRE DEPARTMENT 

 
Chapter 8.06 FEE SCHEDULE FOR PERMITTING, 

PLAN REVIEW AND INSPECTIONS 
FEE 

8.06.010 Fee schedule. See Below 
 

Permit, Plan Review, and Inspection Fee Schedule 
 

 Permits Plan Review Inspection Total 
Fire Alarm Systems (new or revised) 
Zone Type Systems 
A. One to four zones $50.00 $100.00 $100.00 $250.00 
B. Each additional zone --- $10.00 $20.00 $30.00/zone 
C. Sprinkler supervision only $50.00 $25.00 $100.00 $175.00 
Addressable Type Systems 
A. One to 25 devices $50.00 $100.00 $100.00 $250.00 
B. Each additional 25 devices --- --- $50.00 $50.00/25 

devices 
Sprinkler Systems (new) 
A. Up to and including 99 sprinklers $50.00 $2.00/sprinkler $50.00 $100.00 + 

$2.00/ 
sprinkler 

B. Each new system having 100 or more sprinklers $50.00 $150.00 $250.00 $450.00 
C. Revised systems (Note: Maximum for revised systems is 
equal to new installation) 

$25.00 $2.00/sprinkler $50.00 $75.00 + 
$2.00/ 
sprinkler 

Standpipe Systems 
A. Class I     
Manual $50.00 $50.00 $75.00 $175.00 
Automatic or semi-automatic $50.00 $100.00 $150.00 $300.00 
B. Class II and Class III $50.00 $100.00 $150.00 $300.00 
C. Combination sprinkler and standpipe $50.00 $250.00 $250.00 $550.00 
Fire Pumps $50.00 $250.00 $250.00 $550.00 
Range Hood Fire Suppression Systems 
A. Pre-engineered $50.00 $10.00 $50.00 $110.00 
B. Custom $50.00 $200.00 $100.00 $350.00 
Fixed Pipe Fire Suppression Systems 
A. Pre-engineered $50.00 $50.00 $50.00 $150.00 
B. Custom $50.00 $200.00 $100.00 $350.00 
Fireworks 
A. Wholesale or retail use $25.00 no plan review $50.00 $75.00 
B. Public display $25.00 no plan review $75.00 $100.00 
Liquefied Gas 
A. Under 2,000 water gallon 
 

no fee $25.00 $50.00 $75.00 

B. 2,000 water gallon or the aggregate capacity of 4,000 
water gallon 

no fee $50.00 $50.00 $100.00 

Compressed Gas 
A. Flammable 2,500 cubic feet or more no fee $25.00 $25.00 $50.00 
B. Nonflammable 6,000 cubic feet or more no fee $25.00 $25.00 $50.00 

 
 
 

90



2 
 

Flammable or Combustible Liquids 
A. Tank installation (commercial only) $50.00 $100.00 $50.00 $200.00 + 

$25.00 for 
each 
additional 
tank 

B. Underground tank(s) removal and abandonment 
(commercial) 

$25.00 $50.00 $50.00 $125.00 + 
$25.00 for 
each 
additional 
tank 

C. Underground tank(s) removal and abandonment 
(residential) 

$25.00 included in 
permit 

$25.00 $50.00 + 
$15.00 for 
each 
additional 
tank 
 

All Categories 
A. Call-back inspections for more than two site visits when contractor not ready $50.00 each 
B. Additional plan review required by changes, additions or revisions to approved plans (minimum one-
hour fee) 

$560.00/hour 

Copies  
One – two pages No cost 
Three plus pages $0.15 per 

page 
Mailing or shipping Actual costs 
Fire Investigation Fee  
Fee to insurance companies for fire investigation reports $10.00 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule - OHFD.docx 

91



1 
 

MASTER FEE SCHEDULE 
PUBLIC WORKS DEPARTMENT 

 
 
Chapter 6.12 PARKS CODE FEE 
6.12.095(2) Park facility reservation system. 

• Fee for reservation for a single day's use of a facility 
 
$25.00 

6.12.095(8) Park facility reservation system. 
• Fee that may be assessed to individuals or groups who 
have reserved a keyed facility and failed to collect the 
key at the Utilities Office during business hours, 
causing an employee to be called out after hours on a 
work day or on a weekend to unlock the reserved 
facility. 

 
$75.00 

Chapter 6.13 RECREATIONAL CAMPING IN CITY PARKS FEE 
6.13.090(1) Fee for overnight use required. 

• For each recreation vehicle parked in the Staysail RV 
Park located at Windjammer Park 

 
$25.00 per night 

6.13.090(2) Fee for overnight use required. 
• For use of each overflow campsite, tent campsite or 
special event campsite 

 
$15.00 per night 

6.13.090(4) Fee for overnight use required. 
• Fee for online reservations 

 
$6.50 

6.13.090(5) Fee for overnight use required. 
• Cancellation of online reservations 

 
$8.50 

6.13.100(2) Other fees for camping. 
• Charge for each use of the trailer dump station at 
Staysail RV Park 

 
$5.00 

Chapter 13.36 FIRE PROTECTION SYSTEMS FEE 
13.36.010 Installation permitted – Rate – Billings. 

City installed fire protection rate 
 
$12.72 per month plus 
$1.79 per inch over 8" in 
diameter at the city main 

Chapter 14.20 WEST SIDE OF OAK HARBOR – SEWER 
TRUNK LINE CHARGE 

FEE 

14.20.030(1) Equivalent residential units – Schedule of fixtures.  
• One residential unit/single-family residence 
• Multiple-residential units 
 
• Nonresidential properties, including all commercial 
and industrial properties – based on the number of 
points for the improvements on or to be constructed on 
the property 

 
$425 
$425 times number of 
residential units 
$30.00 shall be added for 
each point in excess of 20 
 

 
 
 
 
L:\LGLA\WORK\RES-ORD2016\2016 Master Fee Schedule - Public Works Department.docx 
 

92



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Ault Field Booster Pump 
Replacement - Contract Close 
Out

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Ault Field Booster Pump 
Replacement project with SRV Construction Inc. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 20, 2015 City Council approved a construction contract with SRV Construction, Inc. to 
replace two booster pumps in the Ault Field Booster Station in the amount of $135,141.28.  Staff 
inspected the work, witnessed operational testing and considered the installation complete on December
21, 2015. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.f
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Ault Field Booster Pump 
Replacement - Contract Close 
Out

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign the Final Contract Voucher Certificate for the Ault Field Booster Pump 
Replacement project with SRV Construction Inc. 

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
On February 20, 2015 City Council approved a construction contract with SRV Construction, Inc. to 
replace two booster pumps in the Ault Field Booster Station in the amount of $135,141.28.  Staff 
inspected the work, witnessed operational testing and considered the installation complete on December 
21, 2015. 21, 2015. 

One change order was issued during the course of construction for upgrading the electrical panels that 
power the new pumps and providing longer pipe restraining rods. The change order total was $8,388.16 
resulting in a total Contract cost of $143,529.44. The maximum amount authorized for change order 
additions for this contract was $10,000.00

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with SRV Construction 
for work on this project.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:    $0        

Appropriation Source:            Water Utility Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

February 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with SRV Construction, Inc. 

21, 2015. 

One change order was issued during the course of construction for upgrading the electrical panels that 
power the new pumps and providing longer pipe restraining rods. The change order total was $8,388.16 
resulting in a total Contract cost of $143,529.44. The maximum amount authorized for change order 
additions for this contract was $10,000.00

The attached Final Contract Voucher Certification formally closes the contract with SRV Construction 
for work on this project.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:    $0        

Appropriation Source:            Water Utility Fund

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

February 20, 2015 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign a contract with SRV Construction, Inc. 

93



in the amount of $135,141.28, which includes WA state sales tax; and authorized the City Engineer to 
administratively approve changes to the construction contract totaling not more than $10,000.00.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of two 
pumps at the Ault Field booster pump station.

February 4, 2014 – City Council rejected all bids.

November 19, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement to bid for two 
booster pumps

July 6, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Gray and Osborne, Inc., for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $233,434.00 for the Gun Club Reservoir 
Project. (The scope of work included design of improvements to the Ault Field Booster Station.)

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

This project has not been presented at a workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Certificate

in the amount of $135,141.28, which includes WA state sales tax; and authorized the City Engineer to 
administratively approve changes to the construction contract totaling not more than $10,000.00.

December 2, 2014 – City Council authorized staff to solicit construction bids for replacement of two 
pumps at the Ault Field booster pump station.

February 4, 2014 – City Council rejected all bids.

November 19, 2013 – City Council authorized staff to proceed with advertisement to bid for two 
booster pumps

July 6, 2010 – City Council authorized the Mayor to sign an agreement with Gray and Osborne, Inc., for 
engineering design services with a not to exceed limit of $233,434.00 for the Gun Club Reservoir 
Project. (The scope of work included design of improvements to the Ault Field Booster Station.)

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

This project has not been presented at a workshop.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Final Contract Voucher Certificate

94

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452642731_at.pdf


95



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Copier 
for Pioneer Way Building

FROM: Cathy Rose, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at the 
Pioneer Way Building in the amount of $220.61 a month.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The copier at the Pioneer Way Building is on a month to month lease.  The average cost is $312.78 a 
month.  This machine has served its purpose thus far, but a more robust machine is needed.  Therefore, 
staff requested pricing from Xerox, who is our existing vendor, for a more robust machine that will 
support the needs of those working at the Pioneer Way Building.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.g
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-Copier 
for Pioneer Way Building

FROM: Cathy Rose, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion authorizing the Mayor to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at the 
Pioneer Way Building in the amount of $220.61 a month.  

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The copier at the Pioneer Way Building is on a month to month lease.  The average cost is $312.78 a 
month.  This machine has served its purpose thus far, but a more robust machine is needed.  Therefore, 
staff requested pricing from Xerox, who is our existing vendor, for a more robust machine that will 
support the needs of those working at the Pioneer Way Building.support the needs of those working at the Pioneer Way Building.

It was determined that a WorkCentre 7845 full color workflow solution would suit our needs and will 
also decrease our monthly costs by $92.17.  In addition, it will fulfill any needs we have once the new 
treatment plant is in service, where this machine will be relocated until the contract expires and/or is 
renewed.  

Xerox has provided the City excellent service and having compatibility of supplies throughout the City has 
been a tremendous help when in need. 

Therefore, staff is proposing to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at 
the Pioneer Way Building in the amount of $220.61 a month.     

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

support the needs of those working at the Pioneer Way Building.

It was determined that a WorkCentre 7845 full color workflow solution would suit our needs and will 
also decrease our monthly costs by $92.17.  In addition, it will fulfill any needs we have once the new 
treatment plant is in service, where this machine will be relocated until the contract expires and/or is 
renewed.  

Xerox has provided the City excellent service and having compatibility of supplies throughout the City has 
been a tremendous help when in need. 

Therefore, staff is proposing to enter into a 60 month contract with Xerox to install a copier at 
the Pioneer Way Building in the amount of $220.61 a month.     

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

96

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452268730_at.pdf


1. Xerox Agreement-Pioneer Way Building1. Xerox Agreement-Pioneer Way Building

97

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452268730_at.pdf


98



99



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-
Veteran's Park Kiosk

FROM: Cathy Rose, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the purchase of one powder coated aluminum Kiosk constructed at Veterans 
Memorial Park from Harchitectrual Elements in the amount of $19,294.25.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the City’s continued effort to improve the waterfront trail, the placement of kiosks along the trail has 
been identified as a desirable feature.  One such kiosk is proposed to be placed at Veteran’s Memorial
Park.  This kiosk will provide natural history, cultural and wayfinding information.  The design of this 
kiosk will match the existing kiosk and the Scenic Heights Trailhead which was also designed and 
constructed by Harchitectural Elements.     

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. C/A 4.h
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Purchase Authorization-
Veteran's Park Kiosk

FROM: Cathy Rose, Public Works Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
A motion to authorize the purchase of one powder coated aluminum Kiosk constructed at Veterans 
Memorial Park from Harchitectrual Elements in the amount of $19,294.25.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
In the City’s continued effort to improve the waterfront trail, the placement of kiosks along the trail has 
been identified as a desirable feature.  One such kiosk is proposed to be placed at Veteran’s Memorial 
Park.  This kiosk will provide natural history, cultural and wayfinding information.  The design of this 
kiosk will match the existing kiosk and the Scenic Heights Trailhead which was also designed and 
constructed by Harchitectural Elements.     constructed by Harchitectural Elements.     

Formal bids are not required for this acquisition; however, council approval is required per OHMC 
2.390.010.  

Funds are available in the 106 Paths and Trail Fund to cover the cost of this kiosk.

Therefore, staff is requesting to purchase one powder coated aluminum Kiosk constructed at Veterans 
Memorial Park from Harchitectrual Elements in the amount of $19,294.25.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

constructed by Harchitectural Elements.     

Formal bids are not required for this acquisition; however, council approval is required per OHMC 
2.390.010.  

Funds are available in the 106 Paths and Trail Fund to cover the cost of this kiosk.

Therefore, staff is requesting to purchase one powder coated aluminum Kiosk constructed at Veterans 
Memorial Park from Harchitectrual Elements in the amount of $19,294.25.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

100



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting Update on the Clean Water Facility Project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City Council.

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 5.a.i
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility Update by 
City Staff

FROM: Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Regular Meeting Update on the Clean Water Facility Project.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
Requested by City Council.

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report on Project Update

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Report on Project Update

101

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452897818_at.pdf


Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  January 19, 2016 
1 

 

 
CITY COUNCIL PROJECT UPDATE – January 19, 2016     
The following is a snapshot of project activities and milestones, as well as anticipated upcoming activities 
and risks being monitored for the Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Project. These updates are provided to 
City Council on a bi-weekly basis.  
 
RECENT ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (PREVIOUS TWO WEEKS) 

• Site Preparation Package B 
• Utilities are being relocated 
• Stone columns are being installed 

• Windjammer Park Integration Plan 
• Finalized Citizen Advisory Group 
 

ANTICIPATED/UPCOMING ACTIVITIES AND MILESTONES (NEXT SIX WEEKS) 
• Site Preparation Package B 

• Stone column installation will be completed 
• Sheet piles will start arriving on site in February 

• Proceed with development of the Windjammer Park Integration Plan 
• 90% Design has begun with an anticipated completion in March. 
• GMP #6 Award Recommendation is on the January 19, 2016 City Council Meeting. 

 
CLEAN WATER FACILITY DESIGN STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Facility Design Carollo Engineers have submitted 60% design drawings 

and are proceeding with the 90% documents.  
60% 

 
CONSTRUCTION PACKAGE STATUS 

Item Description Progress % 
Site Preparation 
Package B  

The design for the deep excavation package is complete.  
Construction has begun. 

Completed 

Site Preparation 
Package C  

Site Prep C bid opening occurred on December 17th.  GMP 
#6 will be presented to City Council for award on January 
19th. 

Completed 

Concrete Package Design of the concrete structures for the Membrane 
Bioreactors and Aeration Basins is under way 

60% 

 
PERMIT ACQUISITIONS STATUS 

Pending Permits Description 

• Boundary Line Adjustment 
• Foundation permit 

 
• Site Plan Amendment 

• The Boundary Line Adjustment nearly complete. 
• Site Prep C – Micropiles – The design team has applied for a 

foundation permit. 
• The design team is revising the site plan submittal to reflect Concept 

B and the community room. 

102



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  January 19, 2016 
2 

 

CONSTRUCTION STATUS 

Item Description Estimated Completion 
GMP #2 (Outfall Construction) The subcontractor has completed their work.  We 

are currently finalizing the paperwork for this 
phase of work. 

Final Closeout 

GMP #3 (Site Preparation A) The subcontractor has completed their work and 
the contract is being closed out. 

Completed 

GMP #4 (Site Preparation B) Construction activities have begun May 2016 
 
COST AND FUNDING STATUS 

Major Cost Item Cost Estimate Description 
GMP #1 (MBR/UV) $2,775,455.58 

(includes sales tax) 
Awarded by City Council on 12/2/2014 
Includes Membrane Bioreactor and Ultra Violet Disinfection 
equipment procurement and design support.  Does not include 
installation costs. 

GMP #2 (Outfall) $2,164,488 
(includes sales tax) 

Awarded by City Council on 4/21/15 
Construction of a new outfall from approximately the 
waterfront trail out into Oak Harbor Bay. 

GMP #3 (Site Prep A) $908,872 
(includes sales tax) 

Approved by City Council 6/16/15.  
Preliminary site excavation and archaeological investigation.  
Preliminary results indicate this work will come in under budget 
or be delayed until Site Preparation Package B.  

GMP #4 (Site Prep B) $5,109,549 
(includes sales tax) 

Site Preparation Package B will include utility relocates, minor 
demolition at the existing RBC Plant, stone column installation, 
sheet pile installation and deep excavation.  City Council 
approved GMP #4 on October 20. . 

Overall Project TBD 60% design documents have been received by the City. Carollo 
and Hoffman completed cost estimates. Staff presented the 
updated cost estimate to City Council at a workshop on 
September 30th with options regarding biosolids handling and 
including a community/training room.  90% Design is expected 
to begin in October. 

GMP #5  
(Biosolids Dryer) 
 

$2,028,222 Bio-solids handling options were presented to City Council at a 
Special Workshop held on September 30th.  A Resolution and 
GMP #5 regarding a biosolids dryer were approved at the 
October 20th City Council Meeting.   

Community Room TBD City Council elected to include the Community Room into the 
project at the December 15, 2015 Meeting. 

 

  

103



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  January 19, 2016 
3 

 

 

Funding: Pending Description 

2016 CWSRF – WWTP 
Construction 

The City has been allocated $15,631,311 at a reduced interest rate of 1.9% for 20 
years and an additional $463,154 forgivable principal for hardship and green 
project reserve. An additional $4,586,846 in Centennial Grant was also offered. 
The 2016 CWSRF agreement has been drafted and is being reviewed. 

2017 CWSRF - WWTP 
Construction 

Application for 2017 CWSRF funding was submitted October 16, 2015. 

Bonds The City’s financial advisor for the project, PFM, presented options for issuing 
bonds for the new Clean Water Facility at the September 30th City Council Special 
Workshop.  The City is reviewing our funding options with regards to CWSRF vs. 
Bonds to develop the most advantageous funding program for the project. The 
goal is to reduce the overall burden on the rate payers. City staff initiated 
preparation of POS statement necessary to issue revenue bonds. 

Rates HDR presented potential rate impacts of the new Clean Water Facility to City 
Council at a Special Workshop held September 30th.  Staff is currently reviewing 
the impacts of the funding sources listed above, current bond rates and the 
estimated cost of the project to determine how the project rates might be 
impacted by the construction cost increases and lower financing rates.  Staff is 
proceeding with a bond sale in early this year. 

Funding: In hand Description 
2015 CWSRF – Outfall 
Design and Construction 

The City has received $3,200,000 in low interest loans from DOE for design and 
construction of the new outfall for the wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 
20 years at 2.7% interest. 

2015 CWSRF – WWTP 
Design 

The City has received $8,260,000 in low interest loans for design of the new 
wastewater treatment plant. The loan is for 20 years at 2.7% interest. 

Department of Commerce 
Grant 

The City has received a $2,500,000 grant from the Governors Capital 
Improvement Program. 

Bond Anticipation Note Staff has secured interim financing through US Bank to bridge the gap between 
CWSRF reimbursements and the issuance of revenue bonds.  We are anticipating 
a $10,000,000 short term loan (6 months) at 0.64% interest. 

Reserves The sewer fund has been accumulating reserves that have been earmarked for 
this project. 

 
 
COMMUNICATIONS AND OUTREACH STATUS 

Upcoming activities or 
In-Progress activities Description 

Project communications 
plan 

With initiation of the Site Prep B portion of the project, the project team has 
implemented the Good Neighbor Plan.  A project brochure was sent to all 
addresses in the city.  New project signs have been posted at the site.   

Windjammer Park 
Integration Plan   

A workshop with City Council was held on December 16th highlighting City Council 
priorities.  A Citizen Advisory Group is currently being established to develop a 
plan for the area surrounding the Clean Water Facility.  The first meeting of the 
Citizen Advisory Group will be held January 20th. 

 
 

104



Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility: Council Project Update  January 19, 2016 
4 

 

PROJECT SCHEDULE  

 

 

PROJECT CONTACT INFORMATION 
 
Web 
www.oakharborcleanwater.org 
 
Email 
treatmentplant@oakharbor.org 
 
General phone (24-hour)  
360-914-7000 
 
Mail  
City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak Harbor, Washington 98277 
 
Project team contact information 
Joe Stowell, P.E., City Engineer 
360-720-8796 
jstowell@oakharbor.org 

Brett Arvidson P.E., Project Engineer 
360-914-7987 
barvidson@oakharbor.org 

 

We are here 

105

http://www.oakharborcleanwater.org/
mailto:treatmentplant@oakharbor.org
mailto:jstowell@oakharbor.org
tel:13609147987
mailto:barvidson@oakharbor.org


City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-05: Island Place 
Division 2 Final Plat

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Final Plat of Island Place Division 2, Resolution No. 16-05.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the final plat for the Island Place Planned Residential Development Division 2.  
Approval of the proposed final plat will create 66 lots and 3 common tracts.  

The initial Island Place Preliminary Plat and Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 107 
total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  The approved PRD ordinance and plans are attached to 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 6.a
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Resolution 16-05: Island Place 
Division 2 Final Plat

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Approve the Final Plat of Island Place Division 2, Resolution No. 16-05.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
This agenda bill presents the final plat for the Island Place Planned Residential Development Division 2.  
Approval of the proposed final plat will create 66 lots and 3 common tracts.  

The initial Island Place Preliminary Plat and Planned Residential Development (PRD), consisting of 107 
total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  The approved PRD ordinance and plans are attached to total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  The approved PRD ordinance and plans are attached to 
this report for reference (see Attachment 1).  Over the intervening years, construction was begun on the 
eastern portion of the development, consisting of 39 lots.  After a pause in construction, Division 2 was 
slightly reconfigured to remove two lots and submitted for approval to the City.  The two lots removed 
only constitute a minor change from the original PRD plan and is an acceptable deviation.  A Final Plat 
with a total of 66 lots are located within Division 2, with tracts designated for a small park, play field and 
wetlands buffer areas also included in the design (see Attachment 2).

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

As was previously noted, the submittal and review requirements for final plats are addressed in OHMC 
Chapter 21.40.  The approval process is specifically found at OHMC 21.40.050, which states:

21.40.050 Review and approval process.

(1) The director shall forward the final plat application to the city council if:

(a) The application is in order; and

(b) Improvements are constructed in a satisfactory manner and approved by the city engineer or a bond 
or other security acceptable to the city engineer has been satisfactorily posted for deferred improvements.

total lots was approved December 20, 2005.  The approved PRD ordinance and plans are attached to 
this report for reference (see Attachment 1).  Over the intervening years, construction was begun on the 
eastern portion of the development, consisting of 39 lots.  After a pause in construction, Division 2 was 
slightly reconfigured to remove two lots and submitted for approval to the City.  The two lots removed 
only constitute a minor change from the original PRD plan and is an acceptable deviation.  A Final Plat 
with a total of 66 lots are located within Division 2, with tracts designated for a small park, play field and 
wetlands buffer areas also included in the design (see Attachment 2).

REVIEW AND APPROVAL PROCESS

As was previously noted, the submittal and review requirements for final plats are addressed in OHMC 
Chapter 21.40.  The approval process is specifically found at OHMC 21.40.050, which states:

21.40.050 Review and approval process.

(1) The director shall forward the final plat application to the city council if:

(a) The application is in order; and

(b) Improvements are constructed in a satisfactory manner and approved by the city engineer or a bond 
or other security acceptable to the city engineer has been satisfactorily posted for deferred improvements.

106



(2) The recommendations of the director regarding the final plat shall be forwarded to the mayor for 
placement upon city council agenda.

(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 
public meeting. (Ord. 1568 § 6, 2010)

City staff reviewed the application and found it in order as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(a).  The 
Public Works Department and the Engineering Division reviewed the final plat map for accuracy and 
conformance with the approved preliminary subdivision and for compliance with the requirements of the 
Subdivision Code (which requires compliance with RCW 58.17) and recommends approval of the final 
subdivision plat.  The Planning Division recommends approval of the final plat map based on the 
determination that it meets the requirements set forth in the PRD ordinance, preliminary plat, zoning 
ordinances and other applicable land use controls, as well as the conditions and environmental mitigation 
measures required for the preliminary subdivision approval.  

The necessary public improvements were constructed in a satisfactory manner and are approved by the 
City Engineer as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(b).  

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.170 states, in part, “When the legislative body of the city, 
town or county finds that the subdivision proposed for final plat approval conforms to all terms of the 
preliminary plat approval, and that said subdivision meets the requirements of this chapter, other 
applicable state laws, and any local ordinances adopted under this chapter which were in effect at the 
time of preliminary plat approval, it shall suitably inscribe and execute its written approval on the face of 
the plat.”  The City Council makes its decision in a public meeting.

CONCLUSION

(2) The recommendations of the director regarding the final plat shall be forwarded to the mayor for 
placement upon city council agenda.

(3) After receipt of the recommendation on any final plat, the city council shall consider the final plat at a 
public meeting. (Ord. 1568 § 6, 2010)

City staff reviewed the application and found it in order as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(a).  The 
Public Works Department and the Engineering Division reviewed the final plat map for accuracy and 
conformance with the approved preliminary subdivision and for compliance with the requirements of the 
Subdivision Code (which requires compliance with RCW 58.17) and recommends approval of the final 
subdivision plat.  The Planning Division recommends approval of the final plat map based on the 
determination that it meets the requirements set forth in the PRD ordinance, preliminary plat, zoning 
ordinances and other applicable land use controls, as well as the conditions and environmental mitigation 
measures required for the preliminary subdivision approval.  

The necessary public improvements were constructed in a satisfactory manner and are approved by the 
City Engineer as required by OHMC 21.40.050(1)(b).  

State law provides the necessary guidance for the City Council’s review and action once the staff 
recommendation is received.  RCW 58.17.170 states, in part, “When the legislative body of the city, 
town or county finds that the subdivision proposed for final plat approval conforms to all terms of the 
preliminary plat approval, and that said subdivision meets the requirements of this chapter, other 
applicable state laws, and any local ordinances adopted under this chapter which were in effect at the 
time of preliminary plat approval, it shall suitably inscribe and execute its written approval on the face of 
the plat.”  The City Council makes its decision in a public meeting.

CONCLUSIONCONCLUSION

The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved 
planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the application for 
conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the proposed final plat 
meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Island Place Division 2 
Resolution No. 16-05 (see Attachment 3). 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 

CONCLUSION

The final plat is in conformance with the requirements of RCW 58.17, OHMC 21.40, the approved 
planned residential development and the approved preliminary plat.  Staff has reviewed the application for 
conformance with the appropriate technical requirements and has determined that the proposed final plat 
meets the code requirements.  Staff recommends approval of the Final Plat of Island Place Division 2 
Resolution No. 16-05 (see Attachment 3). 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
In general, RCW Chapter 58.17 governs the approval of subdivision plats.  The approval of a final plat is 
specifically addressed in RCW 58.17.160 and 170.  The City’s subdivision regulations are found in 
OHMC Title 21, with final plats addressed in OHMC Chapter 21.40.  Finally, final plats are categorized 
as a Type VI review process under OHMC 18.20.280.  Type VI process does not require a public 
hearing; approval action may be taken in a public meeting.

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required: N/A

Appropriation Source: N/A

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 

107



There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 
for constructing all required infrastructure in accordance with the City’s standards.  Once the plat is 
approved and recorded, the City will accept the public infrastructure, rights of way and easements as 
indicated on the face of the plat.  The street and the associated infrastructure will be added to the City’s 
inventory and maintenance schedules.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Approved PRD Ordinance and Plans
2. Final Plat of Island Place PRD, Division 2
3. Resolution No. 16-05

There are no immediate fiscal impacts with the approval of the final plat.  The developer was responsible 
for constructing all required infrastructure in accordance with the City’s standards.  Once the plat is 
approved and recorded, the City will accept the public infrastructure, rights of way and easements as 
indicated on the face of the plat.  The street and the associated infrastructure will be added to the City’s 
inventory and maintenance schedules.

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Approved PRD Ordinance and Plans
2. Final Plat of Island Place PRD, Division 2
3. Resolution No. 16-05

108

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1451947425_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1451947500_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452621364_at.pdf


109



110



111



ATTACHMENT 1112



ATTACHMENT 1113



ATTACHMENT 1114



ATTACHMENT 1115



ATTACHMENT 1116



ATTACHMENT 1117



ATTACHMENT 1118



ATTACHMENT 1119



ATTACHMENT 1120



ATTACHMENT 1121



ATTACHMENT 2122



ATTACHMENT 2123



ATTACHMENT 2124



ATTACHMENT 2125



ATTACHMENT 2126



ATTACHMENT 2127



RESOLUTION NO. 16-05 

A RESOLUTION APPROVING THE FINAL PLAT OF ISLAND PLACE, DIVISION 2 

 

WHEREAS, the Planning Commission on November 22, 2005, held a public hearing after said hearing 
was published on November 5, 2005 in the Whidbey News Times on the Planned Residential 
Development plan and the Preliminary Plat for Island Place; and 

WHEREAS, the City Council adopted the Findings of Fact, Conclusions of Law and Record of Decision 
of the Planning Commission by reference (subject to certain conditions) and approved the Preliminary 
Plat of Island Place on December 20, 2005; and 

WHEREAS, the Final Plat of Island Place, Division 2, last phase of Island Place Subdivision conforms to 
all of the preliminary plat and meets the requirements of OHMC 21.40 Final Plat; and 

NOW, THEREFORE, THE CITY COUNCIL OF THE CITY OF OAK HARBOR, WASHINGTON, 
HEREBY RESOLVES AS FOLLOWS: 

The Final Plat of Island Place, Division 2, consisting of 66 residential lots, a copy of said plat which is 
hereto attached and by reference made a part hereof, is hereby approved. 

PASSED by the City Council this 19th day of January, 2016. 

 

        CITY OF OAK HARBOR 
 
 
        ________________________________ 
        Bob Severns, Mayor 
ATTEST: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Clerk 
 
APPROVED AS TO FORM: 
 
 
________________________________ 
City Attorney 
 
Resolution 16-05: Island Place Division 2 Final Plat 
Page 1 of 1 

128



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #6

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #6) in the amount of 
$3,966,503 plus Sales Tax ($345,086) with Hoffman Construction for Site Preparation C-Micropiles.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The preparation has been broken into phases to take advantage of the General Contractor/Construction
Manager (GC/CM) process.  Site Preparation Package C (GMP#6) is the next phase of work to 
prepare the site for constructing the Clean Water Facility (CWF).  The work will include installation of 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 8.a
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Clean Water Facility - General 
Contractor/Construction Manager 
GMP Amendment #6

FROM: Cathy Rosen, Public Works Director and Joe Stowell, City Engineer

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Authorize the Mayor to sign AIA Document A133 – 2009 Exhibit A (GMP #6) in the amount of 
$3,966,503 plus Sales Tax ($345,086) with Hoffman Construction for Site Preparation C-Micropiles.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
The preparation has been broken into phases to take advantage of the General Contractor/Construction 
Manager (GC/CM) process.  Site Preparation Package C (GMP#6) is the next phase of work to 
prepare the site for constructing the Clean Water Facility (CWF).  The work will include installation of prepare the site for constructing the Clean Water Facility (CWF).  The work will include installation of 
micro-piles and facilities necessary to install a tower crane on the site.

Site Preparation Package A GMP #3 evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The next stage 
of the work, Site Preparation Package B (GMP #4), involves installing a sheet pile shoring system, 
installing stone columns, demolition of some existing structures, and excavating the structures to grade 
(approximately 25 feet in depth).  The final excavation contract Site Preparation C involves installing 
micropiles in the bottom of the shored excavation to support the foundation of the Clean Water Facility.

The attached amendment to Hoffman’s contract (GMP #6) is for work associated with installation of 
micropiles and other direct costs in support of the project.  These direct costs include handling of the 
spoils created during the micropile installation by the site excavation contractor, construction of a flood 
protection dike, installation of a cap break, and sheet piles for the tower crane.  Hoffman also includes 
preparing a tower crane foundation and erection of the tower crane as part of this GMP. 

Due to site flooding concerns, connection to the outfall has been advanced in the project schedule.  
Permitting, design and procurement of this pipe section has not been completed, so an allowance has 
been established to keep this portion advancing.  It is anticipated that the construction cost of the outfall
will be competitively determined.

In order to accomplish Site Preparation C, the micro pile work was advertised for bid.  Bids were 

prepare the site for constructing the Clean Water Facility (CWF).  The work will include installation of 
micro-piles and facilities necessary to install a tower crane on the site.

Site Preparation Package A GMP #3 evaluated Cultural Resource concerns for the site.  The next stage 
of the work, Site Preparation Package B (GMP #4), involves installing a sheet pile shoring system, 
installing stone columns, demolition of some existing structures, and excavating the structures to grade 
(approximately 25 feet in depth).  The final excavation contract Site Preparation C involves installing 
micropiles in the bottom of the shored excavation to support the foundation of the Clean Water Facility.

The attached amendment to Hoffman’s contract (GMP #6) is for work associated with installation of 
micropiles and other direct costs in support of the project.  These direct costs include handling of the 
spoils created during the micropile installation by the site excavation contractor, construction of a flood 
protection dike, installation of a cap break, and sheet piles for the tower crane.  Hoffman also includes 
preparing a tower crane foundation and erection of the tower crane as part of this GMP. 

Due to site flooding concerns, connection to the outfall has been advanced in the project schedule.  
Permitting, design and procurement of this pipe section has not been completed, so an allowance has 
been established to keep this portion advancing.  It is anticipated that the construction cost of the outfall 
will be competitively determined.

In order to accomplish Site Preparation C, the micro pile work was advertised for bid.  Bids were 

129



opened on December 17, 2015.  A summary of the bid results is shown below:

Bidder                                                             Amount

Condon Johnson                                             $2,135,750.00

Donald Murphy                                              $2,223,500.00

Malcolm Drilling                                           $2,223,500.00

Budlinger                                                        $3,099,321.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Condon Johnson 
Construction, in the amount of $2,135,750.00. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #6) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingency, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in 
Attachment B.  At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax 
amounts but those amounts are included in the contract.

GMP #6 totals to $3,966,503 plus $345,086 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

opened on December 17, 2015.  A summary of the bid results is shown below:

Bidder                                                             Amount

Condon Johnson                                             $2,135,750.00

Donald Murphy                                              $2,223,500.00

Malcolm Drilling                                           $2,223,500.00

Budlinger                                                        $3,099,321.00

Package Estimate                                           $2,900,000

Hoffman Construction recommends award to the lowest responsive bidder, Condon Johnson 
Construction, in the amount of $2,135,750.00. 

In accordance with the base agreement with Hoffman Construction, a Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Agreement (GMP #6) was prepared by Perkins Coie, the contracted legal counsel for the project 
(Attachment A).  This GMP amount includes the direct cost of the work, Negotiated Support Services, 
contingency, GC/CM fee, and Specified General Conditions.  These amounts are summarized in 
Attachment B.  At the advice of Perkins Coie, GMP Amendments do not specifically state the Sales Tax 
amounts but those amounts are included in the contract.

GMP #6 totals to $3,966,503 plus $345,086 in Sales Tax. The budget for this work in included in the 
overall Clean Water Facility Project Budget.

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
 October 20, 2015 GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B
 October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer 

Prep B
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP:
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

Hoffman GC/CM Contract Summary:

 July 1, 2014 – Base agreement approved by council
 Base agreement included the bid GC/CM fee of 4.28% on constructed work.
 Base agreement also included up to a maximum of $790,050 for preconstruction services.
 December 2, 2014 - GMP#1 approved by council  for early procurement of Membrane 

Bioreactor (MBR) and Ultraviolet Disinfection equipment for an amount of $2, 533,317.
 April 21, 2015-GMP #2 approved by council for construction of the Outfall Diffuser in the 

amount of $2,337,687. 
 June 16, 2015—GMP #3 approved by council for construction of Site Prep B in the 

amount of $908,872
 October 20, 2015 GMP #4 was approved by Council for construction Site Prep B
 October 20, 2015 GMP #5 was approved by Council for procurement of a Solids Dryer 

Prep B
 Anticipated Subsequent GMP Components as follows will be combined for the total project 

GMP:
 Additional early equipment procurement (solids equipment, data processing 

equipment, etc.)
 WWTP construction
 Site work improvements (landscape, parking, etc.)

130



FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $3,966,503 + Sales Tax ($345,086)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery 
method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 –   City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 –    City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a 
General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) 
project.

2-18-2014 –    City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of 
Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 –    City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman 
Construction in connection with the new WWTP project. 

12-2-14 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 

FISCAL IMPACT
Funds Required:                     $3,966,503 + Sales Tax ($345,086)   

Appropriation Source:            Wastewater Fund                                

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
PREVIOUS COUNCIL ACTIONS

12-3-2013 –    City Council adopted Resolution 13-32 directing staff to pursue GC/CM as the delivery 
method for the new wastewater treatment plant.

12-17-2013 –   City Council adopted Ordinance 1682 amending Oak Harbor Municipal Code to 
include a provision for alternative project delivery methods.

2-18-2014 –    City Council authorized staff to advertise a request for qualifications (RFQ) to select a 
General Contractor / Construction Manager (GC/CM) for the new wastewater treatment plant (WWTP) 
project.

2-18-2014 –    City Council authorized the Mayor to sign and submit the Application for Project 
Approval – GC/CM Delivery for construction of the new wastewater treatment plant to the State of 
Washington Capital Projects Advisory Review Board – Project Review Committee.

7-1-2014 –    City Council authorized the Mayor to sign the A-133 agreement with Hoffman 
Construction in connection with the new WWTP project. 

12-2-14 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 12-2-14 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 
Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

4-21-15 –    City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of 
$2,337,687.

6-16-15 –    City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of 
$908,872.

10-20-15 –   City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of 
$5,109,549.

10-20-15 –   City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount of 
$2,028,222.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

12-2-14 –    City Council authorized GMP #1 for procurement of Membrane Bioreactor (MBR) and 
Ultraviolet (UV) equipment in the amount of $2,553,317.00.

4-21-15 –    City Council authorized GMP #2 for construction of the wastewater outfall in the amount of 
$2,337,687.

6-16-15 –    City Council authorized GMP #3 for construction of Site Preparation A in the amount of 
$908,872.

10-20-15 –   City Council authorized GMP #4 for construction of Site Preparation B in the amount of 
$5,109,549.

10-20-15 –   City Council authorized GMP #5 for procurement of the Solids Dryer in the amount of 
$2,028,222.

CITY COUNCIL WORKSHOPS

11-13-2013 – Project funding and alternative project delivery were discussed.

11-19-2013 – Project delivery options were discussed.

131



02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)
2. Attachment B - GMP #6 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #6
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (Base Agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
8. Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
9. Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)

02-26-2014 – Established the GC/CM contractor selection and review team.

06-25-2014 – Selection of the GC/CM was discussed.

11-19-2014 – GMP#1 bids for UV and MBR were discussed

04-07-2015 – Council review of the 30% cost estimate

05-17-2015 – Council review of site selection process

05-27-2015 – Council review of GMP #3

09-30-2015 – Council review of the 60% Cost Estimate and solids options

ATTACHMENTS
1. Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)
2. Attachment B - GMP #6 Summary of Amendment Costs
3. Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #6
4. Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (Base Agreement)
5. Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
6. Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
7. Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
8. Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
9. Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)

132

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619690_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619726_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619760_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619799_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619854_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619905_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452619953_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452620004_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452620044_at.pdf


CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 133



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 134



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 135



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment A 136



City of Oak Harbor,  Washington

Clean Water Facility Project
7-Jan-16

Hoffman Project Number 5100014 Rev 2

GMP Amendment No 6 Recapitulation

Site Prep C -- Micropile Installation 

Direct Cost of Work

Micro-pile installation CJA 2,087,050$                           

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 1 Pellco 73,149$                                 

Micro-pile spoils handling Phase 2 and Cap Break at 

Headworks Area Pellco 32,513$                                 

Sheet pile adjustment for tower crane ftg CJA 54,108$                                 

Site flood protection dike Pellco 9,000$                                   

Connection to new outfall (Allowance) TBD 310,000$                              

Total Direct Costs 2,565,820$                           

Negotiated Support Services

Negotiated Support Services HCC 558,105$                              

Tower Crane Foundation and Crane  Erection 243,415$                              

Procurement of Diesel Pump for Plant WWF Xylem 98,624$                                 

Total NSS 900,144$                              

Total NSS and Direct Costs 3,465,964$                           

GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% 121,309$                              

Owner Design Contingency at 2.0% 69,319$                                 

Total Direct+NSS+Risk Conting. 3,656,592$                           

Specified General Conditions 147,112$                              

Sub-Total 3,803,704$                           

GCCM Fee at 4.28% 162,799$                              

Total GMP Cost 3,966,503$                           

Washington State Sales Tax @ 8.7% 345,086$                              

Total Amendment No 6 (Incl. Sales Tax) 4,311,589$                      

Previously Issued Amendments (Exclusive of WSST)

Preconstruction Services 790,050$                              

GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 2,553,317$                           

GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 1,991,249$                           

GMP Amendment No. 3 - Site Prep A 836,130$                              

GMP Amendment No. 4 - Site Prep B 5,109,549$                           

GMP Amendment No. 5 - Solids Dryer 2,028,222$                           

Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment w/o WSST 17,275,020$                    

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 137



City of Oak Harbor Washington

Clean Water Facility Project

Hoffman Project Number 5100014

GMP Amendment No 6 - Addition of Micropiles

Negotiated Support Services Scope

16 Week Duration 

Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 006088 Builders Risk Insurance   (.01 TCC) 4,312.00$                               

NSS 007001 Office manager (4 mos) 20,368.00$                             

NSS 007001 Job services   / field supt - E Spicer  (4mos) 47,120.00$                             

NSS 007001 Bob Boyce  -- BIM modeling   (8  hours per week x 16 weeks) 12,800.00$                             

NSS

NSS 007012 Temp housing (16 weeks) 6,000.00$                               

NSS 007024 Construction Photographs -$                                         

NSS 007026 Plans and Prints -$                                         

TC 007061 Initial Tower Crane Rental Incl w-amend 4

TC 007065 Tower crane inbound freight Incl w-amend 4

TC 015200 Tower crane foundation concrete and reinforcing steel HCC 68,850.00$                             

TC 015200 Tower crane isolation box design Larson 2,359.00$                               

TC 015200 Tower crane footing excavation and subbase Pellco 9,553.00$                               

TC 015200 Tower crane footing stone columns  (16 each) Malcolm 14,960.00$                             

TC 007067 Tower crane erection NWTC 23,300.00$                             

TC 007067 Tower crane erection tech assist Morrow - HCC 13,000.00$                             

TC 007067 Tower crane test weight freight Ness 1,000.00$                               

TC 007067 Tower crane erection assist cranes Ness 35,648.00$                             

TC 007067 Tower crane initial inspection 3rd party Kent 8,765.00$                               

TC 007067 Tower crane electrical 3rd party inspection ETI 1,830.00$                               

TC 007067 Tower crane tower retorque NWTC, Morrow 5,600.00$                               

TC 007069 Initial crane rigging supply HCC 5,000.00$                               

NSS 015750 Initial crane operator ( 6/19/16 - 7/19/16) Garner 17,780.00$                             

NSS 015750 Rigger / Bellman for tower crane (4weeks) Garner 17,340.00$                             

NSS na Tower crane foundation sheet piling impacts Condon $54,108 - carry in directs

TC 007067 Tower Crane Embed Anchor Morrow 16,550.00$                             FOB Jobsite per Morrow

TC 015100 Tower Crane Temporary Power Supply 12,000.00$                             

NSS 007061 RT Crane for duration of Micropile Work (16 weeks) Triad Mach 59,372.00$                             

NSS 007065 Transport Equipment -$                                         

NSS 007065 RT Crane mob/demob Triad Mach 5,000.00$                               

NSS 007069 Small Tools (4 months) 2,400.00$                               

NSS 015750 Operator for RT Crane  (4/4/16 - 7/31/16) - 16 weeks 70,160.00$                             

NSS 007061 RT Forklift (8000#) Third Party 16 weeks 8,000.00$                               

NSS 007060 Job Services Pickup -$                                         

NSS 007060 Radio rental extension (16 weeks) 1,216.00$                               

NSS 007060 Additional radios (4ea x 4 weeks) 304.00$                                   

Add radios for operators 

and bellman

NSS 007060 Material basket (little ricky) 16 weeks 600.00$                                   

NSS 007060 Tip dumpsters (4 each x 16 weeks) 2,400.00$                               

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 138



Group Code Description Sub Amount Comment

NSS 007063 Gas Oil and Maint 25,247.00$                             

NSS 007063 Fuel and Maint on Diesel Pump 1,965.00$                               

NSS 007081 Sales and Use Tax 10,982.00$                             

NSS 007098 Computer Charges (16 weeks) 800.00$                                   

NSS 015940 Extension of Answering Service (130/month)

Answering 

Innovations 520.00$                                   

NSS 010500 Ming Survey  95st and 117ot    (768hrs ST and 10hrs OT) Ming 74,060.00$                             

NSS 007024 Orthographically corrected aerial photos for Design Soundview 4,965.00$                               

Direct Berming of site perimeter (flood protection dike) Pellco In direct costs

NSS 015300 Watercade Barrier at Wells Fargo (212lf)  4 months Yard 2,244.00$                               

NSS 015300 Fence Rental Extension  (4 months) United 1,300.00$                               

NSS 015180 Temp Water Service (4 months) 640.00$                                   

NSS 015280 First Aid / Water Stations  (4 each - Purchase) Yard 3,000.00$                               

NSS 015100 Temporary Electric

TC 015100 Tower crane -- transformer and drop off existing pole, 300' 25,000.00$                             

NSS 015100 North side site power fed from Whidbey Island Bank Bldg Valley 16,000.00$                             

NSS 015100 Temporary electric service to jobshack area 3,600.00$                               

3ea 4" conduits x 200lf 

w/SO Cord

NSS 007060 Temporary power PDU's (3 each , 16 weeks) 6,750.00$                               

NSS 015150 Temp Sanitation (Latrines, wash station x 16 weeks) 24,260.00$                             

NSS 015180 Backflow preventer and meter on water service By COH

NSS 015940 Inkjet plotter  -- field office 5,000.00$                               

NSS 015200 Coiling door installation at North Side of WIB 3,000.00$                               

NSS 015200 Extension of stair tower rental (16wks) 4,800.00$                               

NSS 015200 Installation of second stair tower 8,000.00$                               

NSS 015200 Second stair tower rental (12 weeks) 3,600.00$                               

NSS 015200 Prefabricated dumpster access platform 5,000.00$                               

NSS 015200 Concrete pad at dumpster access 12'x24'x4" 3,000.00$                               

NSS 015220 Street Sweeper (2x per week - 16 weeks) 8,000.00$                               

NSS 015282 Drug Tests  (50 ea) 4,250.00$                               

NSS 015800 Signage  (20/ea @ 150) 750.00$                                   

NSS 015920 Field Office Equip and Supply  (4 months) 3,200.00$                               

NSS 015940 Phone and Postage 3,600.00$                               

NSS 017990 Job Services (16 weeks, one individual) 54,400.00$                             

801,520.00$                       

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 139



Specified General Conditions & Staffing

Weeks Weekly Rate Total

Trevor Thies 12 3,270$            39,240$          

Bryan Shirley 14 3,818$            53,452$          

Ben Larson 16 2,745$            43,920$          

136,612$        

Other LS GC 10,500$          

Total Specified GC 147,112$        

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment B 140



 Project: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility Work Item: Bid Comparison - Micropiles Date Printed: 1/5/2016

Job No: 5100014 Bid Package: #2- Site Prep C File:    BC 02340
Cost
Code

Spec
Section

HCCO
Budget Condon - Johnson Donald Murphy Malcom Drilling Budinger

  
Bid Comparison - Micropiles 02340 $2,901,440 $2,071,000 $2,115,000 $2,649,000 $2,924,431
Payment & Performance Bonds $16,050 $18,050 $26,825 $23,500

Unit Price for Obstruction Abandonment of Piles $6,000 $14,000 $5,000 $41,600
Extended amount for 200 LF $30/lf $70/lf $25/lf $208/lf

Unit Price for Addition of Micro Piles $52,500 $79,500 $105,000 $204,750
Extended amount for 15 piles $3500/each $5300/each $7000/each $13650/each

Unit Price for Deletion of Micro Piles ($20,000) ($21,000) ($20,000) ($136,500)
Extended amount for 10 piles $2000/each $2100/each $2000/each $13650/each

Unit Price for Add/Reduce Micro Pile Length $10,200 $18,000 $18,000 $41,600
Extended amount for 200 LF $51/lf $90/lf $90/lf $208/lf

Total Bid Amount $2,901,440 $2,135,750 $2,223,550 $2,783,825 $3,099,381 $0 $0 $0 $0
Yet to Buy

Total Budget  $2,901,440 $2,135,750 $2,223,550 $2,783,825 $3,099,381 $0 $0 $0 $0

Bid Bond
Addendum No. 1 - 4
WA License # CONDOJA034N7 DONALI331RQ MALCOD263BS BUDINA1055OM
Federal ID 94-2248694 91-0826786 94-1671918 91-1684799
Washington UBI 601368804 278049134 6000535337 601638902
Washington ES Number 746380008 307986000 439189009 842157006
DBE Forms Included Included Included Included

We recommend that this work be awarded to:  Condon - Johnson Approved:  Yes ____  /  No ____
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY Subcontract/Purchase Agreement Amount:  $2,135,750
1505 WESTLAKE AVENUE NORTH, SUITE 500 We recommend that this work be bonded:  Yes
SEATTLE, WASHINGTON  98109 Estimated Bond Cost:  Included in bid amount

http://www.hoffmancorp.com Hoffman Construction Company By:  ___________________________ ___________________________

Date:  1/5/2016 Date:  ________________

Description of Work

B
id

 C
o

m
p

a
ri

s
o

n
 /

 A
w

a
rd

 R
e

c
o

m
m

e
n

d
a

ti
o

n

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment C 141



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 142



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 143



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 144



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 145



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 146



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 147



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 148



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 149



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 150



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 151



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 152



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 153



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 154



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 155



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 156



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 157



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 158



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 159



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 160



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 161



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 162



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 163



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 164



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 165



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 166



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 167



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 168



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 169



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 170



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 171



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 172



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 173



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 174



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 175



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 176



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 177



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 178



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 179



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 180



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 181



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 182



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 183



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 184



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 185



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 186



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 187



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 188



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 189



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 190



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 191



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 192



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 193



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 194



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 195



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 196



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 197



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 198



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 199



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 200



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 201



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 202



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 203



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 204



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 205



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 206



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 207



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 208



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 209



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 210



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 211



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 212



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 213



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 214



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 215



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 216



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 217



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 218



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 219



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 220



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 221



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 222



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 223



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 224



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 225



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 226



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 227



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 228



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 229



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 230



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 231



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 232



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 233



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 234



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 235



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 236



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 237



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 238



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 239



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 240



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 241



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 242



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 243



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 244



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 245



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 246



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 247



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 248



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 249



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 250



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 251



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 252



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 253



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 254



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 255



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 256



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 257



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 258



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 259



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 260



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 261



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 262



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 263



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 264



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 265



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 266



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 267



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 268



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 269



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 270



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 271



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 272



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 273



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 274



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 275



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 276



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 277



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 278



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 279



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 280



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 281



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 282



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 283



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 284



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 285



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 286



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 287



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 288



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 289



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment D 290



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment E 291



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment E 292



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment E 293



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment E 294



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment F 295



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment F 296



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment F 297



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment F 298



lnlt. 

I AIA Document A 133111 

- 2009 Exhibit A 
Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment 

for the following PROJECT: 
(Name a11d address or locat/011) 

Oak Barbor Clean W.ter Fac!Uty 

THE OWNER: 
(Name, legal status a11d address) 

City of Oak Harbor 
865 SE Barrington Drive 
Oak HarbQr. WMfijnston 98277 

THE CONSTRUCTION MANAGER: 
(Name, legal status and address) 

Hol!maa Construction Company of Washington 
I SOS WistJake Aym\12 N .. Suite 500 
Settle. Wasbjngton 98109 

ARTICLE A.1 
§ A.1.1 Guaranteed Maximum Price 
Pursuant to Section 2.2.6 of the Agreement. the Owner and Construction Manager hereby 
amend the Agi:cemcnt to estelish a Q1tw1eed MuiMttlft Priee. avthorizc tbe 
Constmctim Manam to procees! wjth the Work of Sjtc Peco A - J>artja! Excavation and 
Arcbeologica! Survey <"Site Prmr A'!) and to establish a Guaranteed Maximum Price for 
the Site Prm A Work and relatijl •NCiOtjated Support Services and Soecified General 
Coniiirions. The Owner and'CjjstrnctiOn Manager anticipate subsequent amendment(s) to 
tbg Agrec;ment to establish a Gtiapnteed Maximum Price for tbc rm aindq of!he Work. 
Jhjs js the Third GMP Ammdinmt fq tbis Project. As agreed by the Owner and 
Construction Manager, die Guaranteed Maximum Price is an amount that the Contract 
Sum·shal! not e11eeed1 exceed for.the Site Prm A Work and related Negotiates! Suwgrt 
Services and Soccified 'Genera! 'Conditions. The Contract Sum consists of the Construction 
Manager's Fee plus' the Cost of the Work, as that term is defined in Article 6 of this 
AgreemenL 

§ A.1.1.1 The Contract Sum is guaranteed by the Construction Manager not to exceed ES 
r,.Ejght Hundred Thitty-Six Thousand One Huncted Thirty Dollars ($836.130.00) fq the 
Site Prm A WorJc and includes all related Nesotiated Support Services. Specified General 
Conditions, Cootingency. and the Construction Manaeq's Fee of 4.28%, subject to 
additions and deductions by Change Order as provided in the Contract Documents. Sales 
lll! is not jncludCd jn the aboVC amount and wj!I be added to the Cost of the Wor!s. 

§ A.1.1.2 Itemized Statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price. Provided below is an 
itemized statement of the Guaranteed Maximum Price organized by trade categories, 
allowances, contingmcies, alternates, the Construction Manager's Fee, and other items 
that comprise the Guaranteed Maximum Price. 
(Pro1'ide below or n fere11ce a11 anac/1me11t.) 

Thls document has lmpcrtant 
legal consequences. 
CansullaUon wilh an attorney 
Is encouraged wilh respect to 
Its completion or modification. 

AtA Document A201 ""-2007, 
General Conditions of the 
Contract for Construction, Is 
adopted In this document by 
reference. Do not use with other 
general condlUons unless this 
document Is modified. 

AJA Document A133"' -2009 Eahlblt A. CopyrightO 1991, 2003 and 2009 by The Amark:an lnslltute Df An:hltecta. All rights reserved. WARHING: This 
AJA• Document 19 protected by U.S. Copyright Law and lnlematlonal Treaties. Unauthorized n1procluc:tlon ordlseributlon of this AJA" Document, <rK 1 
..., portion of It, ...., rwult In HVere c:lvll and erlmlnal penaltle1, and will be prosecuted to the maalmum •atn poulble und• the law. Thia 
document was pniduced by AJA llOftware at 08:28:11 on 0lilll9/2015 under Order No.1248342233_ 1 whlc:h explras on 04l22/2016, and Is not far resale. 
User Notes: {18319417501 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 299



lnlt. 

See the Ho[man Construction Company GMP Ameodmcnt No. 3 Recapitulation for SjJe frm A - Partial 
Excavation and Archeologiql Swvey. 

§ A.1.1.3 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based on the following alternates, if any, which are described in the 
Contract Documents and are hereby accepted by the Owner: 
(Slate tlie 1111mbers or other identificatio11 of accepted altemates. /f tlie Co11tract Doc11ments pem1it tlie Owner to 
accept oilier alternates subseq11ellt to tlie execution of this Ame,,dme111. attach a schedule of such other alternates 
showing the amo1mt for eacll a11d the date wlien the amo1111t expires.) 

Subcontractor Payment and Pcrfonnance Bond. included within the above prjce. 

§ A.1.1.4 Allowances included in the Guaranteed Maximum Price, if any: 
(Identify allowance and state e:cclmions, if a1!)', from tire a/fowa11ce price.) 

Item 
' Arcbco!ogical discovsrjq 

Dcwatcr!ne 

Price ($0.00) 
$57.114.00 
$14.400.00 

§ A.1.1.5 Assumptions, if any, on which the Guaranteed Maximum Price is based: 

See the Hoffman Construction ComDaDv GMP Amendment No. 3 Recapitulation for Site Prco A· Panjal 
Exavatjoo and ArchaeoloSjcal Survey. 

§ A.1.1.6 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Supplementary and other Conditions of the 
Contract: See the Oak Harbor Wastewater Treatment Plant Site Preparation and Archeologica! Exolm tjon 
TcchniCal Specifi cations elated June 8. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maidmurn Price 
Amendment. 

Doc:umant Title Date 

§ A.1.1.7 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Specifications: 
(Either list the Specifications l1ere. or refer to a11 e.Tl1ibit attaclred to this Agreement.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Wu1cwa1er Treatment Plant Sjte Pre;paratjon and Archeologica! Ewloratim Technical Soecifications 
c!atcc! Jvni S. 2015 and other documents listed in this Guaranteed Maximum Ptjcc AD1endmc:nt. 

Section Title Date 

§ A.1.1.8 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following Drawings: 
(Either list the Drawings here, or refer to an e:x/1iblt attac/1ed to tliis Agreeme11t.) 

Pages 

Oak Harbor Clean Water facility Sjte Preparation and Arclteo!ogical Exploration PacJsage dated June 8. 201 S and 
other documeots list·cd in thjs Guaranleed Maximum Price Amendment 

Number Title Date 

§ A.1.1.9 The Guaranteed Maximum Price is based upon the following other documents and information: 
(list any other doc11me11ts or i11fom1atio11 here. or refer to a11 e.Thibit attached to this Agreeme111.) 

Construction Manager shall comply with Washjngton Pcoanment of Ecology fimd jng requirements including the 
Water POllUtion Control Revolving Fund Spscjfications Insert dated 10/30/13. Construction Manager will perform 
construction activities in accordance wjth !he City of Oak Harbor Cultural Resources Memorandum of Agreement 
approved April 21. 2015. 

ARTICLE A:I. 
I § A.2.1 The anticipated date of Substantial Completion for Site Peco A Work established by this Amendment: 

AIA Document AU31M - 2009 Exhllllt A. Copyright 0 1991, 2003 llld 2009 by The American lnstltu1e of An:hltacts. All rtg"'9 rallmld. WARNING: This 
AIA• Document I• pnitecttld by U.S. Copyright Law and lnc.matlonal TIWlllln. Unauthorized 1Wprocluctlon 0t dlstrlbullan of this AIA8 Document. or 2 
my portion of It, mmy Mull In....,.,. ctvn and crlmlnlll jMNl!tln, end will be proMCUted to the mulmum utent poslllble under the llw. This 
doc:umllnt wat produced by AIA IOllwanl at 08:28:11 on 06l09l201S under Order No.1248342233_ 1 which expires on 04/22/2016, and 19 not far l1IS8le. 
UNI' Notes: (1831941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 300



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 301



Certlflcatlcm of Document's Authenticity 
AfA®'Document D401TM- 2003 

I, Graehm C. Wallace, hereby certify, to the best of my knowledge, information and bclier, that I created the 
attached final document simultaneously with this certillcation at 08:28: II on 06/09/2015 under Order No. 
1248342233_1 fi'om AlA Contract Documents sol\ ware and that in preparing the attached final document I made no 
chflflges to th~ original text of AIA10 Document AIJJTM- 2009 Exhibit A, Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment, 
as published by the AlA in its software, other than changes shown in the attached final document by underscoring 
added text and strik. ng over deleted text. 

------~ ( v_~-+-(__;r 5==----------
roaredJ 

AlA Documont 0401"'- 2001 Cop~lf)ht 0 1992 and 2003 by The Amerlc:onlnaUMII of .Alehltacts. All tlghtu 1'11118rvod. WARNING: Thlu AIA0 Document Is 
protected by U.S, Copylfght t..ow and lnlomattonal Treatloo. Unauti\Qiiufl roproduetlon or dlalrlbutlon of lhls AIAQ Document, or any portion of It, 1 
may mutt In IHIV&I'il clvU Md criminal panal!leu, and wHI be proG<Jcu!Mito the mW<Imum extent poll!llblo undor tho raw. Thl9 docLO'llent was produced by 
AlA software at 06·28:11 or1 05/09/20151Rldar0rdar No.1240342233_1 which OI<JlilllB on0<1122J201&, 11M lo notror reaillo. 
Uaer Notllll: (1031941750) 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 302



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY n OF WASHINGTON 

City of Oak Harbor, Washington 
Clean Water Facility Project 
Hoffman Project Number 5100014 

GMP Amendment No 3 Recapit ulation 
Site Prep A - Partial Excavation and Archaeological Survey 

1 Direct Cost of Work 

2 Site Prep A 
3 Allowances for Archaeological Discoveries 
4 Allowance for Dewatering Pumping 
5 Total Direct Costs 

6 
7 Negotiated Support Services 

8 
9 

10 
11 

See Detail 

Total NSS 

12 
13 

Total NSS and Direct Costs 

14 GMP Risk Contingency at 3.5% of Direct Costs 
15 
16 Total Dlrect+NSS+Risk Contlng. 
17 
18 Specified General Conditions 
19 
20 Sub Bonds 
21 
22 Sub-Total 
23 

$ 
$ 
$ 
$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

$ 

$ 

$ 

1$ 

546,562 
57,114 
14.400 

618,076 

152,834 

770.909 I 

21,633 

192.541 I 

9,271 

801.812 I 
24 GCCM Fee at 4.28% $ 34.318 

25 ..-~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~~,r--~~~~~-, 
26 TotalGMPCostThisAmendment IS 836.130 I 
27 Washington State Sales Tax@8.7% $ 72.743 
28 Total Amendment No 3 (lncls Sales Tax) I $ 908,872 I 

Previously Issued Amendments (Including WSST) 

Preconstruction Services 
GMP Amendment No 1 -- Early Purchase MBR-UV 
GMP Amendment No. 2 - Outfall Construction 
Total GC/CM Contract with this Amendment incl WSST 

$ 
$ 
$ 

Is 

790,050 
2,775,456 
2.1§4.488 
6,638,866 I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 303



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUC'nON COMPANY noF-
BUILDING 
LOCA TION 
ENGINEE R 
SU BJECT 

o •. H • ••• . c ... . .. w .. .. f .. .... . 
O • • H . .... , W'4 
c . ... . 
GMP [ ••• .,. S • • P •• • A 

"'"•' Oe•••• u•• 
BuUdlna Gross .<:nuare ...,,,,,_ 

Reid Dintion 

DIVISION i! - EXISTING CONDITIONS 
0241 13 s •.• u ••• s.,. o .......... .. 
oz., 18 s ..... ..... o . ... ..... .. 
024119 s . .. .... . e ...... n. o .. .......... .. 
025000 S ... R. - . ........ .. 
021000 w •••. ~ .... .. ........ .. 
OZIOOO F ...... R.- ....... . 

DIVISION JI - EA RTllWORX 
312200 G . • • • o 

312300 E. . . ......... F.,, 
312319 o .......... . 
312500 E . . . ........ $.,,. __ ., ,., ....... c ... , ... , 
31 <COCO S .... ., .. ,. . ... . u .... . ... ,,,,,, .. "' 
31 tlCIO O.,, ... P., .. . 
316100 & ... ... P .... . 

SUBTOTAL. DIA.[CT COSTS 

GENERAL CONDITIONSANSIJRANCE 
G •• •• • • c ........ . 
s • ., a ... ,,. . 
P ...... .. . . B .. .. 
PL & POt .. ....... . . 
8 .. .. ... . , R,, . 1 ...... . ... . 
B&OT •• 

NEGOTIATED SUPPORT SERVICES 
DESIGN & EST/MA TING CONnNCENCY 
GCCM RISK CONTINGENCY 
GCCMFEE 

TOTAL. ESTIMATED CONSTRUCTION COST 

SAL£STAX 
s ..... .. . .... s •... 1 •. 

S .. . P •• ., A 

TO!Al . E.:>llt.IATED GUARANTEED MAXIMUM PRICE 

E .. 
o .. u •• 

0 

0 

t .. 
1 .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

I .. 
I .. 
t .. 
I .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 
1 .. 

1 .. 
I 5% •• 

r ·-
F • • 

NSS 

··-
I .. 

.1'·!'.\ 
1 .. 

~ IO'i< •• 

S ... P . • ,. A ~2 

PROJECT csr ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• 
P ... . 

S )l 4S!i, 56 

1000 
1000 
>ODO 
5000 

SSS l lO 88 
1263 88• 96 
S6U38 00 

S129 798 40 

$0.00 
SGIB.015 80 

F •• 
F • • 

NSS 
F • • 

51 52 83•00 
1000 

5818 015 80 
n• 311 &2 

Hl6 1'l1 

P . ,. .. i .,, 6, 

s ... 

111 •8& 

10 
10 

s8n11 
5263 805 
161 536 

1129 798 

S6 1B 076 

50 
U 2'1 

f •• 
f •• 
NSS 
f • • 

11 52 83' 
so 

S21 6Jl 
SJ< 318 

$836,131 

172 HJ 

,..,...175 

T ••• • P • ., • •• 
c ••. 

S71 486 
so 
so 
10 
so 
so 

185 371 
S263 885 

167.536 
s 12g198 

10 
so 
so 

$618 076 

F • • 
r •• 

so 
S9 21 1 

'155 
F •• 

S1 52 834 
so 

S21.633 
U 4 318 

$838.131 

s 72 14 3 

$908,875 

JOB NO 51 0001' 
ESTIMATOR IH T 

CHFCKED BY CAB 
DATE 61' 11 S> 

DWG DATE 

'···· c • • Jo .•••••• 

S7l 486 

$5•6 51)() 

SG l 8 076 

S118 055 

c •• • ••.. 

OOO'lo .. . .. . . . .... . 

1 . ...... •• F •• 

1 .... q .... .. ,., tiSS 
1 .. .., .., ....... F .... 

N . .. . , • • SP Jt. 

4 281' •• ,. •• , . ..... . , . 

$838.131 

112 70 

S908.875 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 304



LJ HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY ,-,OFWAIHINmlN 
BUILDING 
LOCATION 
ENGINEER 
SUBJECT 

A • .,, 

Q .. . H . . .... C .... . \V •• r "" "" ' 5,.. P . ... A 
O ... tt .. , .... Wflo. 
c ...... 
GMP E •• ,...... S ... P .• ,. A 

u ... ..... . 

c ..... ... , ,, .• , ....... : 

c .. 
o. 

S .. .. A11 .. . ... ,. S .... , ,., , A, . -••-* • t; . . ..... ... .. .. , ... .. £ . ... ... ... .. . 

S ., . p . .. . A ,2 

PROJECT CSI ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

u •• I P ..... s •. u •• 
I 

r . •• J .. . & 

JOB NO \ 100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHEC(ED BV CAB 
DATE GJ111S 

owe; DATE 

I f ••u P••i•'"' I T • •" I c •.. c •• Jo .•••.•• 
I I I 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 305



R0n')1.\S CO~STRUCTtO:'l COMPA.lll(y 
er \\'ASIUJ\'.GTON 

5, . P ••• A.2 

LIST OF ASSUMPTIONS. CLARIFICATIONS, AND EXCLUSIONS 

BUILDING o ... H . ...... Ci.en Wet• • Fu ;oi.t :r S.r. p, • • A 
LOCATION Q. , H..... WA 
ENGINEER C . ..... 
SUBJECT L. ., • ' A .. ... ... ~ .... , & c ,. o"r•••••u P ....... . . E. ,,..,. . u 

BASIS OF ESTIMATE 
~ ... o._. 

1 6/3/1 5 HCC 
2 6/411 5 HCC 

1. 6/4/15 HCC 
4 
s 
~ 

7 

" 
ASSUMP1IONS OlJAl!E!CAJQNS INCL l/S!ONS AND EXCLUSIONS· 
~OM A.oo D•o••••n 

1. Hr r 
? Hr r 

HCC 

HCC 

1.1 r r 

6. 
1 
A 
Q 

11 
12 
n ,. 

Ill 

n ,, 
,. ,. 
26 

'"· on 

31 
12 

,. 

1A 

41 

44 
45 

47 

•• 
4Q 

51. 

• ..... S.,. P ••• A •• ., ~ . . .. 

o ... ., ....... .. 

N. • , .... .. .. , ""'"o,.. ar •• • '" " " "' "' , .., ,,.6 1M •• d 

108 NO 5100014 
ESTIMATOR THT 

CHECKED ev CAB 
DATE &111 5 

DWC.. DATE 0 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 306



Site Prep A r2 
HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Oak Harbor Clean Water Facility - Site Prep A ESTIMATE NO. 5100014 
LOCATION: Oak Harbor , WA ESTIMATOR: THT 
ARCHITECT: Carollo CHECKED BY: CAB 
SUBJECT: Division 2 Summary DATE: 6/1/15 

Dwr... nATE: 0 
TOTAL ES T UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST TOT/IL EST 

ACCT Df<;r.RIPTION OF WORK n llANTITY UNIT LABOR • ARnRCOST MTL MTL COST COST 

02 4113 
,_ 

CIHa -

Demolish Asnhall P"vfnn 48000 sf I0.7' 134 733 
Demo curbs Planters and Tr....., 60 tns S234.36 '-14 OR? 
Demo Undemround Utlllties 490 If 124.30 111907 
CaoUtillties ea incl 
Demo Site Liaht Pnl- and Circuits 6 ea !1:1 080.00 S6480 
Demo Uoht Pole Bases 6 ea C:'U2.36 520541 
Prntect Fire Hvdrant 1 ea !l:."'10.00 S500 

Protect monilorino wel 1 8 " 1250.nn $250 
Relocate Postal Service Gano Box 1 ea 11 500.00 S1 500 

171486 

!!:71486 571486 
Subcontractor GC, Eouic. OH&P incl 

Total, S.....,. Sect. 02 4113: ---> $71486 

Page 5 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 307



Site Prep A r2 

HOFFMAN CONSTRUCTION COMPANY OF WASHINGTON 

ESTIMATE SUMMARY 

BUILDING: Q • k Harbor C1aan Wacor Fe c-111t:t . Sil• Prop A ESTIMATE NO 51 0001 4 
LOCATION Q .... Harbor . WA ESTIMATOR. THT 
ARCHITECT- C., .... CHECKED BY- CAB 
SUBJECT- D1v1 ·1 .. on 31 Summuy DATE: 611115 

DWG- DATE. 0-J •• 00 
fOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST UNIT PRC TOTAL EST 101AI l Sl 

ACC T DESCRIPTION OF WORr; QUANTITY UNIT LABOR LABOR COST MH MTL COST COS! 

312200 r. .• ~·- -
Erau 1p m •"l mo b 111• a u on end d•moD1h 1t Dt1on 1 .. $39.000.00 $39.000 
Str ip 6 "' T opsotl •t Guas Ar •eu & Disp oso 2,700 .. $3.41 $9.215 
p,.•P and r ock hau l ro•d to stoc:koll• (515. 201 10.300 ., $1.62 $1 6.686 
Pr. a • nd roc k •cc••• roa d lo B••k•m• tt v RV P. , ... 0 " $1.62 so dete r 

Ramps into e1ca v H1 0n (6' high• 20' w ld a) 10:1 ..,...l\ h pad 729 ... $28.08 $20.470 

$85.371 $85,371 
S uocontroc:tor GC, Equip , OH&P tf'ICI 

Toto•, S.oc . s •••. 31 2200: - -> lln~,.J/ I 

31 2300 i ~ , .. ., ., - .. "'a n• F&u 
U nraslrt c-t. oa £ 111 cov•t•on at E 'llltStl ng Fm · P.'"' '"9 Ar • • 9,219 ... $9.75 $89.881 
~chaeolo u 1~•11y s.".IUVO Eicco wot;on 

6" Cut.•, cioonup bu 1; 1t•t. h•\11 to 1o100 111.p1tu 6.981 D<v $15.66 $109.330 
Auow•nc• fa,. Vacuum E•covotjon i8 1o c atton " ) 20 "" $378.00 $7.560 

A11ow•nc• to,. 1/2 p,.oduatlon r' oto ••c • vet.1on 698 ... $21 .17 $14 .778 
As1ow•nc• tor l,; row St.•ndby (••ngl• c ' ew} 40 "'" $1 .058.40 $42.336 

$263.885 

$263.885 $263.885 
Sub c onu- o cno,. GC, Equ i p, OH&P i nlOI 

I oUI , Speo . Soot. 31 23 00: - ------> >LO.>,<><>:> 

31 2319 10 -.w•t•r• • ... 
A 11 owanc• ror pu m po n l'I 12 wk • $1.200.00 $14.400 
Ecc. 1o~:r Stock W,.u D r ain 1.200 ,, $44.28 $53.136 

$67.536 

$67.536 S67,536 
Suoco~vuot•r GC, Equ 1~ , OH&P lrtC:t 

To•••· Sp•• · s •••. 31 2319: --··> .>Dt ,::J.>C 

312500 E',.""" . ....... ·-- s.d ..... -..... "Co -- I 

TESC M .... u, .~ 0\ St.oc ltpll•• 40.500 .. $0,77 $31 .055 
S11t..r •no o ot. we tlond bou nda r ,. wes t o oc ••• l" O lld 0 " $5.40 $0 d o tor 

Snt F on c o 11t. soulft bou n d •r'Y of B eok t mo a ccoaa rood do te r 

D u"t: Conirot wot.O r' uu e lil. 8 wko $1.500.00 $12.000 
Du a\ cont.t'OI •weepel' 8 wk• $1 .250.00 $10.000 

Sundsrd E co4o a'JI 8 1o ck Roulnll'\Q Wau ( 2 h rah) 222 .. $102.60 $22.743 
U1uo Bock R oto 1n •no Wou (J hlahl 313 .. $172-80 $54.000 

$129.798 

$129.798 $129. 798 
Subconuoct.or GC, Equi p . OH&P uu; I 

T ... ,. s •••. S •• •. 31 25 00: -······> :)l .nt ,/tfC 

I 
I 

division 1.ot•t: 5546,590 

Page 6 of 6 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 308



Hottrn•n Constructto"I Comp•"11' 

Building' Q • .., Hert.or Cl••" Wu.r Fa c im, E.i.a"'•t.• S""'"'. ' " Job No : 5109214 
locadon : Oak Ha r boll" . WA Preco n ·> SheH Na : 1 
E ... ,,. • • ,: C .. · 0 110 c. ,. ..: ·> 8 e .... "'.,.,: THT 
Su lloJnt: GMPA .... ,. d ... . ,.,3 ·· 5,,. P .. . . A GSF -> o ... ; 6/3/15 

E. u ... oud L ••• ,. E." '"•t•d M.~ E.u ....... T otel 

Ac et Oe • crllP UO" o ....... uc11' UOM u,.,, .. lo • or Un" M .... ,,., Ca•t Noi. • 
006088 Bulld•r• R1.1it l,..u .. •nce 1 .. 0 17.820 17.820 , 7 .820 NSS ,.,. pr•"''" m 

007001 SuP•' Wl•lon 

Ome• M•n•a•r • Fuu T • .,.. 0 w. 1,000 0 0 0 Amond 2 
s.,H)I Mar . 2 ... ,.1,.,.. 0 Oe)'I 443 0 0 0 A .. . ,.. 2 

007012 Super• llOrJ' T r a v el 

T, .... , ,. ..... b • • NSS 8 w .. 0 250 2.000 2.000 

007026 P 1a 11-• & B•u•p r1nn 

M ••e-a llanaou • 0 .0 Mo 0 250 0 0 NSS 

007060 Equip Ra .. 101· Hott"'•" LS 0 0 0 
Raa •o • • 4 •• 0 w •• 0 19 0 0 NSS 
P1a il •vp • lea J.,, s . .. ,, ,c•• OW1ita 0 150 0 0 NSS 

M11 c 10.0 w •• 0 300 3.000 3,000 NSS 

007061 f._ulp RatUal • Q,,..,,.. 0 LS 0 0 0 NSS 
fo , a. uf\ 10 --· 0 900 9.000 9.000 rr 

007063 Ga• , Ou & Ma1"'•"•nc• 
G •• . Ou & F .... , · E ••• R.cua. 12,000 0 0.20 2.400 2.400 NSS 

007080 U,.. T • • •• an Matorl a la 8 .7% PC 0 -2.600 ·226 -226 

007083 T • • anO frll'\OO 

007098 c.,.. pwt•r c .... ,v•• 0 w •• 0 50 0 0 

010500 Sur"•Y & La,.0 1n 

S ... ,..,.,, (oa "ty or 2) 10 d•1'• 0 1.700 17.000 17.000 NSS 

015100 T •"'P E t eovlo al SF 0 0.22 0 O NSS 
Pow•' D1au1bu1ion U"1t 0 E. 0 3.500 0 0 NSS 
P.- . .. Cord• & Sp•d•r• 0 LS 0 0 NSS 

015110 UtHttJ•• P • .,.,.,. Raimtt Mo 0 650 0 0 B, Owno< 

015120 Uc.nu •• W ••• , 0 Mo 0 100 0 O NSS 
T•mp Wu.rConnac1.& Ram 0 LS 0 2.250 0 0 w1U•

0

am•"'* 2 

015150 T •'"P s •. ut.atiOfl 

L•v•n•• • 2 ••c._ 0.0 Mo 0 0 0 0 whh a"'af\1:1 2 
Handw••" St•t1•11 • 1 ..... 0.0 M. 125 0 0 .... tt. .. amefld 2 

Drop Bo••• and Otapoaa t 0 , •• 0 750 0 0 with amend 2 

015180 Tamp W•ter 0 .0 Mo 0 160 0 0 .., Ith amend 2 

015200 T •mo . Suucu.ira• 
WIS Di..Udlng otn•• ••tup 

C•rpt1t ,epa lr 0 LS 0 1,500 0 0 NSS 
Roor R•P•'' 0 LS 0 1.750 0 0 NSS 
Tot1a1. room r1uur•• and "•P• lr 0 LS 0 1.250 0 0 NSS 
Mtsc. T •mp. 5' .. uct. 2 Mo 6.000 250 6.250 NSS 

015210 T •Mp P,. otao~•n 

Raacota la1td•caOl"G at. L•,.down 0 •• 0 0 0 ••tartonna t g""p 

Arcnaaologlcat S•na1U¥a P.,.,...,.,. 0" 8 0 Owltnamaftd2 

015220 T .... ,, R • ••• & p. , •• ,.. 
Ou at Con«-ol 0 .0 M. 0 750 0 0 ..... , • • , ••• , 

01 5240 T.,..P W oo 8 ••• 0 CY 0 10 0 0 
Tamp S coc1a ,ua aroa 0 .. 0 4.15 0 0 In dlr• a & C IU I 

Print Date: 6/~/m15 PagelofZ FotmRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 309



Hotrm•·" C.nu1· u cc1. ,. c • .; •• "• 

8u11 ~1n 9 : o .... Hu111or c, •• " Wu111r Feont•y E•"'"•U Su,..,,..,.,_ J.111 No: 5109214 

L•••••on: a •• Hue.or , WA Proe:an -> s,, •• t N.: 1 

Eno•"•• ' : c.,.. 11. c. "' .,-, . 8 E.v,,..,o,; THT 
s ... , •• a: GM"P A rot •1Ul,.UM 3 u-s~. p,., .A GSF ·• One! 6/3n5 

Euim•ud L.-.., Est1rq°aud M.a E.v ,,.•u• Tou• 
Aect o •• cne;ci.,, Ouof'IUty UOM U"" Lob or u.,, M ... ,.,. , c .... No••• 

015282 o ... .,. T ••U 35 •• 0 85 2.975 .. 2,975 NSS 

" 015290 f1rscA1d 0 LS 0 1.200 0 Q wlCJ\ •"'end 2 

015300 B . ,.,.lcocl•• ond F • .,, c-fng 

T •"'P fo,..co Ronuf 1,455 LF 0 0.6 87l 873 NSS 
Sotup and R • .., .... , 1.455 LF 1.35 1.964 1.964 NSS 
20' T,.uclt Gu.et 1 .. 450.00 450 450 NSS 
P ........ ""• ' G., •• 2 •• 225.00 450 450 NSS 
F•"•• a ..... , . K R.u 66 •• 75.00 4,928 4.928 NSS 
Ro111ng oc • • • llll O • li. wall 1.290" 15.00 19.350 19,350 NSS 

5 200 1.000 150 750 1,750 NsS 
015800 Consfr.,cUo" S 1111 n • 650 650 650 NSS 

ProJoet Stons 

0 .0 M. 0 800 0 Q wlU\ a "'end 2 
015920 F 0 Eq,..lpmont & SuPJl ~ lt 0 LS 0 3,000 0 0 E.1.u,.9 

f urnt1uro 0 .0 M. 450 0 Q w it~ a"'and~ 
Doc., m one Printer/So• n no,. 0 .0 LS 0 1.500 0 Q w lO• •"'Ond 2 
Oocu'" ont Pr1n1or "'0111/da moll 0 mo 0 40 0 0 WIU• •rn•nd 2 
Scanner 0 ,0 mo 0 100 0 0 wnh amontS 2 
F •• 0 Mo 0 50 0 Q wll,, •'"•nCI 2 
Owner'• Troller Fw,,. & Equip 

0.0 Mo 0 850 0 0 WICh Ofll•fl'd 2 
015940 Pho"• & Po-nao• 0 E. 0 750 0 0 .... n,. • .,..,.. 2 

T oC,l•cComputor• 2o• 0.0 M. 0 125 0 Q with alfto"d 2 
Dou Lu,. •nd Motnc 

GI• • • Ctean t .. 11 

017990 Jota s._..,.,:.. 0 MH 100 0 0 OwlU••m•fla2 
Es • •v•t•d 1aoct "'ontcor / dtr•C:IDr 8 wk• 3,800 30.400 30.400 

033062 Canon ·• • • Pu,..pln9 0 0 0 0 

37,400 115,434 152.834 0 

Print Date: 6/4/2D15 l'lplafl FormRev. 1 

CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment G 310



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment H 311



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment H 312



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment H 313



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment H 314



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment I 315



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment I 316



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment I 317



CWF - GMP Amendment #6 - Attachment I 318



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Transportation Element - Goals 
& Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action is required; this is an information only item.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City staff continues working toward updating the Comprehensive Plan as required by the Growth 
Management Act. Key elements of this update include the land use, housing, environment, and 
transportation elements. This agenda bill and presentation focus on the transportation element.

Public Works and Development Services staff have been working with Fehr & Peers since early last 
summer to assemble the information necessary to update this important element of the Comprehensive 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 10.a
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Transportation Element - Goals 
& Policies

FROM: Steve Powers, Development Services Director

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No action is required; this is an information only item.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City staff continues working toward updating the Comprehensive Plan as required by the Growth 
Management Act. Key elements of this update include the land use, housing, environment, and 
transportation elements. This agenda bill and presentation focus on the transportation element.

Public Works and Development Services staff have been working with Fehr & Peers since early last 
summer to assemble the information necessary to update this important element of the Comprehensive summer to assemble the information necessary to update this important element of the Comprehensive 
Plan. Progress on this element has taken several forms including: stakeholder meetings, public outreach, 
data gathering and assessment.

The Comprehensive Plan establishes the vision of how the community wants to see Oak Harbor in the 
future. The vision is articulated through goals and policies addressing the natural and man-made 
components of our community. This update effort reviewed the currently adopted set of transportation 
goals and policies in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and, based on staff guidance and public feedback, 
have prepared a draft set of goals and policies. The revised goals serve to refresh and condense the 
existing transportation goals. Several key themes surfaced which were either an outgrowth of the previous 
plan or developed to implement evolving strategies. Those themes include: safety, efficiency, modal 
options, sustainability, and coordination. A comparison of the existing transportation goals and the 
proposed goals is presented in Attachment 1.

Policies are the statements that implement the goals. During this process, existing policies were also 
reviewed and revised, where necessary, to reflect the proposed goals. Attachment 2 identifies the 
proposed policies under the goal they intend to implement. Additional refinement of these policies by 
staff, Planning Commission and City Council is anticipated.

As part of this policy review, level of service (LOS) standards will be assessed for each transportation 
mode. LOS standards (typically ranked A – near free-flow to F – highly congested) provide 

summer to assemble the information necessary to update this important element of the Comprehensive 
Plan. Progress on this element has taken several forms including: stakeholder meetings, public outreach, 
data gathering and assessment.

The Comprehensive Plan establishes the vision of how the community wants to see Oak Harbor in the 
future. The vision is articulated through goals and policies addressing the natural and man-made 
components of our community. This update effort reviewed the currently adopted set of transportation 
goals and policies in the City’s Comprehensive Plan and, based on staff guidance and public feedback, 
have prepared a draft set of goals and policies. The revised goals serve to refresh and condense the 
existing transportation goals. Several key themes surfaced which were either an outgrowth of the previous 
plan or developed to implement evolving strategies. Those themes include: safety, efficiency, modal 
options, sustainability, and coordination. A comparison of the existing transportation goals and the 
proposed goals is presented in Attachment 1.

Policies are the statements that implement the goals. During this process, existing policies were also 
reviewed and revised, where necessary, to reflect the proposed goals. Attachment 2 identifies the 
proposed policies under the goal they intend to implement. Additional refinement of these policies by 
staff, Planning Commission and City Council is anticipated.

As part of this policy review, level of service (LOS) standards will be assessed for each transportation 
mode. LOS standards (typically ranked A – near free-flow to F – highly congested) provide 

319



measurement to the effectiveness of a roadway network or intersection. Oak Harbor has adopted an 
intersection based LOS analysis and requires city streets and intersections to operate at a LOS D or 
better, while street segments and intersections along SR 20 must operate at a LOS E or better. A staff 
workshop was held in November to explore alternative LOS approaches, including geographic location, 
time period and mode of transportation. The selection of an LOS standard and methodology will guide 
the transportation improvements to be included in the Six-year Transportation Improvement Plan and 20
year project list.

NEXT STEPS

Staff and the consultant team have implemented a public participation process for this update which has 
included a survey, multi-week attendance at the Farmers’ Market, attendance at the Driftwood Festival, 
updates on the City of Oak Harbor webpage (http://www.oakharbor.org/page.cfm?pageId=1529), a 
well-attended open house in November, and Planning Commission briefings.

A second public open house is scheduled at City Hall, Wednesday February 3, 2016 from 7-8:30 pm to 
present draft projects. In addition to a draft project list, financial implications, concurrency, fee program 
update, and a draft plan will be the focus of Planning Commission and City Council meetings throughout 
the next several months.

Ultimately, this plan will be blended into the overall Comprehensive Plan Update process scheduled for 
completion by the end of June 2016.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

measurement to the effectiveness of a roadway network or intersection. Oak Harbor has adopted an 
intersection based LOS analysis and requires city streets and intersections to operate at a LOS D or 
better, while street segments and intersections along SR 20 must operate at a LOS E or better. A staff 
workshop was held in November to explore alternative LOS approaches, including geographic location, 
time period and mode of transportation. The selection of an LOS standard and methodology will guide 
the transportation improvements to be included in the Six-year Transportation Improvement Plan and 20-
year project list.

NEXT STEPS

Staff and the consultant team have implemented a public participation process for this update which has 
included a survey, multi-week attendance at the Farmers’ Market, attendance at the Driftwood Festival, 
updates on the City of Oak Harbor webpage (http://www.oakharbor.org/page.cfm?pageId=1529), a 
well-attended open house in November, and Planning Commission briefings.

A second public open house is scheduled at City Hall, Wednesday February 3, 2016 from 7-8:30 pm to 
present draft projects. In addition to a draft project list, financial implications, concurrency, fee program 
update, and a draft plan will be the focus of Planning Commission and City Council meetings throughout 
the next several months.

Ultimately, this plan will be blended into the overall Comprehensive Plan Update process scheduled for 
completion by the end of June 2016.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Existing and Proposed Transportation Goals
2. Existing and Proposed Transportation Policies

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS
1. Existing and Proposed Transportation Goals
2. Existing and Proposed Transportation Policies

320

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452290480_at.pdf
http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452290515_at.pdf


Adopted Comprehensive Plan (11/14) Transportation Goals Proposed (6/16) Transportation Goals
1. Provide a safe, convenient, efficient, and integrated highway and roadway 1. Safe for all users.
system for the movement of people and goods, one that is functionally well
maintained, reflects the local environment, and meets the demands of the future, 2. Connected and efficient.
especially the growth anticipated within the Oak Harbor UGA.

3. Multimodal, offering user friendly transportation options.
2. Promote a coordinated and integrated public transportation system within the
City of Oak Harbor that is available to all residents, visitors, and those without 4. Financially and environmentally sustainable.
personal transportation options.

5. Complementary of the City's land use vision and other adopted plans.
3. Provide safe, accessible, and convenient routes, trails, parking facilities, trail
heads, and other amenities that promote the use of non-motorized travel in a 6. Integrated with the regional transportation network to address a 
manner that is integrated with other forms of transportation. diverse range of transportation interests.

4. Balance regional transportation strategies with the varied needs of different
land uses within the City of Oak Harbor. Encourage land use types, mixes, and
densities that promote efficient multi-modal transportation systems.

5. Provide additional roadway aesthetic features that are consistent with
surrounding land use and the natural environment.

6. Ensure that the City of Oak Harbor Transportation Plan is coordinated and
consistent with the plans of state and regional governments.

7. Provide transportation facilities and services that are energy efficient, protect
and enhance the environment, and maintain the existing quality of life in the City
of Oak Harbor. Reduce aesthetic and environmental degradation of
transportation operations, installations and maintenance.

8. Ensure that the City of Oak Harbor seeks out and evaluates all applicable
transportation funding opportunities and receives their proportionate share of
Federal, State, and private transportation funding.

9. Prepare, implement and maintain a Six-Year Transportation Improvement
Program that is feasible and financially constrained and prioritizes improvement
projects in a cost-effective manner, using fair and sufficient methods of funding.

Existing Comprehensive Plan (11/14) Transportation Goals Compared to the Proposed Transportation Goals
ATTACHMENT 1

321



Attachment 2 Page 1 
 

Currently Adopted Transportation Policies 

Goal 1 – Provide a safe, convenient, efficient, and integrated highway and roadway system for 
the movement of people and goods, one that is functionally well maintained, reflects the local 
environment, and meets the demands of the future, especially the growth anticipated within 
the Oak Harbor UGA. 
 
Policy:  

1a. Provide and maintain a circulation system with different roadway classifications that is in 
balance with the land use and transportation requirements in the City of Oak Harbor. 

 
1b. For long-term planning, provide for Level of Service (LOS) D, or better, (based on 
intersection level of service analysis) for City streets and intersections; and provide for LOS 
E (based on intersection level of service analysis) for street segments and intersections along 
SR 20; based upon Average Annual Daily Trips. 

1c. Maintain LOS for public streets consistent with their use and function, placing greatest 
emphasis on arterials and main thoroughfares.   

 
1d. Require that roadways are designed and constructed in accordance with the City of Oak 
Harbor Standards.   

 
1e. Require use of access management techniques to promote free-flowing traffic along 
arterials.  Examples of access management techniques include: selective placement of 
roundabouts, spot safety improvements, intelligent transportation systems, and limited and/or 
shared accesses, as may be necessary. 

 
1f. Require developments which create a significant increase in traffic or change in street 
access and circulation patterns to mitigate impacts in order to maintain LOS standards.   

1f1. Require developers to provide traffic studies to address potential impacts to the 
transportation system. 

1f2. Encourage sub-area studies to address the cumulative aspects of multiple projects. 
1f3. Develop a uniform set of requirements for traffic studies including the 

identification of pipeline projects to be included in a particular traffic study, and 
require that all new development adhere to these requirements. 

 
1g. Encourage new developments to include the construction of consolidated parking 
facilities into their development plans. 

Goal 2 – Promote a coordinated and integrated public transportation system within the City of 
Oak Harbor that is available to all residents, visitors, and those without personal 
transportation options. 
 
Policy: 

2a. Coordinate all modes of transportation to enhance effectiveness and efficiency.  Promote 
a public transportation network, including non-motorized modes, that allows for convenient 
access to major destinations within the City of Oak Harbor. 

322



Attachment 2 Page 2 
 

2b. Encourage cooperation between private transportation providers and public transportation 
providers. 
 
2c. Coordinate with Island Transit to identify locations for future transit infrastructure, such 
as bus stops and park-and-ride facilities. 

2d. Encourage improvements to the Island Transit system that will more effectively serve the 
developing areas of Oak Harbor including, more bus pullouts, and covered bus stop shelters. 
 
2e. Encourage the use of car and van pool efforts through incorporation of policies in City 
development standards and through providing park-and-ride lots, designated car pool parking 
spaces, etc. 
 
2f. Support the long-term sustainability of air transportation and facilities. 

 
2g. Continue to explore all potential funding sources for financing construction, 
reconstruction and operation of water transportation facilities. 

Goal 3 – Provide safe, accessible, and convenient routes, trails, parking facilities, trail heads, 
and other amenities that promote the use of non-motorized travel in a manner that is 
integrated with other forms of transportation. 

Policy: 
3a. Develop a bicycle master plan for the City of Oak Harbor and the UGA.  The master plan 
shall include but not be limited to the following: existing and future bicycle routes, existing 
and future multi-use paths, typical designs for bicycle lanes (attached and detached) on the 
different roadway classifications and intersections, existing and future bike rack locations, 
programs to educate bicycle usage, and funding opportunities for bicycle projects. 

3a1. Promote bicycle paths, lanes, and routes that provide an efficient alternative mode 
of transportation, as well as recreation. 

3a2. Promote the development of regional and community-wide bicycle and pedestrian 
pathways that form a network connecting parks and activity centers. 

3a3. Provide bikeways along minor arterials and low volume streets or where this is 
not possible, provide adequate separation from traffic to promote safety. 

3a4.  Promote bikeways that link City residential areas with commercial and public 
activity centers. 

3a5. Develop innovative incentives to support the creation of bicycle routes and 
supporting infrastructure. 

 
3b. Maintain a pedestrian-oriented atmosphere in the Harborside (Downtown) Area. 
 
3c. Develop a pedestrian master plan which includes an uninterrupted pedestrian system of 
sidewalks, pathways, and crosswalks.  Pedestrian improvement locations will be prioritized 
at streets used frequently by school children, senior citizens, and handicapped people, and 
streets in heavily congested areas.  The master plan shall include but not be limited to the 
following: existing and future multi-use paths, typical designs for sidewalks (attached and 
detached) on the different roadway classifications and intersections, identification of missing 

323



Attachment 2 Page 3 
 

sidewalk locations, identification of programs to educate pedestrian activity, and the 
identification of potential funding opportunities for pedestrian projects. 
 
3d. Explore and identify locations to implement the Federal Highway Administration Safe 
Route to School Program. 
 
3e. Draft and implement development regulations and design guidelines that create 
infrastructure, land use patterns, and developments that support bicycle usage and a 
pedestrian oriented atmosphere throughout the City.  Maintain an emphasis on a bicycle and 
pedestrian oriented atmosphere during development review. 
 
3f. Encourage completion of the Waterfront Trail, from Scenic Heights to Maylor Point , 
through a cooperative effort with private property owners and the U.S. Navy. 
 

Goal 4 – Balance regional transportation strategies with the varied needs of different land 
uses within the City of Oak Harbor.  Encourage land use types, mixes, and densities that 
promote efficient multi-modal transportation systems. 
 
Policy: 

4a. Encourage site planning and subdivision design that best utilizes the existing street 
system through design techniques such as lot orientation and access management. 

4b. Encourage the link between land use and public transportation by requiring public 
transportation opportunities for new and re-developed projects. 

4c. Encourage land use development patterns that reduce the demand for increased capacity 
on roadways. 

Goal 5 – Provide additional roadway aesthetic features that are consistent with surrounding 
land use and the natural environment. 

Policy: 
5a. Develop a Street Landscape Master Plan for the City of Oak Harbor.  The master plan 
shall include but not be limited to the following: 

5a1. Develop a streetscape improvement program that includes community activities 
such as tree planting and landscaping. 

5a2.  Enhance aesthetics by requiring medians and setbacks in typical roadway sections 
to allow for planting and landscaping. 

5a3.  Identify roadway segments that could be developed and designated as future 
parkway locations. 

5a4.  Develop a landscape median plan, landscape ordinance and typical street cross-
sections as necessary to implement the landscaped median program. 

5a5.  Construct landscaped medians where there is available right-of-way and where 
they can be designed to safe standards. 

5a6.  Include landscaping with the access management techniques for SR-20. 
 

Goal 6 - Ensure that the City of Oak Harbor Transportation Plan is coordinated and 
consistent with the plans of state and regional governments. 

324



Attachment 2 Page 4 
 

Policy: 
6a. Ensure efficient management of all transportation resources through cooperation in 
planning and project development with Federal, State, regional, and local jurisdictions. 
 
6b. Coordinate planning for transportation improvements and projects with other agencies in 
order to ensure costs are reduced, environmental impacts are minimized, duplication of 
services are reduced, and that there is a minimum of disruption to the general public. 
 
6c. Work with adjacent jurisdictions and transportation agencies to identify necessary 
improvements to the regional roadway system to ensure adequate regional access to and from 
the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
6d. Coordinate with the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) on 
access management and safety issues for SR 20. 
 
6e. Continue to encourage the implementation of transportation demand management (TDM) 
strategies through coordination with WSDOT, Island County and Island Transit. 
 

Goal 7 – Provide transportation facilities and services that are energy efficient, protect and 
enhance the environment, and maintain the existing quality of life in the City of Oak Harbor. 
Reduce aesthetic and environmental degradation of transportation operations, installations 
and maintenance. 
 
Policy: 

7a. Protect air quality by improving the operating efficiency of the overall transportation 
system, through the effective promotion of different modes. 
 
7b. Consider the potential of using roundabouts in lieu of installing new signalized 
intersections or reconstructing existing signalized intersections, 
 
7c. Encourage the preservation of natural vegetation in transportation right-of-ways, 
particularly regarding the City's trademark Garry Oak trees, in the construction and repair of 
streets. 
 
7d. Protect and/or mitigate environmentally sensitive areas and resource lands when planning 
for future streets (See Environmental Element.) 

 
Goal 8 – Ensure that the City of Oak Harbor seeks out and evaluates all applicable 
transportation funding opportunities and receives their proportionate share of Federal, State, 
and private transportation funding. 
 
Policy: 

8a. Develop a program that will evaluate and rank the planned improvement projects in the 
City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) so as to prioritize projects and 
maximize the funding available for CIP projects.  An example program would be the 
creation of a cost and benefit evaluation chart for the planned improvements. 

325



Attachment 2 Page 5 
 

8b. Coordinate with state and regional agencies to obtain State funding for identified 
improvements for SR-20 within the UGA. 
 
8c. Develop a program that identifies potential federal, state and other funding (grants and 
loans) programs; evaluates the compatibility of those programs with prioritized 
transportation projects; and sets parameters for the application of those funds. 
 
8d. Encourage property owners to finance neighborhood street improvements, for example 
an LID, and assist in seeking state and federal funding to improve and up-grade local streets 
in older neighborhoods. 
 

Goal 9 – Prepare, implement and maintain a Six-Year Transportation Improvement Program 
that is feasible and financially constrained and prioritizes improvement projects in a cost-
effective manner, using fair and sufficient methods of funding. 
 
Policy: 

9a.  Maintain an Impact Fee Program that determines proportionate share of infrastructure 
improvement costs to be assessed to new and redevelopment projects. 
 
9b. Encourage proportionate funding of required transportation improvements by adjacent 
property owners and by developers whose developments impact the streets. 
 
9c. Encourage the formation of LIDs to upgrade substandard roads and develop new streets, 
in accordance with the Comprehensive Plan. 
 
9d. Maintain concurrency between land development and installation of required 
transportation facilities, consistent with the Capital Facilities Element. 
 
9h. Integrate Transportation Demand Management goals with the development review 
process such that they become a part of any traffic impact assessment and mitigation 
program. 

 

Proposed Transportation Policies 

Goal 1 - Safe for all users. 
Policy: 

1a. Strive to reduce traffic deaths and serious injuries in Oak Harbor to zero by 2030 as part 
of the State of Washington’s traffic safety efforts using education, enforcement, engineering, 
emergency medical services, and leadership / policy. 
 
1b. Prioritize locations with a history of collisions or other identified safety issues when 
selecting transportation projects to implement. 
 
1c. Keep roadways operating in safe condition by taking steps to secure roadway funding 
from a variety of sources to maintain, rehabilitate, or replace roadways. 
 

326



Attachment 2 Page 6 
 

1d. Design street improvements to enhance the safe and efficient movement of pedestrians 
and bicycle traffic. Incorporate traffic calming measures where appropriate. 
 
1e. Design new streets and, when the opportunity arises, redesign streets in accordance with 
the City of Oak Harbor standards in order to reduce lane widths to accommodate vehicles 
that use the street most frequently; rather than large vehicles that may use the street only 
occasionally. 
 
1f. Coordinate with emergency response services to ensure adequate and timely access as the 
city builds out the transportation network. 

 
Goal 2 - Connected and efficient. 
Policy: 

2a. Encourage the efficient movement of people and goods through an effective and inter-
connected transportation network that includes: collector and arterial streets, trails, bike 
paths, public transit and other transportation facilities and is in balance with the land use and 
transportation requirements in the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
2b. Provide for the efficient movement of people and goods on arterial streets through a 
balanced approach that only increases the automobile capacity of roadways when necessary. 
 
2c. Work toward development of a multi-modal LOS standard that considers transit and non-
motorized operations as well as automobile operations. 
 
2d. Maintain concurrency between land development and installation of required 
transportation facilities, consistent with the Capital Facilities Element. 
 
2e. Facilitate efficient connections by encouraging street system design in a rectangular grid 
pattern with smaller block sizes, frequent interconnections, and clear wayfinding; strongly 
discourage cul-de-sac or dead end streets. 
 
2f. Coordinate all modes of transportation to enhance effectiveness and efficiency. Promote a 
transportation network, including non-motorized modes, that allows for convenient access to 
major destinations within the City of Oak Harbor. 

 
Goal 3 - Multimodal, offering user friendly transportation options. 
Policy: 

3a. Coordinate with private transportation providers to boost the effectiveness of public 
transportation providers. 
 
3b. Coordinate with Island Transit to identify locations for future transit infrastructure and 
improvements that will more effectively serve the developing areas of Oak Harbor, such as 
bus stops, bus pullouts, bus stop shelters, and park-and-ride facilities. 
 

327



Attachment 2 Page 7 
 

3c. Provide incentives for the use of car and van pools through City development standards 
that support providing park-and-ride lots, designated car pool parking spaces, van pool pick 
up areas, and other supportive amenities. 
 
3d. Support the long-term sustainability of air and water transportation and facilities. 
 
3e. Develop a bicycle priority network for the City of Oak Harbor and the UGA that 
promotes bicycling as an efficient choice for transportation and recreation. The priority 
network shall include but not be limited to the following: future on-street bicycle facilities, 
multi-use paths, and bike rack locations, using context-sensitive designs for bicycle facilities 
on the different roadway classifications and intersections. 
 
3f. Prioritize completion of the Waterfront Trail, from Scenic Heights to Maylor Point , 
through a cooperative effort with private property owners and the U.S. Navy. 
 
3g. Develop and construct a pedestrian priority network for all streets and highways that 
interconnects with other modes of transportation and prioritizes streets used frequently by 
school children, senior citizens, people with disabilities, and streets in heavily congested 
areas. Use the Safe Routes to Schools program as a model for identifying locations for these 
facilities. 
 
3h. Maintain a pedestrian-oriented atmosphere in the Harborside (Downtown) Area. 

 
Goal 4 - Financially and environmentally sustainable. 
Policy: 

4a. Reduce the demand on roadways as a method of deferring or negating the need for 
capacity improvements. 
 
4b. Integrate Transportation Demand Management goals with the development review 
process such that they become a part of any traffic impact assessment and mitigation 
program. 
 
4c. Prioritize roadway preservation projects and consider the long term maintenance costs of 
new transportation capacity projects. 
 
4d. Prioritize projects on the City of Oak Harbor Capital Improvement Plan (CIP) by 
evaluating and ranking them, taking into account their costs and benefits, to ensure effective 
investment of city funds. 
 
4e. Maintain an Impact Fee Program that determines the proportionate share of infrastructure 
improvement costs to be assessed to new and redevelopment projects. Encourage 
proportionate funding of required transportation improvements by property owners and by 
developers whose developments impact the streets. 
 

328



Attachment 2 Page 8 
 

4f. Evaluate potential federal, state, and other funding (grants and loans) programs that may 
be compatible with prioritized transportation projects, and set parameters for the application 
of those funds. 
 
4g. Coordinate with state and regional agencies to obtain funding for identified 
improvements for SR-20 within the UGA. 
 
4h. Encourage property owners to finance neighborhood street improvements and new 
streets, for example through local improvement districts (LIDs). 
 
4i. Protect air quality by improving the operating efficiency of the overall transportation 
system and boosting the non-single occupant vehicle mode share in Oak Harbor. 
 
4j. Consider the potential of using roundabouts in lieu of installing new signalized 
intersections or reconstructing existing signalized intersections. 
 
4k. Encourage the preservation of natural vegetation in transportation rights-of-way, 
particularly regarding the City's trademark Garry Oak trees, in the construction and repair of 
streets. 
 
4l. Protect and/or mitigate environmentally sensitive areas and resource lands when 
maintaining existing streets and planning for future ones (See Environmental Element.) 
 

Goal 5 - Complementary of the City's land use vision and other adopted plans. 
Policy: 

5a. Locate and design transportation facilities to meet the demands of existing and projected 
land uses as provided for in the Comprehensive Plan, including the growth anticipated within 
the Oak Harbor UGA. 
 
5b. Implement transportation improvements that respect the community’s residential 
character, natural features, and quality of life. 
 
5c. Manage the supply of parking to ensure it serves the community’s needs and maintains a 
positive aesthetic. Consider applying strategies such as: time limits and fees in areas with 
high demand for parking, shared parking agreements among adjacent land uses, fees for 
developers in-lieu of on-site parking, waiving parking minimums to reduce the cost of 
construction and encourage economic development in the core, enforcing parking maximums 
in locations that already have enough parking, and incorporating aesthetic treatments 
including plantings, benches, and public art into the design of parking facilities. 
 
5d. Support the use of public transit, walking, and bicycling through development regulations 
and design guidelines that create infrastructure, land use patterns, and developments that are 
conducive to these modes. Require public transit opportunities for new and re-developed 
projects. Maintain an emphasis on a bicycle and pedestrian oriented atmosphere during 
development review. 
 

329



Attachment 2 Page 9 
 

Goal 6 - Integrated with the regional transportation network to address a diverse range of 
transportation interests. 
Policy: 

6a. Ensure efficient management of all transportation resources through cooperation in 
planning and project development with Federal, State, regional, and local jurisdictions. Work 
with Island County to continue consistency and interconnectedness in Oak Harbor’s 
Unincorporated UGA. 
 
6b. Coordinate planning for transportation improvements and projects with other agencies in 
order to reduce costs, minimize environmental impacts, reduce duplication of services, and 
minimize disruption to the general public. 
 
6c. Work with adjacent jurisdictions and transportation agencies to identify necessary 
improvements to the regional roadway system to ensure adequate regional access to and from 
the City of Oak Harbor. 
 
6d. Coordinate with the Washington State Department of Transportation (WSDOT) on access 
management and safety issues for SR 20. 
 
6e. Continue to encourage the implementation of transportation demand management (TDM) 
strategies through coordination with WSDOT, Island County, and Island Transit. 

330



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Interview the Top Two 
Candidates for the Council 
Vacancy, Position No. 4

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Interview the top two candidates.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the January 12, 2016 Special Council Meeting, Council took action to select their top three 
candidates to be interviewed at the January 19th Council Meeting. Council selected the following 
applicants to move forward in the process:

          Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, and William (Skip) Pohtilla

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 10.b
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Interview the Top Two 
Candidates for the Council 
Vacancy, Position No. 4

FROM: Dr. Merriman, City Administrator

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Interview the top two candidates.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
At the January 12, 2016 Special Council Meeting, Council took action to select their top three 
candidates to be interviewed at the January 19th Council Meeting. Council selected the following 
applicants to move forward in the process:

          Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, and William (Skip) Pohtilla          Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, and William (Skip) Pohtilla

On January 14, 2016, Ms. Walker-Wyse submitted a letter of withdrawal from the short list of qualified 
applicants. This letter is attached.  As such, the remaining applicants, Erica Wasinger and William (Skip) 
Pohtilla, will be interviewed at the January 19th Council Meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.12.070

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
January 12, 2016 Special Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter of Resignation from Jes Walker-Wyse

          Erica Wasinger, Jes Walker-Wyse, and William (Skip) Pohtilla

On January 14, 2016, Ms. Walker-Wyse submitted a letter of withdrawal from the short list of qualified 
applicants. This letter is attached.  As such, the remaining applicants, Erica Wasinger and William (Skip) 
Pohtilla, will be interviewed at the January 19th Council Meeting.

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.12.070

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
January 12, 2016 Special Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS
1. Letter of Resignation from Jes Walker-Wyse

331

http://206.217.198.138/getAttachment.php?cID=10000124&authSessId=ab7715471d2d63ea40845346878d12e5&aName=1452884338_at.pdf


332



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Wells Fargo Property 
Acquisition discussion followed 
by possible Council action in 
open session

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Council will enter into Executive Session in order to discuss possible property acquisition.  No Action will
be taken during Executive Session. The Council will reconvene into open session for possible action. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.a
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Wells Fargo Property 
Acquisition discussion followed 
by possible Council action in 
open session

FROM: Nikki Esparza, City Attorney

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
None.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Council will enter into Executive Session in order to discuss possible property acquisition.  No Action will 
be taken during Executive Session. The Council will reconvene into open session for possible action. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

333



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Discuss Top Two Qualified 
Candidates for the Council 
Vacancy Position 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No Action will be taken in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City Council will have the opportunity to discuss the Selected Applicants and their qualifications in 
Executive Session.  No decision will be made concerning the appointment of the Councilmember.

LEGAL AUTHORITY

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No. 11.b
Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Discuss Top Two Qualified 
Candidates for the Council 
Vacancy Position 

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
No Action will be taken in Executive Session.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
City Council will have the opportunity to discuss the Selected Applicants and their qualifications in 
Executive Session.  No decision will be made concerning the appointment of the Councilmember.

LEGAL AUTHORITYLEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (h)

"To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elective office. However, any interview
of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to elective office shall be in a meeting open to 
the public"

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
At the January 12, 2016 Special Meeting, Council appointed the Top Candidates to be interviewed at 
the January 19th 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 42.30.110 (h)

"To evaluate the qualifications of a candidate for appointment to elective office. However, any interview 
of such candidate and final action appointing a candidate to elective office shall be in a meeting open to 
the public"

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
At the January 12, 2016 Special Meeting, Council appointed the Top Candidates to be interviewed at 
the January 19th 2016 Council Meeting.

ATTACHMENTS

.

334



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Reconvene in to Open Session -
Take Action on Property 
Acquisition and Appoint 
Councilmember

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Possible Action regarding Property Acquisition and Appoint Councilmember to Position No. 4.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACT

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Reconvene in to Open Session -
Take Action on Property 
Acquisition and Appoint 
Councilmember

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
Possible Action regarding Property Acquisition and Appoint Councilmember to Position No. 4.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION

LEGAL AUTHORITY

FISCAL IMPACTFISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

FISCAL IMPACT

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT

ATTACHMENTS

12.a

335



City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Oath of Office Ceremony for 
Appointed Councilmember - Led 
by City Clerk

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Clerk will swear in the newly appointed Councilmember.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Following Executive Session, City Council will appoint a Councilmember to fulfill the Vacant Position No. 
4. This position became vacant on January 1, 2016 when Mayor Bob Severns was elected as Mayor
during the November 4, 2015 election. 

City of Oak Harbor
City Council Agenda Bill

Bill No.

Date: January 19, 2016

Subject: Oath of Office Ceremony for 
Appointed Councilmember - Led 
by City Clerk

FROM: Administration

INITIALED AS APPROVED FOR SUBMITTAL TO THE COUNCIL BY:
Bob Severns, Mayor
Doug Merriman, City Administrator/Finance Director
Nikki Esparza, City Attorney, as to form

RECOMMENDED ACTION
City Clerk will swear in the newly appointed Councilmember.

BACKGROUND / SUMMARY INFORMATION
Following Executive Session, City Council will appoint a Councilmember to fulfill the Vacant Position No. 
4. This position became vacant on January 1, 2016 when Mayor Bob Severns was elected as Mayor
during the November 4, 2015 election. 

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.12.080 

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 1, 2015 Regular Council Meeting - Council accepted the Council Vacancy Process proposed 
by Staff.

ATTACHMENTS

LEGAL AUTHORITY
RCW 35A.12.080 

FISCAL IMPACT
N/A

PREVIOUS COUNCIL / BOARD / CITIZEN INPUT
December 1, 2015 Regular Council Meeting - Council accepted the Council Vacancy Process proposed 
by Staff.

ATTACHMENTS

12.b

336


	Agenda for the January 19, 2016 Regular Council Meeting
	2.c.i  Safety Improvements Announcement from Washington State Department of Transportation regarding Sharpes Corner Vicinity
	2.c.ii  Chamber of Commerce Annual Presentation
	C/A 4.a  Approval of Accounts Payable Vouchers and Payroll Checks
	 Voucher Listing (1)
	 Voucher Listing (2)

	C/A 4.b  Minutes of the Regular Council Meeting held January 5, 2016, and the Special Council Meeting on January 12, 2016
	 January 5, 2016 Regular Meeting Minutes
	 January 12, 2016 Special Meeting Minutes

	C/A 4.c  Ordinance 1755: Amending OHMC 2.390 regarding contract authority
	 Ordinance No. 1755

	C/A 4.d  Resolution 16-03: Accepting of "Founders" Memorial at Windjammer Park at City Beach Street
	 Resolution 16-03
	 Contract with proponents
	 2012 Resolution on extension
	 August 10, 2015 Arts Commission minutes regarding proposal

	C/A 4.e  Resolution 16-04: Amending the Master Fee Schedules for Development Services, Finance & Utility, Oak Harbor Fire Department and Public Works.
	 Resolution No. 16-04
	 Schedule A - Development Services Master Fee Schedule
	 Schedule B - Finance & Utility Master Fee Schedule
	 Schedule C - Oak Harbor Fire Department Master Fee Schedule
	 Schedule F - Public Works Master Fee Schedule

	C/A 4.f  Ault Field Booster Pump Replacement - Contract Close Out
	 Final Contract Voucher Certificate

	C/A 4.g  Purchase Authorization-Copier for Pioneer Way Building
	 Xerox Agreement-Pioneer Way Building

	C/A 4.h  Purchase Authorization-Veteran's Park Kiosk
	5.a.i  Clean Water Facility Update by City Staff
	 Report on Project Update

	6. a.  Resolution 16-05: Island Place Division 2 Final Plat
	 Approved PRD Ordinance and Plans
	 Final Plat of Island Place PRD, Division 2
	 Resolution No. 16-05

	8. a.  Clean Water Facility - General Contractor/Construction Manager GMP Amendment #6
	 Attachment A - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #6)
	 Attachment B - GMP #6 Summary of Amendment Costs
	 Attachment C - Hoffman Recommendation of Award for GMP #6
	 Attachment D - A-133 Agreement (Base Agreement)
	 Attachment E - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #1)
	 Attachment F - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #2)
	 Attachment G - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #3)
	 Attachment H - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #4)
	 Attachment I - A-133 - 2009 Exhibit A - Guaranteed Maximum Price Amendment (GMP #5)

	10. a.  Transportation Element - Goals & Policies
	 Existing and Proposed Transportation Goals
	 Existing and Proposed Transportation Policies

	10. b.  Interview the Top Two Candidates for the Council Vacancy, Position No. 4
	 Letter of Resignation from Jes Walker-Wyse

	11. a.  Wells Fargo Property Acquisition discussion followed by possible Council action in open session
	11. b.  Discuss Top Two Qualified Candidates for the Council Vacancy Position 
	12.a  Reconvene in to Open Session - Take Action on Property Acquisition and Appoint Councilmember
	12.b  Oath of Office Ceremony for Appointed Councilmember - Led by City Clerk



